DOWNERS GROVE PUBLIC LIBRARY
BOARD OF TRUSTEES

REGULAR MONTHLY MEETING
MARCH 21, 2018, 7:30 P.M.

LIBRARY MEETING ROOM

AGENDA
1. Callto Order
2. Roll Call
3.  Welcome to Visitors
4.  Approval of Minutes
5.  Financial Matters
a. February 2018 Financial Report
b.  March 2018 Invoices Requested Action: Approval
6. Public Comment on Agenda Items
7.  Public Comment on Other Library Business
8. New Business
a. Construction Management Contract — Shales McNutt Construction
Requested Action: Approval
b.  Strategic Plan — Action Plan Update Requested Action: Approval
9.  Unfinished Business
a. Bylaws — Third Reading Requested Action: Approval
10. Library Director's Report
11. Trustee Comments and Requests for Information

12.

Adjournment



DOWNERS GROVE PUBLIC LIBRARY
BOARD OF TRUSTEES

REGULAR MONTHLY MEETING
FEBRUARY 28, 2018, 7:30 P.M.
LIBRARY MEETING ROOM

DRAFT MINUTES

1. Call to Order. President Graber called the meeting to order at 7:30 p.m.

2. Roll Call. Members present: Trustee Ed Earl, Trustee Susan Eblen, Trustee Swapna
Gigani, Trustee David Humphreys, Trustee Kim Stapleton, President Jonathan Graber.
Absent: None.

Also present: Director Julie Milavec, Assistant Director Jen Fredericks, Executive
Assistant Katelyn Vabalaitis, Friends of the Library President Joni Hansen, Downers
Grove Public Library Foundation Treasurer Ed Pawlak, Kathryn Deiss of Kathryn Deiss
Consulting, and one member of the public.

3. Welcome to Visitors. President Graber welcomed visitors and thanked them for their
interest in the library.

4. Approval of Minutes. It was moved by Earl and seconded by Eblen THAT the Minutes
of the January 24, 2018 Regular Monthly Meeting be approved as presented. Motion
passed by voice vote.

5. Financial Matters.
a. January 2018 Financial Report. Milavec presented the report, noting that the final
2017 expenditure report was included in the Board’s packet. The library is 8%
into 2018. The insurance budget line is already 90% spent because the insurance
policy package arrives in the first month of the year with the new carrier.

b. February 2018 Invoices. It was moved by Eblen and seconded by Humphreys
THAT the payment of February 2018 invoices totaling $112,009.07, the
acceptance of February 2018 credit memos totaling $29.97, and the ratification of
January 2018 payrolls totaling $200,313.05 be approved.

6. Public Comment on Agenda Items. President Graber invited comment. There was
none.

7. Public Comment on Other Library Business. President Graber invited comment.
There was none.



8.

10.

1.

12.

New Business.

a. Bibliotheca Annual Service Maintenance Agreement Renewal. Milavec
presented the renewal agreement that covers service and maintenance on all of the
library’s Bibliotheca products. These products include the sorter and all of its
parts, all seven self-check stations and their credit card swipes, software, and
RFID stations for attaching tags to items. Bibliotheca charges a large per-visit
cost if there is no service agreement and the library has them out at least once a
month, so Milavec and staff recommend renewal of the service maintenance
agreement.

It was moved by Humphreys and seconded by Stapleton THAT the Bibliotheca
Annual Service and Maintenance Agreement Renewal for $40,350.88 be
approved for payment. Roll call: Ayes: Earl, Eblen, Gigani, Humphreys,
Stapleton, Graber. Nays: None. Abstentions: None.

b. Organizational Chart. Milavec presented a revised organizational chart. As
vacancies occur in various departments, staffing has been adjusted to meet the
library’s strategic plan goals. The Board has approved previous organizational
charts, but it was decided that moving forward, Board approval will not be
needed. Graber asked for a short description of each department so the Board can
better understand what each department does and how they overlap. Milavec will
organize this for a future meeting.

Unfinished Business.

a. Bylaws — Second Reading. Graber had a few minor changes to the proposed
bylaws and sent them by email to Milavec. The revised Bylaws will be distributed
to the Board before the March meeting so that a vote can take place at the March
21 meeting.

Library Director’s Report. Milavec presented her report (attached). The March Board
meeting is a week early on March 21. Milavec will be out of town the week of March 12,
so the Board packet will be distributed on Monday, March 19. The library’s annual report
was completed. The 2018 project planning is under way and Shales McNutt will come
before the Board in March with their construction management contract proposal. The
Board will look over the full project in April. The financial management plan was
included in the Board’s packet.

Trustee Comments and Requests for Information.
Humphreys commented that he is very happy with the relationship the library has
established with Shales McNutt.

Adjourment. It was moved by Eblen and seconded by Gigani THAT the Regular
Meeting of the Board of Trustees be adjourned. Motion passed by voice vote. President
Graber adjourned the meeting at 7:50 p.m.



DOWNERS GROVE PUBLIC LIBRARY
BOARD OF TRUSTEES

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MEETING
FEBRUARY 28, 2018, 7:45 P.M.

LIBRARY MEETING ROOM

DRAFT MINUTES

1. Call to Order. President Graber called the meeting to order at 7:51 p.m.

2. Board Development Session. The Board participated in a training session titled
“Improving Board Communication”. The training was facilitated by Kathryn Deiss of
Kathryn Deiss Consulting.

3. Adjourment. It was moved by Humphreys and seconded by Gigani THAT the
Committee of the Whole Meeting of the Board of Trustees be adjourned. Motion passed
by voice vote. President Graber adjourned the meeting at 8:52 p.m.



CASH & INVESTMENTS

FUND BALANCE

DOWNERS GROVE LIBRARY

Building & Equip
Library fund Replacement Fund

S 640,866 S 1,406,405

S 574,166 S 1,406,405

2/28/2018



glRevObj Revenue by Object Report Page: 11
03/09/2018  12:06PM
Periods: 2 through 2 Village of Downers Grove

2/1/2018 through  2/28/2018

Grand Totals
Adjusted Year-to-date Prct
Object/Title Estimate Revenues Revenues Balance Revd
4101 Current Property Taxes 5,182,314.00 0.00 0.00 5,182,314.00 0.00
4109 Prior Year Property Taxes 100.00 3.25 3.25 96.75 3.25
4313 Personal Property Replacement Tax 60,000.00 2.69 6,497.42 53,502.58 10.83
4410 Sales of Materials 10,000.00 1,118.28 1,831.88 8,168.12 18.32
4502 Charges For Services 15,000.00 14,327.97 16,042.35 -1,042.35 106.95
4509 Fees For Non-Residents 16,000.00 1,677.00 3,225.00 12,775.00 20.16
4571 Rental Fees 4,500.00 450.00 670.00 3,830.00 14.89
4581 Fines 42,000.00 2,697.00 6,292.09 35,707.91 14.98
4590 Cost Recovered For Services 15,000.00 843.46 1,557.03 13,442.97 10.38
4610 Federal, Operational Grants 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
4620 State, Operational Grants 36,910.00 0.00 0.00 36,910.00 0.00
4711 Investment Income 2,000.00 0.26 3.02 1,996.98 0.15
4712 Investment Income - Property Taxes 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
4820 Contributions, Operating 5,000.00 0.00 190.09 4,809.91 3.80
4988 Bond Issue Proceeds 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
4997 Prior Period Adjustments 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Grand Totals 5,388,824.00 21,119.91 36,312.13 5,352,511.87 0.67

Page: 11



February

2018 Expenditures

glExpObj Expenditures by Object Report Page: 17

03/07/2018 12:04PM

Periods: 3 through 3 Village of Downers Grove

3/11/2018 through 3/31/2018
Grand Totals
Adjusted Year-to-date Year-to-date
Object/Title Appropriation Expenditures Expenditures Encumbrances Balance Prct Usel
5101 Salaries, Exempt 1,328,658.00 52,041.71 258,571.87 0.00 1,070,086.13 19.4
5111 Salaries, Non-Exempt 342,852.00 7,503.23 35,693.80 0.00 307,158.20 10.4
5119 Part-Time Employee Wages 1,241,170.00 43,468.66 215,870.82 0.00 1,025,299.18 17.3
5131 IMRF Pension Contributions 257,339.00 8,892.28 43,850.41 0.00 213,488.59 17.0
5133 Medicare Contributions 41,935.00 1,462.99 7,264.09 0.00 34,670.91 17.3
5134 Social Security Contributions 179,315.00 6,255.29 31,059.84 0.00 148,255.16 17.3
5190 Life insurance 1,044.00 64.60 200.60 0.00 843.40 19.2
5191 Health Insurance 360,420.00 12,380.00 55,912.50 0.00 304,507.50 16.5
5195 Optical Insurance 2,492.00 81.16 364.19 0.00 2,127.81 14.6
5197 Dental Insurance 38,808.00 1,114.76 5,161.32 0.00 33,646.68 13.3
5210 Supplies 87,200.00 7,792.39 8,014.30 0.00 79,185.70 9.1
5251 Maintenance Supplies 18,000.00 1,864.99 2,149.23 0.00 16,850.77 11.9
5280 Small Tools & Equipment 34,600.00 2,899.00 3,674.87 0.00 30,925.13 10.6
5302 Dues And Memberships 7,500.00 118.00 1,120.00 0.00 6,380.00 14.9
5303 Seminars, Conferences & Meetings 34,250.00 3,593.41 3,593.41 0.00 30,656.59 104
5308 Recognition Program-Staff 5,000.00 871.01 871.01 0.00 4,128.99 17.4
5315 Professional Services 60,000.00 2,586.40 3,795.53 0.00 56,204.47 6.3
5322 Personnel Recruitment 2,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,000.00 0.0
5323 Special Legal 6,000.00 687.00 687.00 0.00 5,313.00 11.4
5346 Data Processing Services 105,000.00 40,350.88 53,656.63 0.00 51,343.37 51.1
5380 Printing Services 18,700.00 2,906.00 2,906.00 0.00 15,794.00 15.5
5391 Telephone 20,000.00 3,564.99 4,654.03 0.00 15,345.97 23.2
5392 Postage 25,500.00 6,612.50 6,612.50 0.00 18,887.50 25.9
5407 Advertising And Public Relations 20,375.00 1,077.44 1,077.44 0.00 19,297.56 5.2
5420 Insurance - Other Policies 43,000.00 0.00 39,007.00 0.00 3,993.00 90.7
5430 Building Maintenance Services 90,000.00 10,324.50 13,401.50 0.00 76,598.50 14.8
5450 Cleaning Services 80,000.00 13,965.00 19,510.00 0.00 60,490.00 243
5461 Utilities 25,000.00 3,961.15 4,485.76 0.00 20,514.24 17.9
5470 Other Equipment Repair And Maintenance 11,500.00 2,421.02 2,421.02 0.00 9,078.98 21.0
5481 Rentals 20,500.00 898.07 1,796.14 0.00 18,703.86 8.7
Page: 17


kvabalaitis
Typewritten Text
February 2018 Expenditures

kvabalaitis
Typewritten Text

kvabalaitis
Typewritten Text


glExpObj Expenditures by Object Report Page: 18
03/07/2018 12:04PM
Periods: 3 through 3 Village of Downers Grove
3/1/2018 through 3/31/2018
Grand Totals  [Continued]
Adjusted Year-to-date Year-to-date
Object/Title Appropriation Expenditures Expenditures = Encumbrances Balance Prct Use
5620 Recoverables 4,000.00 668.30 668.30 0.00 3,331.70 16.7
5630 Contingency 10,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 10,000.00 0.0
5680 Unemployment Compensation 10,000.00 0.00 3,641.00 0.00 6,359.00 36.4
5770 Capital Equipment 60,000.00 1,553.80 1,553.80 0.00 58,446.20 25
5851 Electronic Resources 223,000.00 27,394.10 27,394.10 0.00 195,605.80 12.2
5852 Print Materials 345,000.00 40,498.38 47,871.18 0.00 297,128.82 13.8
5853 Audiovisual Materials 148,500.00 17,471.82 20,771.30 0.00 127,728.70 13.9
5870 Capital Equipment 65,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 65,000.00 0.0
5880 Intangible Assets (Software) 43,000.00 4,923.42 4,923.42 0.00 38,076.58 11.4
5910 Transfer For Capital Projects 350,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 350,000.00 0.0
Grand Totals 5,766,658.00 332,268.25 934,205.91 0.00 4,832,452,09 16.2
Page: 18



InvEdPst Invoice Edit Listing Page: 109
03/14/2018 4:24PM Village of Downers Grove
March 21, 2018
Vendor Totals
Retained/Withheld
Vendor Number of Invoices Amount Amount Total
000011 A & A CASH REGISTER 1 140.00 0.00 140.00
018213 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES, INC. 5 402.25 0.00 402.25
000322 AMAZON.COM 1 1,414.17 0.00 1,414.17
000425 ANDERSON ELEVATOR CO 1 240.00 0.00 240.00
000428 ANDERSON'S BOOKS, INC 2 176.60 0.00 176.60
000403 AT&T 1 650.67 0.00 650.67
000672 BAKER & TAYLOR - L0217582 44 16,849.01 0.00 16,849.01
016893 BIBLIOTHECA, LLC 3 41,183.78 0.00 41,183.78
001223 CASE LOTS INC 1 119.40 0.00 119.40
008705 CASH - LIBRARY 1 125.54 0.00 125.54
008323 CENGAGE LEARNING 4 183.93 0.00 183.93
001277 CENTER POINT PUBLISHING 3 357.72 0.00 357.72
002319 CHAMBERG630 1 33.00 0.00 33.00
001553 COMCAST CABLE 1 271.31 0.00 271.31
016094 DE LAGE LANDEN FINANCIAL SVC, INC. 1 898.07 0.00 898.07
018349 DEBRA MARGUERITE DUDEK 1 150.00 0.00 150.00
018350 EDGAR GABRIEL, INC. 1 575.00 0.00 575.00
018355 ELGIN CLOCK REPAIR 1 350.00 0.00 350.00
005572 FIA CARD SERVICES, N.A. 1 5,469.63 0.00 5,469.63
002905 FRANCOTYP-POSTALIA,INC. 1 111.00 0.00 111.00
015168 FREDERICKS, JENNIFER 1 38.64 0.00 38.64
013544 GOOGLE, INC. 1 641.66 0.00 641.66

S* = Automatic Summary

Page: 109


kvabalaitis
Typewritten Text
March 21, 2018


InvEdPst Invoice Edit Listing Page: 110
03/14/2018 4:24PM Village of Downers Grove

March 21, 2018

Vendor Totals
Retained/Withheld

Vendor Number of Invoices Amount Amount Total
008770 GRAINGER 1 177.47 0.00 177.47
009102 HAGG PRESS INC 1 2,906.00 0.00 2,906.00
003567 ILLINOIS DEPT OF INNOVATION &, TECHNOLOGY 1 152.00 0.00 152.00
003613 ILLINOIS LIBRARY ASSOCIATION 1 20.00 0.00 20.00
003696 INLAND MECHANICAL SERVICE CORP 1 985.00 0.00 985.00
002133 JAKOSZ, DIANE 1 40.65 0.00 40.65
010993 KENT ADHESIVE PRODUCTS COMPANY 1 112.83 0.00 112.83
004812 KLEIN, THORPE AND JENKINS, LTD 1 84.00 0.00 84.00
016764 LAURA DOHERTY 1 450.00 0.00 450.00
009577 LIBRARIESFIRST 2 4,938.00 0.00 4,938.00
005866 MIDWEST TAPE 19 8,988.52 0.00 8,988.52
006161 NICOR GAS 1 1,592.18 0.00 1,592.18
018383 NOODLES THE WONDER DOG TRICK, SHOW 1 300.00 0.00 300.00
017535 OUR DIGITAL WORLD ORGANIZATION 1 1,368.22 0.00 1,368.22
012499 OVERDRIVE, INC. 2 2,383.46 0.00 2,383.46
006361 PADDOCK PUBLICATIONS INC 1 640.60 0.00 640.60
018354 PRAIRIE TECHNOLOGY SOLUTIONS, GROUP LLC 1 7,874.00 0.00 7,874.00
006698 PRINT SMART 2 610.75 0.00 610.75
006716 PROQUEST LLC 1 1,795.00 0.00 1,795.00
006859 R.H. DONNELLEY 1 15.19 0.00 15.19
006944 RECORDED BOOKS, LLC 4 181.48 0.00 181.48
007604 SERVICEMASTER COMMERCIAL CLEAN 1 5,545.00 0.00 5,545.00
007612 SHANES OFFICE SUPPLY CO 4 573.68 0.00 573.68

S* = Automatic Summary Page: 110


kvabalaitis
Typewritten Text
March 21, 2018


InvEdPst Invoice Edit Listing Page: 111
03/14/2018 4:24PM Village of Downers Grove
March 21, 2018
Vendor Totals
Retained/Withheld
Vendor Number of Invoices Amount Amount Total
007861 STEPHENS PLUMBING AND HEATING, 2 576.00 0.00 576.00
014744 TEAM ONE REPAIR, INC. 1 478.80 0.00 478.80
018357 TRAF-SYS, INC. 1 2,890.00 0.00 2,890.00
016841 TSAI FONG BOOKS, INC. 1 170.60 0.00 170.60
018351 U. S. ALLIED PLUMBING & HVAC, LLC 1 975.00 0.00 975.00
011517 UNIQUE MANAGEMENT SERVICES, IN 1 89.50 0.00 89.50
006654 UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE 2 6,225.00 0.00 6,225.00
008621 USI, INC 1 39.19 0.00 39.19
Grand Total: 147 123,559.50 0.00 123,559.50
S* = Automatic Summary Page: 111


kvabalaitis
Typewritten Text
March 21, 2018


016893

018350

018355

009102

016764

009577

018383

017535

018354

006716

018357

006654

INVOICES OF NOTE

For Library Board Meeting on March 21, 2018

2018 Budget

Bibliotheca, LLC (annual suport & maintenance) $41,183.78
Edgar Gabriel, Inc. (Jazz concert) $575.00
Elgin Clock Repair (grandfather clock repair) $350.00
Hagg Press, Inc. (Discoveries printing) $2,906.00
Laura Doherty (family concert) $450.00
LibrariesFirst (database renewal) $4,938.00
Noodles the Wonder Dog Trick Show (kids program) $300.00
Our Digital World Organization (database renewal) $1,368.22
Zroatilr(;es;l'oe;l;r:;logy Solutions Group, LLC (upgrade data backup/offsite 47 874.00
ProQuest, LLC (Ancestry library) $1,795.00
TRAF-SYS Inc. (thermal sensors/patron counters) $2,890.00

United States Postal Services (Discoveries postage/permit) $6,225.00



971
975

972
972
972

973

971
973
973

973
973
973
973
973

974
974

975
975
975

Library Credit Card Details for the March 21, 2018 Board Meeting

5210 Supplies
5770 Capital Equipment

5210 Supplies
5303 Seminars, Mtgs, & Conferences
5315 Professional Services

5303 Seminars, Mtgs, & Conferences

5302 Dues & Membership
5280 Small Tools & Equipment
5303 Seminars, Mtgs, & Conferences

5210 Supplies

5210 Supplies

5303 Seminars & Meetings
5852 Printed Materials
5851 Electronic Resources

5210 Supplies
5303 Seminar, Mtgs, & Conferences

5770 Capital Equipment
5280 Small Tools & Equipment
5880 Intangible Assets

Julie Milavec

Katelyn Vabalaitis

Office supplies, toner
ground bar, clamp, copper rings

Elizabeth Matkwoski

Food and supplies for programs
LACONI, Airfare to PLA for 2 staff members
Breakout Education access code renewal

Sharon Hrycewicz

Airfare to PLA for 2 staff members

Allyson Renell

ALA Membership
Shredder, toy storage, night lights
ALA eCourse

Traci Skocik

Program supplies
returns/credits
Puppet Store
Barnes and Noble
Blu-ray

Christine Lees

Supplies
Retirement party

Paul Regis

Speakers, Virgin Mobile hotspot
Memory cards, 3D printer materials
Pantheon Systems, printer cartridges

Total

Total

Total

Total

Total

Total

Total

Total

v n v n unun wn

v n unun

v N n

v nun un

549.19
110.37
659.56

49.39
681.20
60.00
790.59

701.22
701.22

190.00
171.95
157.50
519.45

473.18

(59.99)
103.76
35.91
18.96
571.82

88.01
50.00
138.01

208.98
269.59
279.27
757.84



972
976

976

977

978
978
978
978

5315 Professional Services
5407 Advertising & Public Relations

5210 Supplies

5210 Supplies

5280 Small Tools & Equipment

5251 Maintenance Supplies

5470 Other Equipment Repair & Maint
5210 Supplies

Melody Danley

Girls Who Code T-Shirts
Carabiners for giveaways

Melissa Fischer

Google storage, office supplies

Jen Fredericks

Amazon Prime renewal, water

lan Knorr

Returns/credits

Vacuum cleaner filter and bags
Door hinge security device
Paint

Total

Total

Total

Total

Library Credit Card March 2018 Totals

W

310.50
290.68
601.18

51.09
51.09

117.37
117.37

(11.89)
28.97
340.00
204.42
561.50
5,469.63



PAYROLLS FOR FEBRUARY 2018

FEBRUARY 2 $107,217.14

FEBRUARY 16 $99,592.70

TOTAL FEBRUARY 2018 PAYROLLS $206,809.84



DOWNERS GROVE PUBLIC LIBRARY
BOARD OF TRUSTEES

MARCH 21, 2018

AGENDA ITEM 8A

Construction Management Contract — Shales McNutt Construction

The construction management contract with Shales McNutt Construction is included in
your packet, along with its addenda. The first addendum is the revised AIA contract that
deals with subcontractors, along with a rider modifying this standard contract. The
second is the Certificate of Insurance required by the contract. John Shales will attend
the meeting to answer any questions about the contract and construction management
process. The contract has been vetted by Library Attorney Dennis Walsh. The
insurance agent for Libraries of lllinois Risk Agency (LIRA) confirmed that a project of
this scope is covered in the existing Package Policy, so no additional Builders Risk
Policy is necessary.

The fee presented is in 3 parts: lump sum for pre-construction phase, percentage of
total cost of construction, and hourly on-site personnel during construction phase. The
second two parts of the fee are variable. For the hourly on-site personnel during the
construction phase, the architect, construction manager, Facilities Manager, and Library
Director will determine the need according to the final project timeline and phasing.
John Shales is already working on our behalf with Product Architecture + Design,
providing preliminary cost estimating.

| recommend approval of this contract and its addenda.






















































Init.

§ 11.4 Assignment

The Owner and Construction Manager, respectively, bind themselves, their agents, successors, assigns and legal
representatives to this Agreement. Neither the Owner nor the Construction Manager shall assign this Agreement
without the written consent of the other, except that the Owner may assign this Agreement to a lender providing
financing for the Project if the lender agrees to assume the Owner’s rights and obligations under this Agreement.
Except as provided in Section 13.2.2 of A201-2007, neither party to the Contract shall assign the Contract as a whole
without written consent of the other. If either party attempts to make such an assignment without such consent, that
party shall nevertheless remain legally responsible for all obligations under the Contract.

§ 11.5 Other provisions:

§ 11.5 .1 The following rates for Supervisory and Administration personnel until December 31, 2018, whether located
at the project site or at Construction Manager’s principal office, will be used to calculate the required staffing expense
to properly manage the project. This expense will be converted to a lump sum at the time Subcontractor bids are
approved by the Owner and billed on a prorated basis during the construction phase.

Project Executive $136/Hr

Project Manager $131/Hr

Project Superintendent (Full time) $125/Hr
Asst. Project Manager $98/hr.

Contract Administrator $85/Hr

These rates are expected to increase 4% each year on January 1, thereafter.

Section 11.6: Prevailing Wage:

It is hereby stipulated that the Construction Manager and each Subcontractor shall pay not less than the prevailing
hourly rate of wages, and the generally prevailing rate of hourly wages for legal holiday and overtime work, as
determined by the Illinois Department of Labor and as set forth in the schedule of prevailing wages appended to the
instructions to bidders for this contract to all laborers, workers, and mechanics performing work under this contract.
All bonds provided by the Construction Manager for this project shall include such provisions as will guarantee the
faithful performance of the Construction Manager and each Subcontractor’s obligations under this clause and under
the Prevailing Wage Act, 820 ILCS 130/1.et. seq. Should the Department of Labor revise any prevailing rate of
hourly wages, such revised rate shall be applicable to this contract; however, in no event shall the increase in any
prevailing rate of hourly wages be a basis for a change order or other claim for an increase in the Contract Sum.
Construction Manager and each Subcontractor shall be required to comply with the certified payroll requirements of
the Prevailing Wage Act.

The Construction Manager shall additionally include the above paragraph in all solicitations for bids for this
project, along with a current schedule of prevailing wages.

11.7 Requisite Circumstances For Change Orders

No change orders shall be issued for the work under this contract which authorize or necessitate an increase or
decrease in the cost of the contract by a total of $10,000 or more or in the time of completion by a total of thirty (30)
days or more unless a written determination is made by the owner or a duly authorized designee of the owner other
than the architect that:

1. The circumstances said to necessitate the change in performance were not reasonably foreseeable
the time this contract was signed; or

2 The change is germane to the original contract as signed; or

3. The change order is in the best interest of the owner and is authorized by law.

11.8 Schedule of Values

Construction Manager and each Subcontractor acknowledges that owner is a tax exempt entity under the laws of the
State of Illinois and that Owner shall, as part of its undertakings under this contract, provide to the contractor all
certificates of exemptions and tax exempt numbers needed to entitle contractor to purchase material and other items to
be used on the work or incorporated into the work on a tax exempt basis, said exemptions specifically to include but

AlA Document A134™ — 2009 (formeriy A131T™MCMc - 2003). Copyright © 1994, 2003 and 2009 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved.
WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AIA®

Document, or any portion of It, may result In severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the law.

This document was produced by AlA soflware at 12:34:21 on 03/05/2018 under Order N0.5088524023 which expires on 11/29/2018, and is not for resale.
User Notes: (1249400619)

18









CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE pATE tbary

3/5/2018

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER ﬁ%’}?”
Lundstrom Insurance '
2205 Point Blvd., Ste 200 {(AIC.No. Exty: 847-741-1000 (A6 no): 847-428-8857
Elgin IL 60123 ADDRESs: certificates@lundstrominsurance.com
INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #

INSURER A : Cincinnati Insurance 10677
INSURED SHALMCN-01 INSURER B : Cincinnati Indemnity Compan 23280
Shales McNutt, LLC . Y ompany
425 Renner Drive INSURER C :
Elgin IL 60123 INSURER D :

INSURER E :

INSURER F :
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 1098059299 REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR ADDL[SUBR POLICY EFF | POLICY EXP
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE INSD | WWD POLICY NUMBER (MM/DD/YYYY) | (MM/DD/YYYY) LIMITS
A | X | COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY Y | Y | EPP0139395 7/1/2017 7/1/2018 EACH OCCURRENCE $1.000,000
X DAMAGE TO RENTED
CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR PREMISES (Ea occurrence) $ 500,000
MED EXP (Any one person) $ 10,000
PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $ 1,000,000
GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $ 2,000,000
POLICY JPE(?T' LoC PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG | $ 2,000,000
OTHER: $
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
A | AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY EPP0139395 7/1/2017 7/1/2018 L2 socident $ 1 000.000
X | ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) | $
OWNED SCHEDULED 4
AUTOS ONLY - aures BODILY INJURY (Per accident) | $
X | HIRED NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE $
AUTOS ONLY AUTOS ONLY |_(Per accident)
$
A | X | UMBRELLA LIAB X | occur EPP0139395 7/1/2017 7/1/2018 EACH OCCURRENCE $ 5,000,000
EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $ 5,000,000
DED ‘ X ‘ RETENTION $ o $
B |WORKERS COMPENSATION EWC 0337999 71112017 712018 |X | BER OTH-
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY VIN STATUTE ‘ ER
ANYPROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE [ E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $ 1,000,000
OFFICER/MEMBEREXCLUDED? - N7A
(Mandatory in NH) E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE| $ 1,000,000
If yes, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT | $ 1,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

Re: Downers Grove Public Library Interior Renovation.

If required by written contract, the following are Additional Insureds on a Primary and Non-Contributory basis and a Waiver of Subrogation applies with respect
to the General Liability:

1) Board of Trustees of the Downers Grove Public Library

2) Product Architecture

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

Board of Trustees of the Downers Grove Public Library

1D%E\:\9ngr%ﬂlesl§o§érleft6051 5 AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
ACORD 25 (2016/03) The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD




Init.

:THE OWNER' S
" (Name, legal: status cmd addr 2ss)
- Board of Trustees Oi the Downers Grove Public Library
10350 Curtiss Street =+ .

..*Dowml 5 Grove 1 6051

CTHE ARCHITECT

| _'_Chlcago L 60647

4 _ZARCHITECT

LA
2

11
.\\‘

2

L 2

(‘?{“\_

‘.
.
i

- for the following PROJECT:
“(Name and location or address)

Downers Grove Public Library

“Main Facility Renova_tion
1050 Curiiss Street 00

Dowuels Grove 1L 605 ]5

(Name lega! status dnd addf ess)

: Product AT chttecture

1608 N, Mllwaukee Smte 307

TABLE OF ART!CLES

' ENERAL' PROVISIONS

T
3o '.'CONTRACTOR

5ol _::SUBCONTRACTORS __
E ONSTRUCTION BY OWN ER OR BY SEPARATE CONTRACTORS
oy £y .CHANGES EN THE WORK
5 TME : :
9 . -..‘-PAY_M,E_N_T-§__A.Iib'EOMPLETION

10 PROTECTION OF PERSONS AND PROPERTY

11 INSURANCE AND BONDS

'UNCOVERING AND CORRECTION OF WORK
. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

AIA Document A201" - 2007

General Conditions of the Contract for Construction

ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS:
The author of this document has
added information needed for iis
completion. The author may also
have revised the text of the original
AlA standard form. An Additions and
Defetions Report that notes added
information as well as revisions 10
the standard form text is available
from the author and should be
reviewed. A vertical line in the left
margin of this document indicates
where the author has added
necessary information and where
the author has added {o or deleted
from the originai AlA text.

This document has important legal
consequences, Consultation with an
attorney is encouraged with respect
to its completion or modification.

AlA Document A201™ — 2007. Copyright ©@ 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1837, 1951, 1058, 1961, 1863, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1967, 1987 and 2007 by The American
Institute of Architects. All rights resenred WARNING This A!A"’ Document is protected by U.8. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized
reproduchon or distribution of this AIA® Dogument, or any portion of it, may result in severe clvil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the
maximum extent possible under the law. This document was produced by AlA software at 15:18:24 on 08/22/2013 under Order No.138400345¢_1 which

expires on 11/30/2013, and is nof for resale.
User Notes:

(1231772244)



Init.

14 TERMINATION OR SUSPENSION OF THE CONTRACT

- _CLAIMS AND DISPUTES

AlA Document A201™ — 2007, Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1968, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American
Institute of Archifects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AlA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized
reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the
maximum extent possible under the law, This document was praduced Dy AlA software at 15:18:24 on 08/22/2013 under Order No.1384C03459_ 1 which
expires on 11/30/2013, and is not for resale.

User Notes: {1231772244)



Init.

LA
'f-.:Addmonal Costs Claims

| _Addltlona] IllS]’)ectiODS and.Test:ng
19.4:2,9.8.3,12.2.1; _13__5 e
. -Additional: Insur: ed o

. ‘Additional Timé, C
1324,374,37.5,3
: 'Z-Admmlstratmn of the' Contract
©U3.1:3:4.2,94,95
: Adve1 lrsement or Inwtatton to B1d

3.8,7.38
Alrisk: ]nsu:ance
1.3, 1]311" -
R Appllcatwns for Payment

INDEX

- (Toptcs and numbers in bold are section headings.)

. Acceptance of Nonconforming Werk

9.6,6,9.93,12.3

. ~Acceptance of Work

9.6,6,9.8.2,9.9.3,9.10.1,9.10.3, 12.3

L .Acccss to Work
.-'-316 6.2.1, 121 :
"'Accxdem Pr eventlon e
10 g :
: Acts and Omissmns
_ 32 332 3128 3;

_4238319511021

111.4

'zsszlsls

11::

:.Aesthetlc Effect
4213 '

:Allew‘mces SR

9 9293 94951 963 97910

_. 'Z_Approvals
©2:101,2.2.2,2.4, 3]3 31023128 3.12.9,3.12.10,

427,93.2; 13.5.1-
Arbitratlon

'8311131013111532154
" ARCHITECT . -

" “Architect, Deﬁm_tib.n_ of

4.1.1
Architect, Extent.of Authority

"_241 312,741 4.2,5.2,6.3,7.1.2,73.7,7.4,9.2,

5,96_3 0.8, 9101 9.10.3, 12.1, 12.2.1,
14.2.2,142.4,15.1.3, 15.2.1

Arcintect' Lumtatlons of Authority and

Responsibility
2.1.1,3.12.4,3.12.8,3.12.10,4.1.2,4.2.1,4.2.2,
423,426,42.7,42.10,42.12,42.13,52.1,7.4,
942,953,964,1513,152

Architect’s Additional Services and Expenses
24.1,11.3.1.1,122,1,13.5.2,13.53, 14.2.4
Architect’s Administration of the Coniract
3.1.3,42,3.74,152,94.1,9.5

Architect’s Approvals
24.1,3.13,3.5,3.102,42.7

Architect’s Authority to Reject Work
3.5,4.2.6,12.1.2,12.2.]

Architect’s Copyright

1.1.7, 1.5

Architect’s Decisions
3.74,426,42.7,42.11,42.12,42.13,42.14,6.3,
7.3.7,7.3.9,813,83.1,92,94.1,9.5,9.8.4,99.1,
13.5.2,152, 15.3

Architect’s Inspections
3.74,422,429,94.2,983,992,9.10.1, 135
Architect’s Instructions
32.4,33.1,42.6,42.7,13.52

Architect’s Interpretations

42.11,4.2.12

Architect’s Project Representative

42,10

Architeet’s Relationship with Contractor
1.£.2,1.5,3.13,3.2.2,32.3,3.24,33.1,342,3.5
3.74,3.7.5,39.2,393,3.10, 3.11, 3.12, 3.16, 3.18,
4.1.2,4.13,42,52,622,7,83.1,92,93,94,9.5,
9.7,9.8,99,102.6,10.3,11.3.7, 12, 13.4.2, 13.5,
152

Architect’s Relationship with Subcontractors
1.1.2,423,42.4,42.6,9.6.3,9.6.4,11.3.7
Architect’s Representations

94.2,95.1,9.10.1

Architect’s Site Visits
374,422,429,942,951,992,9.10.1, 13.5
Asbestos

10.3.1

Attorneys’ Fees

3.18.1,9.10.2,10.33

Award of Separate Contracts

6.1.1,6.12

Award of Subcontracts and Other Contracts for
Portions of the Work

5.2

Basic Definitions

1.1

Bidding Requirements

1.1.1,52.1, 11.4.1

Binding Dispute Resolution

97,1139, 113,10, 13.1.1, 15.2.5, 15.2.6.1, 15.3.1,
15.3.2,15.4.1

Boiler and Machinery Insurance

11.3.2

Bonds, Lien

7.3.7.4,9.10.2,9.10.3

Bonds, Performance, and Payment
7.3.7.4,96.7,9.103,11.3.9,11.4

AlA Document A204™ — 2007. Copyrighf © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1897 and 2007 by Tha American
institute of Architects. All rights reserved WARNING: This AIAY Document is protected by u.s. Copyrlght Law and International Treaties. Unautherized
reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the
maximum extent possible under the taw. This document was produced by AlA software at 15:18:24 on 08/22/2013 under Order No.1384003459_1 which

expires on 11/30/2013, and is not for resale.
User Nofes:

(1231772244)

3



: "‘Cialms Deﬁmtlon of
SN EARE L

Building Permit
3.7.1

' Capltalwatwn
1.3
-Certlf'cate of Substantial Completion
- 9.83,9.84,98.5

Certificates for Payment

F421,425,429,933,9.4,95 96.1,9.6.6,9.7,
- .9.10.1,9.103,14.1.1.3,:14.2.4, 15.1.3
~.-Certificates of Inspecuon F esting or Approval

13.5.4 S

Certificates: of Insw ance. f ;
9102, 1113

“Change Or i

-111241_3;423 4'3823 3.11.1,3.12.8,4.2.8,

C 523,123 72 7.3.2,7.3.6,7.3.9, 7.3.10,
8301, 93119103 1032 11312 11.3.4, 11.3.9,

CHANGES

221,31, 428.7'721 731"74 83.1,93.1.1,

1139 .

- CLAIMS AND DISPUTES‘

C3.246.1:1,6.3, 7399339104103315 15.4

" ~Claims and Tlmely Asseltion ‘of Claims
1541000

" Comp

._-.Clalms for Add:tmnal Cost
-3.2:4,3.7.4,6.1.1, 7.3.9,110.3.2, 15.1.4

Clalmb for Addltlonai Tlme

$32.4,3.746.1.1,8.3.2,103.2,15.1.5 -
Conceaied or Unlmown Condltmns, Clalms for

Clalms fer Damages =+
324‘3}8,611 83.3,95.1, 96_7 1033 11.1.4,
. : "3'7-,-1413 14.2.4; ]5'16 ;

: -Clalms'Subjcct to A]’bitldtion '
15,341, 1541
"Cleanmg Up

3.15, 6.3 o .
Commencement of the: Work ‘Conditions Relating to

©22.1,322,34.0,3.7.1, 310.1,3.12.6, 5.2.1, 5.2.3,
'_"622 810
o154

2_831 11.1, 11.3.1,11.3.6, 11.4.1,

Commencement‘ of the Worlk, Definition of
8.1.2
Communications Facilitating Contract

- 'Admlmstratmn

424
1o '-Coudltlons Relating to

3.9.1;

3.4,3:1153.15,4.2.2,4.2.9,82,94.2,9.8,99.1,

Init,

9.10,12.2,13.7,14.1.2
COMPLETION, PAYMENTS AND
9

Completion, Substantiaj
4,2.9,8.1.1,8.1.3,823,942,98,99.1,9.10,3,
12.2, 13.7

Compliance with Laws
1.6.1,3.2.3,3.6,3.7,3.12.10,3.13, 4.1.1, 9.6.4,
1022, 111, 11.3,13.1, 13.4, 13.5.1, 13.5.2, 13.0,
14.1.1,14.2.1.3, 15.2.8, 15.4.2, 15.4.3

Concealed or Unknown Conditions

3.74,4.2.8, 831,103

Conditions of the Contract

1.1.1,6.1.1,6.1.4

Consent, Written
3.4.2,3.74,3.12.8,3.142,4,1.2,93.2,9.85,99]1,
9.10.2,9.10.3, 11.3.1, 13.2, 13,42, 15.4.4.2
Consolidation or Joinder

15.4.4

CONSTRUCTION BY OWNER OR BY
SEPARATE CONTRACTORS

1.14,6

Construction Change Directive, Definition of
7.3.1

Construetion Change Direetives
1.1.1,3.42,3.12.8,4.2.8,7.1.1,7.1.2,7.1.3, 7.3,
9.3.1.1

Construction Schedules, Contractor’s
3.10,3.12.1,3.12.2,6.1.3, 15.1.5.2

Contingent Assignment of Subcontraets
54,14222

Continuing Contract Performance

15.1.3

Contract, Definition of

1.1.2

CONTRACT, TERMINATION OR
SUSPENSION OF THE

5.4.1.1,11,3.9, 14

Contract Administration

3.1.3,4,94,95

Contract Award and Exccution, Conditions Relating
to

3.7.1,3.10,5.2,6.1, 11.1.3, 11.3.6, 11 .4.1
Contract Documents, Copies Furnished and Use of
1.52,225,53

Contract Documnents, Definition of

1.1.1

Contract Sumn
3.7.4,3.8,523,72,7.3,7.4,9.1,9.4.2,9.5.1.4,
9.6.7,9.7,103.2,11.3.1, 14.2.4, 14.3.2, 15.1 4,
15.2.5

Contraet Sum, Definition of

9.1

Contract Time
3.74,3.7.5,3.102,52.3,7.2.1.3,73.1,7.3.5, 74,
8.1.1,82.1,83.1,9.51,97,103.2,12.1.1, 14.3.2,
15.1.5.1, 15.2.5

Contract Time, Definition of

8.1.1

AlA Document A201™ - 2007. Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American
Instifuie of Architecis. Al rights reserved WARNING: This MIA‘ia Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and tnternationa] Treaties. Unauthorized
reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the
maximum extent possible under the law. This document was produced by AlA software at 15:18:24 on 08/22/2013 under Order No.1384003455_1 which

expires on 11/30/2013, and is not for resale,
User Notes:

(1231772244)

4



Init.

i .Conu actor s Representations
-_-'321 3.2.2,3.5,3.12.6,6.2
' _:._Contractor s Respon51b11_
CWork s w
3,32, 318 531 6]3 62 951 10.2.8

: '-Contlact r s Revxew of Cont] act Documents
v 320 :

RE :
__-Contx actol’s, R1 ghl lo Termmalc the Conhact
14,1516 - :
LonttactorsSubm als L
--3m31131*44275215239293982
9.83,9.9.1,9.102:9.10.3,11, 1.3, 1142
: Com“ractm_:s Supermtendent eur

CONTRACTOR
3

'~ :Contractor, Definition of
30,612
“Contractor’s Construction Schedules
3.10,3.12.1,3.12.2, 6.1.3, 15.1.5.2
* Contractor’s Employees
©3.3.2,3.4.3,38.1,3.9,3.182,42.3,4.26,10.2,10.3,

1) 51137, 14,1, 142,11

e :_.'Cont! actor’ s Llablilty lnsurance
211 it
~Contractor’
“and Ownerls Forces
13.12.5,3.14, 2. 4.2.4, 6 11 37,1212, 12.24
_-:_'Contlacto 5 Reldtionshlp with Subconiractors

elatlons}np w1th Separate Contractors

'1‘2 316318413 42 52
293 9.4, 9.5,9.7,9.8,9.9, 10.2.6,
13.5, 15:1.2; 1521

82.1,9.33,9.82
T Those Performing the

Contracior s nght to Stop the Work

o Contrabtm _s,Supel v1310n and .Conslructlon
_ ‘Procedures
1.22,3.3,3.4, 3.12.10, 42:2,4.27,6.1.3,624,

7137357?7821@1;“&}5]3
Contractual Lzablhty Insurance -
11.1.1.8,:11: 20

- Coor dmatlm_ 'and Corrciatlon
12,3.2.1,3.

3.10,3.12.6,6.1.3, 6.2.1

'(,omes Furnished of Drawings and Specifications
15,225,311
Copyrrghts

" 'Corre!atlon and lntcnt of thc Contl act Documcnts

1.2
Cost, Definition of
7.3.7

Costs
24.1,3.24,3.7.3,382,3.152,542,6.1.1,06.2.3,
7.3.33,73.7,7.3.8,73.9,9.10.2, 10.3.2, 10.3.0,
11.3,12.1.2,12.2.1,12.24, 13.5, 14

Cutting and Patching

3.14,6.2.5

Damage to Construction of Owner or Separate
Contractors

3.14.2,624,102.1.2,10.2.5,104, 11.1.1, 1 1.3,
12.2.4

Damage to the Work
3.14.2,9.9.1,102.1.2,102.5, 1041, 11.3.1, 12.24
Damages, Claims for
3.24,3.18,6.1.1,83.3,9.5.1,9.6.7, 10.3.3, 1 1.1.1,
11.3.5,11.3.7,14.1.3, 14.2.4, 15.1.6

Damages for Delay
6.1.1,833,95.1.6,9.7,10.3.2

Date of Commencement of the Work, Definition of
8.1.2

Date of Substantial Completion, Definition of
8.1.3

Day, Definition of

8.14

Decisions of the Architect
3.74,426,42.7,42.11,4.212,42.13,152,6.3,
7.3.7,739,8.1.3,83.1,9.2,94,95.1,9.84,9.9.1,
13.5.2,142.2,14.2.4,15.1, 15.2

Decisions to Withhold Certification
94.1,%5,9.7,14.1.13

Defective or Nonconforming Work, Acceptance,
Rejection and Correction of
2.3.1,24.1,3.5,4.2.6,62.5,95.1,9.52,96.6,9.8.2,
9.93,9.104,12.2.1

Definitions
1.1,2.1.1,3.1.1,3.5,3,12.1,3.12.2,3.12.3,4.1.1,
15.1.1,5.1,6.1.2,7.2.1,7.3.1,8.1,9.1,9.8.1
Delays and Extensions of Time
32,374,523,72.1,73.1,74,83,9.5.1,9.7,
10.3.2,10.4.1, 14.3.2, 15.1.5, 15.2.5

Disputes

6.3,739,151,152

Documents and Samples at the Site

311

Drawings, Definition of

1.1.5

Drawings and Specifications, Use and Ownership of
3.11

Effective Date of Insurance

8.22,11.1.2

Emergencices

104, 14.1.1.2,15.1.4

Employees, Contractor’s
33.2,343,38.1,3.9,3.182,42.3,426, 10.2,
1033, 1L1.1, 11.3.7, 14.1, 14.2.1.1

AlA Document A201™ —~ 2007, Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925 1937, 1951, 1058, 1961, 1863, 1866, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American
Institute of Architects, All rights reserved WARNING: This AIA¥ Document Is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and Inteenational Treaties. Unauthorized
reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may resuit in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the
maximum extent possibie under the law. This document was produced by AlA software at 15:18:24 on 08/22/2013 under Order No.1384003459_1 which

expires on 11/30/2013, and is not for resale.
User Notes:

(1231772244)

5



Equipment, Labor, Materials or

01.13,1,16,34,35,3.82,3.83,3.12,3.13.1,3.15.1,
L4.2:6 '2._7,521 6.2.1,73.7,932,933, 9513

10.2.1,10.24, 14.2.1.1, 14.2.1.2

- Execution and Progress of the Work
J113,1.2.1,1.2.2,2.23,2.25,3.1,3.3.1,34.1, 3.5,

C37103101,3.02,3.14,42,6.22,7.13,7.3.5, 8.2,

"-'9'5] 9.9.1, 10.2, 10.3, 12.2, 14.2, 14.3.1, 151.3
.. Extensions of Time

304,374,523, 7.21.7.3,7.4,9.5.1,9.7,103.2,

_11311

1.18

1041, 143,15.15, 152.5
- Failure of Payment: .0
_95139791021

36";141}3 14.2.1.2

1"1 re.and

Hazardous Mafcrlals g

10.2.4, 103

_-identn" catxon of Si!i)conhactm 's and Suppliers
g 23 _ el

. In(_lemmﬁcatlon e

'_3"}7 318 9:0.2, 1033 ]03 5 -1036 113.1.2,

Initial Decision Maker Dec__ ns:"'

1422, 1424:15.2.1, 1522 1523, 15.2.4, 152.5
3 Inmal Dems:on Make_r_, Extent of Author 1ty

.TI422426429942983

' -lnstructions to° Blddens

1.1.1
Instructions to the Contractor
324,33.1,38.1,52.1,7,82.2,12,13.5.2

Instruments of Service, Definition of

1.1.7

Insurance
3.18.1,6.1.1,73.7,9.3.2,9.84,9.9.1,9.10.2, 11
Insurance, Boiler and Machinery

11.3.2

Insurance, Contractor’s Liability

11.1

Insurance, Effective Date of

822, 1112

Insurance, Loss of Use

11.3.3

Insurance, Owner’s Liability

11.2

Insurance, Property

10.2.5,11.3

Insurance, Stored Materials

932

INSURANCE AND BONDS

11

Insurance Companies, Consent to Partial Occupancy
9.9.1

Intent of the Contract Documents
1.2.1,427,42.12,4.2.13,74

Interest

13.6

Interpretation

123,1.4,4.1.1,51,61.2,151.1

Interpretations, Written

4.2.11,42.12,15.14

Judgment on Final Award

i5.4.2

Labor and Materials, Equipment
1.1.3,1.1.0,3.4,3.5,3.8.2,3.8.3,3.12,3.13, 3.15.1,
426,42.7,52.1,62.1,7.37,93.2,933,951.3,
9.10.2, 10.2.1, 10.2.4, 14.2.1.1, 14.2.1.2

Labor Disputes

8.3.1

Laws and Regulations

1.5,3.2.3,3.6,3.7,3.12.10, 3.13.1, 4.1.1, 9.6.4, 5.9.1,
1022, 11.1.1, 11.3, 13.1.1, 13.4, 13.5.1, 13.5.2,
13.6,1, 14, 15.2.8,15.4

Liens

2.1.2,9.3.3,9.102,9.104, 152.8

Limitaiions, Statutes of

12.2.5,13.7,154.1.1

Limitations of Liability
2.3.1,32.2,3.5,3.12.10,3.17,3.18.1, 42.6,4.2.7,
4.2,12,62.2,9472,9.6.4,9.0.7, 10.2.5,10.3.3,
11.1.2,11.2,11.3.7,12.2.5, 13.4.2

Limitations of Time
2.12,22,24,322,3.10,3.11,3.12.5,3.15.1,4.2.7,
52,53.1,54.1,624,73,74,82,92,83.1,933,
94.1,95,906,9.7,9.8,9.9,9.10, 11.1.3, }1.3.1.5,
11.3.6,11,3.10, 12.2, 13.5, 13.7, 14, 15

Loss of Use Insurance

11.3.3
Init AlA Document A201™ - 2007. Copyright ©® 1811, 1915, 1818, 1825, 1937, 1951, 1968, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1987 and 2007 by The American
nit. Institute of Architects. AlE rights reserved WARNING: This AEA@ Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties, Unauthorized 6
reproduction or distribution of this AIA* Document, or any portion of it, may result In severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the
! maxinum extent possible under the law. This document was produced by AlA software at 16:18:24 on 08/22/2013 under Order No.1384003459_1 which

expires on 11/30/2013, and is not for resale.

User Notes: (1231772244)



init.

19,104, 1221
< Notice . i, ' e

-'221 231 241 3'24 3.3,1, 372 3129 5.2.1,
9.7, 910 1022, 1

Lo Ly
: :231 24

Material Suppliers
1.5,3.12,1,42.4,42.6,52.1,93,9.42,96,9.105

Materials, Hazardous
10.2:4,10.3

Materials, Labor, Equipment and
1,1.3,1.1.6, 151 3.4.1,3.5,3.82,3.83,3.12,

'”3B1315142642752]621737931
9.3.3,9.5.1.3,9.10.2, ]02]2 10.2.4, 14.2.1.1,
214212

* - ‘Means, Methods, Technlques Sequences and
~Procedures of Construction
33.1,3.12.10,4.2.2, 427 942

Mechanic’ s Lten

l_'langes in the Work
2i8 4 2 8 1. I 7 4

._1_,3 12,2.2.1, 133 13.5.1,
1352:' 14,1, 142 1528 1541
rltten o

TR j1139231293121052197
©910,00.22,103, 1113, 1136, 122.2.1,13.3, 14,
-15.2.8,15.4.1 G

Notice of Claims *
374 10.2.8,15,1,2, 154

Notice of Testi g_and Enspectlons

13.5.1, 13.5;

i Obsewatmu_s _Contlactm 5
32,374 :

Occupancy

2.2:2,9.6.0, 98 ]]315

Owner, Definition of
2.1.1

Owner, Information and Services Required of the
2,1.2,22,322,3.12.10,6.13,6.14,62.5,93.2,
9.6.1,964,992, 9103, 10.3.3, 11.2, 11.3, 13.5.1,
13.52,14.1.1.4,14.1.4, 15.1.3

Owner’s Authority
1.5,2.1.1,2.3.1,2.4.1,3.4.2,3.8.1,3.12.10,3.14.2,
4.12,413,42.4,429,52.1,524,54.1,6.1,6.3,
7.2.1,7.3.1,822,83.1,9.3.1,93.2,951,9.6.4,
99.1,9.10.2,103.2, 11.1.3,11.3.3, 11.3,10, 1222,
12.3.1,13.2.2, 143, 144, 1527

Owner’s Financial Capability
22.1,1322,14.1.14

Owner’s Liability Insurance

11.2

Owner’s Relationship with Subcontractors
1.1.2,52,53,54,964,9.102, 1422

Owner’s Right to Carry Out the Work

2.4, 1422

Owner’s Right to Clean Up

6.3

Owner’s Right to Perform Construction and to
Award Separate Confracts

6.1

Owner’s Right to Stop the Work

2.3

Owner’s Right to Suspend the Work

14.3

Owner’s Right to Terminate the Contract

14.2

Ownership and Use of Drawings, Specifications
and Other Instruments of Serviee
i.1.1,1.1.6,1.1.7,1.5,2.2.5,3.2.2,3.11.1, 3.17,
42.12,53.1

Partial Occupancy or Use

9.6.6,9.9, 11.3.15

Patching, Cutting and

314,625

Patents

3.17

Payment, Applications for
425,739,9.2,93,94,95,963,97,9.85,9.10.1,
14.2.3,142.4, 1443

Payment, Certificates for
425,429,93.3,94,95,96.1,96.6,9.7,2.10.1,
9.10.3,13.7, 14.1.1.3,14.24

Payment, Failure of

9.5.1.3,97,9.10.2, 13.6, 14.1.1.3, 14.2.1.2
Payment, Final
42.1,429,982,910,11.1.2,11.1.3, 11.4.1, [2.3.1,
13.7,14.2.4, 1443

Payment Bond, Performance Bond and
7.3.74,9.6.7,9.10.3,11.4

Payments, Progress

9.3,9.6,9.8.5,9.103,13.6, 1423, 1513
PAYMENTS AND COMPLETION

9

AlA Document AZ01™ — 2007, Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925 1937, 1851, 1958, 1964, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 10687, 1997 and 2007 by The American
institute of Architects, All rights reserved WARNING: This AIAY Document is protected hy u.s. Copynght Law and international Treaties, Unauthorized
reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the
maximum extent possible under the law. This document was produced by AlA software af 15:18:24 on 08/22/2013 under Order No.1384003459_1 which

expires on $1/30/2013, and Is not for resale.
Liser Motes:

(1231772244)

7



inif.

10,3,
: Performance Bond and Payment Bond
..7.3.7.4,9.6.7,9.10.3,11.4
L Pcrmits, Fees, Notices and Compliance with Laws
~-2:2:2,3.7,3.13,7.3.74, 10,22
.- - PERSONS AND PROPERTY PROTECTION
. OF
10 :
- Polychlor mdted B:phenyi
110:3.1 S :
: ._;Pn oduct_Da a Def'm_mn of

.-]528 .;.
j'_'R_eJect:on of Wo k__ '

©3.3.2,3.18,4.
: 'Retamage
9:311,9.6.2, 98

Payments to Subcontractors
5.4.2, 9513 9.6.2,9.6.3,9.6.4,9.6.7,142.1.2
PCB_'S' e

982,0101
' -Representatwes

2.1.1,3.1.1,39, 4'3'14‘14"'2-2 42.10,5.1.1,
5.1.2,:13.2.1 et
Responsubﬂny for Those Perfox mmg the Work

5.3:1,6.1.3,62,6.3,9.5.1, 10

9:9:1,9.10.2,9.103
Review of Contract Documents and Field

_ Condltmns by Conn actor

3.10.1;3:10:2; 311 3.12,4.2,5.2,6.13,9.2,9.82
Review of Shop Drawings, Product Data and
Samples by Contractor

3.12

Rights and Remedics
1.1.2,2.3,24,3.5,3.74,3.152,4.2.6,5.3, 54, 6.1,
6.3,7.3.1,8.3,9.5.1,97,102.5, 103, 12.2.2, 12.2.4,
13.4, 14,154

Royalties, Patents and Copyrights

3.17

Rules and Notices for Arbitration

15.4.1

Safety of Persons and Property

10.2, 104

Safety Precautions and Programs
3.3.1,422,427,53.1,10.1, 10.2, 10.4
Samples, Definition of

3.12.3

Samples, Shop Drawings, Product Data and
311,312,427

Samples at the Site, Documents and

311

Schedule of Values

9.2,9.3.1

Schedules, Construction
3.10,3.12.1,3.12.2,6.1.3, 15.1.5.2

Separate Contracts and Contractors
1.1.4,3.12.5,3.14.2,424,42.7,6,83.1,12.1.2
Shop Drawings, Definition of

3.12.1

Shop Drawings, Product Data and Samples
3.11,3.12,4.27

Site, Use of

3.13,6.1.1, 6.2.1

Site Inspections
322,333,3.71,3.74,42,942,0.10.1, 13.5
Site Visits, Architect’s
374,422,42.9,942,95.1,992,9.10.1, 13.5
Special Inspections and Testing
426,12.2.1,13.5

Specifications, Definition of

1.1.6

Specifications

111,116,122, 1.5,3.11,3.12.10,3.17,4.2.14
Statute of Limifations

13.7,15.4.1.1

Stopping the Work

2.3,9.7,10.3, 14.1

Stored Materials

6.2.1,93.2,102.1.2,10.2.4

Subcontractor, Definition of

5.1.1

SUBCONTRACTORS

5

Subcontractors, Work by
1.2.2,3.32,3.12,1,42.3,523,53,54,93.1.2,
9.6.7

Subcontractual Relations
5.3,54,93.1.2,9.6,9.10, 10.2.1, 14.1, 14.2.1

AlA Document A201™ —~ 2007, Copyright @ 1911, 1815, 1918, 1925 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved, WARNING: This AIAY Dacument is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and internatlonal Treatles. Unauthorized
reproduction or distribution of this AIA®* Document, or any portion of It, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the
maximum extent possible under the law. This document was produced by AlA software at 15.18:24 on 08/22/2013 under Order No.1384003459_1 which

expires on 11/30/2013, and is not for resale.
User Notes:

(1231772244)

8



5.412,9.85,9.10.2,9.10 314221527

. Su: veys :

Submittals
3.10,3.11,3.12,42.7,52.1,52.3,7.3.7,9.2, 9.3,

; -_-98 9:9_.'-_1 9. 102 9,103, 11.1.3
‘Submittal’ Schedule

3.10.2;3.12.5,4.2.7

- Subrogation, Waivers of
6,41511.3.7
- Substantlal Completion
-4.2.9,8.1.1,8.1.3, 823,942 9.8,99.1,9.10.3,
21222, 137 e
- Substantial Campletmn, Def nition of

9, 8.1 :
Substitutlon _f-Subcomractms
5;2.3, 524"

- '_Subsututlon of .Ai chltect
413

4_.’3__2,'10, ]2, 14, 15.1.3

Surcty,fConsent of
9.10:2,9.10.3"

2.2.3%

: Suspensmn by the Owner for Convemeuce

: Te: mmatzon by the' 0wncl for Cause

5:4.1.1,14.2,15.1.6:
Termination by the Owncl for Convenience
14,4 -

e = _-:I ermmatron of the Architect

he Contractor

.TERM!NATION OR SUSPENSION OF THE

Tests and Inspections
3.1.3,3.33,42.2,426,42.9,942,983,992,
9.10.1, 10.3.2, 11.4.1.1, 12.2.1, 13.5

TIME

8

Time, Delays and Extensions of
324,3.74,523,72.1,7.3.1,74,83,951,9.7,
10.3.2,10.4.1,14.3.2, 15.1.5, 15.2.5

Time Limits
2.1.2,22,24,322,3.10,3.11,3.12.5,3.15.1, 4.2,
52,53,54,624,73,74,82,92,9.3.1,9.3.3,
94.1,95,96,9.7,98,9.9 910, 11.1.3, 2.2, 13.5,
13.7, 14, 15.1.2, 154

Time Limits on Claims
3.74,102.8,13.7,15.1.2

Title to Work

032,933

Transmission of Data in Digital Form

1.6

UNCOVERING AND CORRECTION OF
WORK

12

Uncovering of Work

12.1

Unforescen Conditions, Concealed or Unknown
3,7.4,8.3.1,10.3

Unit Prices

7.332,734

Use of Documents

1.1.1,1.5,2.2.5,3.12.6,5.3

Use of Site

3.13,6.1.1,6.2.1

Values, Schedule of

9,2,93.1

Waiver of Claims by the Architect

1342

Waiver of Claims by the Contractor
9.10.5,13.4.2, 15.1.6

Waiver of Claims by the Owner
9.9.3,9.10.3,9.104, 1222.1,13.4.2, 1424, 15.1.6
Waiver of Consequential Damages

14.2.4,15.1.6

Waiver of Liens

9.10.2,9.10.4

Waivers of Subrogation

6.1.1, 11L.3.7

Warranty
3.5,42.9,933,9.84,99.1,9.104,12.22,137
Weather Delays

15.1.52

Work, Definition of

1.1.3

Written Consent
1.52,342,3.74,3.12.8,3.14.2,4.1.2,9.32,9.85,

CONTRACT 0.9.1,9.102,9103,11.4.1,13.2,13.4.2, 15442
14 Written Interpretations
42.11,42.12
Init AlA Document A201™ - 2007, Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1868, 1970, 1876, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American
nit. Institute of Architects. All rights reserved WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and international Treaties. Unauthorized
reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the
i maximuim extent possible under the law. This document was produced by AlA software at 15:18:24 on 08/22/2013 under Order No.1384003458_1 which

expires on 11/30/2013, and is not for resaie,
User Notes: (1231772244)



Written Notice Written Orders

$02.3,24,33.1,3.9,3.12.9,3.12.10,5.2.1, 82.2,9.7, 1.1.1,2.3,3.9,7,82.2,12.1,12.2, 13.5.2, 14.3.1,
9.10,:10:2.2, 10.3,11.1.3,12.2.2, 12.2.4, 13.3, 14, 15.1.2

154,01

AlA Document A201™ - 2007, Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1851, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American

Init. Inslitute of Architests. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unaathorized 10
reproduction or distribution of this AIAY Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the
I maximum extent possible under the law. This document was produced by AlA software at 15:18:24 on 08/22/2013 under Order No.1384003459_1 which

expires on 11/30/2013, and is not for resale.
User Notes: {1231772244)



ARTICLE1 GENERAL PROVISIONS
§ 1.1 BASIC DEFINITIONS
- §1.1.1.THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS
Th'_e:C_on_tract Documents are enumerated in the Agreement between the Owner and Contractor (hereinafier the
- Agreement) and consist of the Agreement, Conditions of the Contract (General, Supplementary and other
Conditions), Drawings, Specifications, Addenda issued prior to execution of the Contract, other documents listed in
: _'.the Agreement and Modifications issued after execution of the Coniract. A Modification is (1) a written amendment
to'the Contract signed by both parties, (2) a Change Order, (3) a Construction Change Directive or (4) a written
- .. order for a minor change in the Work issued by the Architect. Unless specificatly enumerated in the Agreement, the
-+~ Contract Documents donot include the advertisement or invitation to bid, Instructions to Bidders, sample forms,
~“other infor matlon fumlshed by the Owner in anticipation of receiving bids or proposals, the Contractor’s bid ar
: p1 oposa! or: port:ons Of Addenda relating to bidding requirements.

._._§ 1 1 2 THE. CONTRACT

3_.The Contract: Documents fOl m the Contract for Construction. The Contract represents the entire and integrated

. agr cement be_tween the parties hereto and supersedes prior negotiations, representations or agreements, either written
or-oral: Th Contraet may: be amended or modified only by a Modification. The Contract Documents shall not be
-constlue_d to'create a contraetua] relationship of any kind (1) between the Contractor and the Architect or the

- Architect’s consul tants (2) ‘between the Owner and a Subcontractor or a Sub-subcontractor, (3) between the Owner

and the Architect or the Architect’s consultants or (4) between any persons or entities other than the Owner and the
Contractor, The Architect: shall; however, be entitled to performance and enforcement of obligations under the
Couhact mtended-to_ facsinate performance of the Architect’s duties,

_'§113THEWORK_ '
o The term, "Work" ineans:the construction and services required by the Contract Documents, whether completed or
. -par tlally.completed and mcludes all othet lab01 materials, eqUIpment and services pr 0v1ded or to be pr 0v1ded by

.'§1 1 5 THE DRAWENGS S
e N he Dl aWings ; are ihe graphlc and plCtOI 1al portions of the Cont:act Documents showmr:, thc desi gn location and

§ 1 1 6THE _SPECIFICATIONS R
The. Spec'f ations are that'portlon of Lhe Contract Documents consisting of the written requirements for materials,
-.equlpment _‘_ystems ‘standards’ and workmanship for the Work, and performance of related services.

' -§ 1 1 7 INSTRUMENTS OF: SERV!CE
Instruments ‘of Service ‘are representations in any medium of expression now known or later developed, of the
tangtble and mtanglble creative work performed by the Architect and the Architect’s consultants under their
‘respective:professional services agreements Instruments of Service may include, without limitation, studies,
surveys, models sketches drawings, specifications, and other similar materials.

§1.1.8 iNITIAL--DE_C__iSi_ON MAKER
The Initial Decision Maker is the person identified in the Agreement to render initial decisions on Claims in
-accordan ith Section 15.2 and certify termination of the Agreement under Section 14.2.2.

"~ §1.2CORRELATION AND INTENT OF THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

L g intent of the Contract Documents is to include all items necessary for the proper execution and
-completlon of the Work by the Contractor. The Contract Documents are complementary, and what is required by
one shall be as binding as if required by all; performance by the Contractor shall be required only to the extent
consistent with the Contract Documents and reasonably inferable from them as being necessary to produce the
indicated results.

AlA Document A201™ - 2007, Copyright ® 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1870, 1976, 1987, 1957 and 2007 by The American

Init, Instifute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: Thls AIA“’ Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and Enternationat Treaties. Unauthorized 11
reproducilon or distribution of this AA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the
! maximum extent possible under the law. This document was produced by AlA software at 15:18:24 on 08/22/2013 under Order No,1384003458_1 which

expires on 11/30/2013, and is not for resale.
User Notes: {1231772244)



Init.

§ ‘l 4 INTERPRETATlo.
.~ Inthe interest of bre
~“articles such as "the! and
- another 15-11 :

; :_§ 152 The Contractor :
- Cand: reproduce ‘the Instruments.of Service provided to them solely and exclusively for execution of the Work. Al
“copies made undcr this authorization shall bear the copyright notiee, if any, shown on the Instruments of Service.

o ARTICLE 2. OWNER
_ :'.:_§21GENERAL ;
0§20 The, Owner is: the person or enuty identified as such in the Agreement and is referred to throughout the

- Contract Documents as if singular in number. The Owner shall designate in writing a representative who shall have

§ 1.2.2 Organization of the Specifications into divisions, sections and articles, and arrangement of Drawings shali not

_control the Contractor in dividing the Work among Subcontractors or in establishing the extent of Work to be
“performed by any trade.

'§ 1:2.3'Unless otherwise stated in the Contract Documents, words that have well-known technical or construction
industry meanings are used in the Contract Documents in accordanee with such recognized meanings.

513 CAPITALIZATION
.. Terms capitalized in these General Conditions include those that are (1) specifically defined, (2) the titles of
s numbel ed alttcles or (3)}the titles of other decuments published by the American Institute of Architects.

_the Contract Documents frequently omit modifying words such as "all” and "any" and
Yan," but the fact that a modifier or an article is absent from one statement and appears in
;mtended‘to affect the interpretation of either statement.

1_ :§ 1 5 OWNERSHIP AND USE OF_DRAWINGS SPECIFICATIONS AND OTHER INSTRUMENTS OF SERVICE
- § 154 he Architect.and the Architect’s consultants shall be deemed the authors and owners of their respective
. Instruments of Serwce mclud;ug the Dxawm;,s and Spec1ﬁcat10ns and will retain all common law statutory and

"'_'_'qubhcat" 'n in derogatxon of. the Architect’s or Architect’s consultants’ reserved rlghts

ubcontractors, Sub-subcontractors and material or equipment suppliers are authorized fo use

The € ontractor, Subcontractors Sub-subcontractors, and material or equipment suppliers may not use the
Instruments of Servnce on other projects or for additions to this Project outside the scope of the Work without the

: _spccaﬁc‘wl-ltten consent of the Owner, Architect and the Architect’s consultants.

._i:§ 1.6 TRANSMISSION OF DATA IN DIGITAL FORM
" Ifthe partics mtend to fransmit 1nstruments of Service or any other information or documentation in digital form,
; ;-they sha]l endeavor 6 establish'r necessary protocols governing such transmissions, unless otherwise already

reemenl or the'Contract Docwnents,

express authority to. bmd__the_Owne: with respect to all matters requiring the Owner’s approval or authorization.
Except as otherwise provided in Section 4.2.1, the Architect does not have such authority. The ferm "Owner" means
the .OWDBI or the Owri s ulhorlzed representative,

':;§ 2.1.2 The Owner shall furnish to the Contractor within fifteen days after receipt of a written request, information

. necessary an; rel
“information shall'inelude a correct statement of the record legal title to the property on which the Project is located,

nt for the Contractor to evaluate, give notice of or enforce mechanic’s lien rights. Such

usuallyleﬁaued 1o as the site, and the Owner’s interest therein.

' -_:§ & 2 INFORMATiON AND SERVICES REQUIRED OF THE OWNER

‘commencement of the Work, the Contractor may request in writing that the Owner provide
nce that the Owner has made financial arrangements to fulfill the Owner’s obligations under the

Contract: Thereafter, the Contractor may only request such evidence if (1) the Owner fails to make payments to the

Contractor as the Contract Documents require; (2) a change in the Work materially changes the Contract Sum; or (3)
the Contractor identifies in writing a reasonable concern regarding the Owner’s ability to make payment when due.
The Owner shall furnish such evidence as a condition precedent to commencement or continuation of the Work or

AlA Document A201™ — 2007, Copyright @ 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1987 and 2007 by The American
institute of Architects. All rights reserved WARNING This AIA® Document Is protected by .8, Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized
reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penaities, and will be prosecuted to the
maximum extent possible under the law. This document was produced by AIA software at 15;18:24 on 08/22/2013 under QOrder No. 1284003459 _1 which

expires on 11/30/2013, and is not for resate.
Lser Notes: (1231772244)



the portion of the Work affected by a material change. After the Owner furnishes the evidence, the Owner shall not
mat 1a11y vary such financial arrangements without prior notice to the Contractor,

B § 2 2.2 Except for permits and fees that are the responsibility of the Contractor under the Contract Documents,
“including those required under Section 3.7.1, the Owner shall secure and pay for necessary approvals, easements,
assessments and charges required for construclion, use or occupancy of permanent structures or for permanent
' _chan'g"e's in existing facilities,

§2 2.3 The Owner shall furnish surveys describing physical characteristics, legal limitations and utility locations for
the site of the Project, dnd a legal description of the site. The Contractor shall be entitled to rely on the accuracy of
“information. fumlshed by 1he Owner but shall exercise proper precautions relating to the safe performance of the
' -Wm k. ;

-.§ 2 2 4 The ___Wner Sh 1iE fumash information or services required of the Owner by the Contract Documents with

" reasonable. pr ompmess The Owner shall also furnish any other information or services under the Owner’s control
and relevant to the Contractor’s performance of the Work with reasonable prompiness after receiving the

_:COI]U actor ’S'Wutten rec}uest for such information or services.

g § 2_2 5 Unless 0therw1se.pr0\f1ded in the Contract Documents the Owner shali fmmsh to the Contractor one copy of

-§ 2 4 owl R S RIGHT TO CARRY OUT THE WORK
If the Contr actor defaults:orneglects to carry out the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents and fails
within a ten-day -period after receipt of written notice from the Owner to commence and continue correction of such
'defauil or ieglect:with d]llgence and:promptness, the Owner may, without prejudice to other remedies the Owner
““may have, correct such deficiencies; In such case an appropriate Change Order shall be issued deductmg from
-paymems theu or thexeaﬁel due the Contractor the reasonable cost of correcting such deficiencies, including
- Qwner’s expenses and compensation for the Architect’s additional services made necessary by such default, neglect
or. fallure Such:action by the Owner.and amounts charged to the Contractor are both subject to prior approval of the
S yayments then or ther "_ﬂ:e: ‘due the Contractor are not sufficient to cover such amounts, the Contractor
L 'shaIl pay the differ ence to the Owner.’

"-?.ARTICLES CONTRACTOR
§3.1 GENERAL
§ 3.11 The Contractor-is the person or entity identified as such in the Agreement and is referred to throughout the
‘Contract:.Documents as if smgulal in number, The Contractor shall be lawfully licensed, if required in the

jur isdiction where the Project is located. The Contractor shall designate in writing a representative who shall have

express auth_oi__i_t_y ind the Contractor with respect to all matters under this Contract. The term "Contractor” means
the Contractor:or'the Contractor’s authorized representative.

§3.1.2 The Contractor shall perform the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents.

ie Contractor shall not be relieved of obiigations to perform the Work in accordance with the Contract
by activities or duties of the Architect in the Ar chitect’s administration of the Contract, or by tests,
mspectlons of approvals required or performed by persons or entities other than the Contractor,

AlA Document A201™ - 2007, Copyright € 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925 1037, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1876, 1987, 1897 and 2007 by The American

Init. Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AlA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized 13
reproduction or distribution of this AIA* Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penaities, and will be prosecuted to the
/ maximum extent possible under the taw, This document was produced by AtA software at 15:18:24 on 08/22/2013 under Order No.1384003459_1 which

expires on 11/30/2013, and is not for resale,
User Notes: (1231772244)



§ 3.2 REVIEW OF CONTRACT DOCUMENTS AND FIELD CONDITIONS BY CONTRACTOR
~ §3.21 Execution of the Contract by the Coniractor is a representation that the Contractor has visited the site,
SRR '--becoine;genelally familiar with local conditions under which the Work is to be performed and correlated personal
" ."‘obsérvations with requirements of the Contract Documents.

- §3,2.2 Because the Contract Documents are complementary, the Contractor shall, before starting each portion of the
. Work; carefully study and compare the various Contract Documents reative to that portion of the Work, as well as
“*the‘information furnished by the Owner pursuant to Section 2.2.3, shall take field measurements of any existing

- conditions related to that portion of the Work, and shall observe any conditions at the site affecting it. These

" obligations are for the: purpose of facilitating coordination and construction by the Contractor and are not for the
-'-_'1_.purpose of dlSCOVC! mg ‘errors, omissions, or inconsistencies in the Contract Docwments; however, the Contractor

. ’shal “to:the Architect any errors, inconsistencies or omissions discovered by or made known to the

: -'Contracton_as_ 'request for information in such form as the Architect may require. It is recognized that the

' Contractor’s review is; made i in the Contractor’s capacity as a contractor and not as a licensed design professional,
.unless otherwise speclﬂcally-.provxded in the Contract Documents.

; '-§ 3 2 3 The _Contr_actor_ is not lequned to ascertain thai the Contract Documents are in accmdance with ’!pplICdb]e

§ 3 3.1 The Contr act01 shail supervise dnd direct the Work, using the Contractor’s best skili and attention. The
. Contracior shall be soleiy 1esponsrb1e for, and have control over, construction means, methods, techniques,
: -sequcnces andiprocedures and for-coordinating all portions of the Work under the Contract, unless the Contract
. Documents. ;Dlv_e'othel specific instructions concerning these matters. 1f the Contract Documents give specific
: _'mstructions concermng constructmn means, methods, techmques sequcnces or plocedures the Contracto: shall

. .f'_._‘safety of suchi means, methods ‘techniques, sequences or procedm es. If the Contractor determines that such means,
- methods, techniques, sequences or procedures may not be safe, the Contractor shall give timely written notice to the
““Owner:and Architect. and shall not proceed with that portion of the Work without further written instructions from
the Ar chitect. If the Cor tractor-'s_ then instructed to proceed with the required means, methods, techniques,
sequences or procedures without aceeptance of changes proposed by the Contractor, the Owner shall be solely
~_responsible for any ioss or damage arising solely from those Owner-required means, methods, techniques, sequences
or pwcedures :

: § -3.'3.2 The Cor’itr'a’etoféhali be responsible to the Owner for acts and omissions of the Contractor’s employees,
Subcontractors and their agents and employees, and other persons or entities performing portions of the Work for, or
-on behalf.of, .tlle.Coutractor or any of its Subcontractors.

i § 3 3.3:The. ontractm shall be responsible for inspection of portions of Work already performed to determine that
S ‘in proper condition to receive subsequent Work.

§3.4LABOR AND MATERIALS

§ 3.4.1 Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall provide and pay for labar,
materials, equipment, tools, construction equipment and machinery, water, heat, utilities, transportation, and other

AlA Document A201™ = 2007. Copyright @ 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1851, 1958, 1961, 1063, 1966, 1970, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American

Init. Institute of Architects, Al rights reser\red WARNING: This AIA’ Document is protected by U.8. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized 14
reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Docuiment, or any pertion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the
/ maximum extent possible under the law. This document was produced by AlA software at 15:18:24 on 08/22/2013 under Order No.1384003459_1 which

expires on 11/30/2013, and is not for resale,
User Notes: (1231772244)



facilities and services necessary for proper execution and completion of the Work, whether temporary or permanent
and whether or not incorporated or to be incorporated in the Work.

§342 ]:_}{cept in the case of minor changes in the Work authorized by the Architect in accordance with Sections
3.12.8 or 7.4, the Contractor may make substitutions only with the consent of the Owner, after evaluation by the
. Architect and in accordance with a Change Order or Construction Change Directive.

B §343 The Contractor shall enforce strict discipline and good order among the Contractor’s employees and other

Init.

. § 3 5 WARRANTY ey

: The Contractor warrants to the Owner and Architect that materials and equipment furnished under the Contract will
- beof good; quality and new unless the Contract Documents require or permit otherwise. The Contractor further

- warrants that the Work wnll conform to the lcqun ements of lhe Contract Documents and w1l] be ﬁee from defects

. persons carrying out the Work The Contractor shall not permit employment of unfit persons or persons not properly

skilled in tasks a551gne to them.

_;'The C()ntréctm shall pay sales_ consumel use and similar taxes for the Work provided by the Contractor that are
. legally enacted when bids are received or negotiations concluded, whether or not yet effective or merely scheduled
B "to go into eﬁ”ect

. § 3. 7 PERMITS FEES NOTICES AND COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS
83T Unless otherw1se pre wided in the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall secure and pay for the building
' pemmt as well as for other permits, fees, licenses, and inspections by government agencies necessary for proper
;execut:on and compleuon ‘of the Work that are customarily secured after execution of the Confract and legally
_ reqmred _at the time bids are recerved or negotiations concluded.

;'_ § 3 7 2 The Contiactor sha!l comply w1111 and give notices required by applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, codes,
- Z-rules _a' d 1cz,ula£'on J

I'dClS .of public authorities applicable to performance of the Work.

and ]awf'l

. §3731f the Contl.actof performs Work knowing it to be conirary to applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, codes,
e rules andlegulatlons or lawful‘orders of public autharities, the Contractor shall assume appropriate responsibility
" '_.f-'_for such Waork and shall bear't

ts attl ibutable to correction.

 :§ 3 7.4 Conccalcd or Unknown Cond:tmns If the Contractor encounters conditions at the site that are (1)
~subsurface or-otherwise conceaf_ed physical conditions that differ materially from those indicated in the Contract

Documents or {2) unknown yswal conditions of an unusual nature, that differ materially from those ordinarily
found-to exist and generaﬂy recogmzed as inherent in coustruction activities of the character provided for in the

+ Contract. Documents, the Contractor shal promptly provide notice to the Owner and the Architect before conditions
are dlsturbed ‘and inno event later than 21 days after first observance of the conditions. The Architect will promptly

onditions and, if the Architect determines that they differ materially and cause an increase or

" decrease in the Contractor’s cost of, or time required for, performance of any part of the Work, will recommend an

equitable adjustment in the Contract Sum or Contract Time, or both. If the Architect determines that the conditions

~at, the, s;te arenot matel Iaily different ﬁom those md1cated inthe Contl act Documents and that no change in the

§ 3.7.5 If, in the course of the Work, the Contractor encounters human remains or recognizes the existence of burial
markers, archaeological sites or wetlands not indicated in the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall immediately
suspend any operations that would affect them and shall notify the Owner and Architect. Upon receipt of such
notice, the Owner shall promptly take any action necessary to obtain governmental authorization required to resume

AlA Document A201™ = 2007, Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1866, 1970, 1976, 1087, 1897 and 2007 by The American
Institute of Architects, All rights resenred WARNING: This AIA” Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized
reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may resuit in severe civil and criminal penaities, and will be prosecuted to the
maximum extent possible under the law. This document was produced by AlA software at 15:18:24 on 08/22/2013 under Order No.1384003459_1 which

expires on 11/30/2013, and is not for resale.

User Notes: (1231772244)

15



the operations, The Contractor shall continue to suspend such operations until otherwise instructed by the Owner but

shali continue with all other opcxations that do not affect those remains or features. Requests for adjustments in the
o Contract Sum and Contract Time arising from the existence of such remains or features may be made as provided in
~Ar tche 15

§ 3.__8:ALLOWANCES

'§.3,8.1 The Contractor shall include in the Contract Sum all allowances stated in the Contract Documents. ltems
covered by allowances shall be supplied for such amounts and by such persons or entities as the Owner may direct,
but the Contractor shall not be required to employ persons or entities to whom the Confractor has reasonable

_objecuon

3 § 3 8.2 Unlcss olhel wise prov:ded in the Contract Documents,
NE “Allowances shall cover the cost to the Contractor of materials and equipment delivered at the site and
iall 1equ' ed taxes, less apphcabfe trade dlscounts

_.Whenever ( sts‘ are more than or less than allowances, the Contract Sum shall be adjusted
: _faccordmgiy by Change Order. The amount of the Change Order shall reflect (1) the difference
. between actual costs and the allowances under Section 3.8.2.1 and (2) changes in Contractor’s costs
i _3under Section 3 8 2.2.

:§ 3 8 3 Materials and eqmpment under an allowance shall be selected by the Owner with reasonable promptness.

i §3. 9.4 The _Céhuactbr shall employ a competent superintendent and necessary assistants who shall be in attendance
crat the-Pro_;ect site during performance of the Work. The superintendent shall represent the Contractor, and
- 'commumcatzons gwen to the ‘superintendent shall be as binding as if given to the Contractor.

& 3 9 2 he'Conﬂactm “d5's00n as practicable after award of the Contract, shall furnish in writing to the Owner
“thr ough the Architect the nanie and qualifications of a proposed superintendent. The Architect may reply within 14
days 10 the Contractor in writing stating (1) whether the Owner or the Architect has reasonable objection to the
pr nposed super mtendmt or (2) that the Architect requires additional tiine to review. Failure of the Architect to reply
--..thhan the.14 day per md shall con __'__tute notice of no reasonable objection.

§393 ThE:ICOHtlaCtOI sha!l not empioy a proposed superintendent to whom the Owner or Architect has made
o rcasonable and timely objection: The Contractor shall not change the superintendent without the Owner’s consent,
' .'__;'whlch shall nol unr easonablyb' wil __heid or delayed.

§ 3 10 CONTRACTOR’S CONSTRUCTION SCHEDULES
'§3.10.1 The Contractor, .promptly after being awarded the Contract, shall prepare and submit for the Owner’s and
Architect’s information a' Contractor’s construction schedule for the Work. The schedule shall not exceed time limits
current under the Contract'Documents, shall be revised at appropriate intervals as required by the conditions of the

- - Work and Project, shall be’ related to the entire Project to the extent required by the Contract Documents, and shall
prowde for": XpedltIOUS and practicable execution of the Work,

' '§ 3 10 2 The Contractor shall prepare a submittal schedule, promptly after being awarded the Contract and thereafter
as necessary to maintain a current submittal schedute, and shall subinit the schedule(s) for the Architect’s approval.
. The Architect’s.approval shall not unreasonably be delayed or withheld. The submittal schedule shall (1) be
s ':coordlnated3w1th the Contractor’s construction schedule, and (2) allow the Architect reasonable time to review
_'submlttals Ifthe _Cont: actor fails to submit a submittal schedule, the Contractor shall not be entitled to any increase
' _'gm Contract Sum s or extension of Contract Time based on the time required for review of submittals.

§ 3 10 3 1!16 Cont: actor shall perform the Work in general accordance with the most recent schedules submiited to
the Owner and Architect.

AlA Document A204™ - 2007. Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1825, 1837, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1876, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American

Init. Institute of Architects, Alf rights reserved WARNING: This AEA® Document is protected by U.8. Copyright Law and international Treaties, Unauthorized 16
reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the
i maxlmum extent possible under the law. This document was preduced by AlA software at 15:18:24 on 08/22/2013 under Order No.1384003459_1 which

expires on 11/30/2013, and is not for resale.,
Usér Notes: (1231772244)



§ 3.11 DOCUMENTS AND SAMPLES AT THE SITE
~ The Coniractor shall maintain at the site for the Owner one copy of the Drawings, Specifications, Addenda, Change
_ Orders and other Modifications, in good order and marked currently to indicate field changes and selections made
- duri ing (,onst: uction, and one copy of approved Shop Drawings, Product Data, Samples and similar required
" submittals. These shall be available to the Architect and shall be delivered to the Architect for submittal to the
- .Ownez pon completion of the Work as a record of the Work as constructed.

i '§ 3 12 SHOP DRAWINGS, PRODUCT DATA AND SAMPLES
§ 3.12.1 Shop Drawings are drawings, diagrams, schedules and other data specially prepared for the Work by the
. _fConitactm or:a Subcontraclm Sub-subcontractor, manufacturer, supplier or distributor to illusirate some portion of
; 'the Work. -

E '§ 3 12 2 Pr oduct Dala are illustrations, standard schedules, performance charts, instructions, brochures, diagrams and
othel mformatlon furnished by the Contractor to illustrate materials or equipment for some portion of the Worlk.

: § 3 12 3 Sampies are: physmal examples that illustrate materials, equipment or workmanship and establish standards
_ by whloh the. Work'wﬂl be judged

._§ 3. 12 4 Shop Dra wings, P duet Data, Samples and similar submittals are not Contract Documents. Their purpose is

“ to.demonstrate the way bysWIllch the Contractor proposes to conform to the information given and the design
concept expressed in'the Contract Documents for those portions of the Work for which the Contract Documents
require submittals. ‘Review by the Architect is subject to the limitations of Section 4.2.7. Informational submittals

upon whlch the Architect is not expected to take responsive action may be 50 identlﬁed in the Contt act Documents

_ .the Owner and Al cjﬁitect that the. Conu actor has (1) zewewed and approved them, (2) determined and verified
_ materials; field measurements and field construction criteria related thereto, or will do so and (3} checked and
; comdmated th '-mformation contamed within such submittals with the requirements of the Work and of the Contract

. and lewew_- . .Shop Drawmgs Product Data, SampEes or smuia1 submittals until the respectlve submlttal has been
o approved by ‘the Archltect

§ 3 12 8 The W01k shall be in‘accordance with approved submittals except that the Contractor shall not be relieved of
lesponSIblhiy for dev:atlons from Tequirements of the Contract Documents by the Architect’s approval of Shop
Drawings, Product Data, Samples or similar submittals unless the Contractor has specifically informed the Architect
“in writing of suoh deviation at the time of submittal and (1) the Architect has given written approval to the specific
~deviation as a‘ming {change in the Wark, or (2) a Change Order or Construction Change Directive has been issued
‘authorizing thedeviation. The Contractor shall not be relicved of responsibility for errors or omissions in Shop
Drawings, Product Data, Samples or similar submittals by the Architect’s approval thereof.

§ 3 12 9 The Conti actor shall direct specﬂ' ¢ attention, in writing or on resubmitted Shop Drawings, Product Data,
1ilar submittals, to revisions other than those requested by the Architect on previous submittals. In the
written notice, the Architect’s approval of a resubmission shall not apply to such revisions.

§ 312,10 The Contractor shall not be required to provide professional services that constitute the practice of
architecture or engineering unless such services are specifically required by the Contract Documents for a portion of
the Worlk or unless the Contractor needs to provide such services in order to carry out the Contractor’s
responsibilities for construction means, methods, techniques, sequences and procedures. The Contractor shall not be

AlA Document A201™ - 2007, Copyright @ 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925 1037, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1968, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American

init. institute of Architects. All rights reserved WARNING: This AIA Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized 17
reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civit and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the
/ maximum extent possible under the law. This document was produced by AlA software at 15:18:24 on 08/22/2013 under Order No.1384003459_1 which

expires on 11/30/2013, and is not for resale.

User Notes: {1231772244)



required to provide professional services in violation of applicable law. 1f professional design services or
certifications by a design professional related to systems, materials or equipment are specifically required of the
. Contractor by the Contract Documents, the Owner and the Architect will specify all performance and design criteria
o ghat such services must satisfy. The Contractor shall cause such services or certifications to be provided by a
" properly licensed design professional, whose signature and seal shall appear on all drawings, calculations,
.. specifications, certifications, Shop Drawings and other submittals prepared by such professional, Shop Drawings
. and other submittals related to the Work designed or certified by such professional, if prepared by others, shall bear
"-suchprofessional’s written approval when submitted to the Architect. The Owner and the Architect shall be entitled
. torely upon the adequacy, accuracy and completeness of the services, certifications and approvals per formed or
' -._'prov1ded by such design professionals, provided the Owner and Architect have specified to the Contractor all
perfor mance and de51gn criteria that such services must satisfy. Pursuant to this Section 3.12.10, the Architect will
" ::rewew approve:or take other appropriate aetion on submittals only for the limited purpose of checkmg for
. ‘conformance with information given and the design concept expressed in the Contract Documents. The Contractor
“shall not be respon31ble_f01 the adequacy of the performance and design criteria specified in the Contract
_ Documents

§313USE _oF SiTE:

perations at the site to areas permitted by applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, codes,
ful orders of public authorities and the Contract Documents and shall not unreasonably
r;als or equipment,

§ 3.14 CUTTiNG AND PATCHING

--§3, 14.1The Contractor shall be responsible for cutting, fitting or patching required to complete the Work or to make

% :.1ts parts fit tog' ther: propel A_H areas requiring cutting, fitting and paichin g shall be restored to the condition
_emstmg prlor to the cuttin; __.ﬁttmg and patching, unless otherwise required by the Centract Documents,

=

_§ 3 14 2 The Contractor shall not damage or endanger a portion of the Work or fully or partially eompleted
construction ofithe’ Owner 1'_'.sepa1 ate contractors by cutting, patching or otherwise altering such construction, or by
' excavatlon The Con ractor. shall not cut or otherwise alter such construction by the Owner or a separate contractor
, jith written consent of the Owner and of such separate contractor; such consent shall not be unreasonably
:w:thhe!d;' The Contractor: shall not unreasonably withhold from the Owner or a separate contractor the Contractor’s
_conscnt to cuttmg or othex wase aite1 ng: the Work.

53 1SCLEAN_ING Up Siand
: § 3 15 1 Tl_, Cont; actor shall keep the premmeb and suuoundmg area free ﬁom accumulatmn of waste materials or

'§ 3 18. 2 If the Contractm fails to clean up as provided in the Contract Documents, the Owner may do so and Owner
shall be enutIed to 1e1mbursement from the Contractor.

§316ACCESS TO WORK : i
The (,ont: actor shall pr ovide the Owner and Architect access to the Work in preparation and progress wherever

:' _ located

' § 3 17 ROYALTIES, PATENTS AND COPYRIGHTS
The Contractor shall pay all royalties and license fees. The Contractor shall defend suits or claims for infringement
of copyr Jghts and patent rights and shall hold the Owner and Architect harmiess from loss on account thereof, but

: onsible for such defense or loss when a particular design, process or product of a particular

manufacturers is required by the Contract Documents, or where the copyright violations are

_ Drawings, Specifications or other documents prepared by the Owner or Architect. However, if the

"Contractm ~has reason to believe that the r equired design, process or product is an infringement of a copyright or a
patent, the Contractor shall be responsible for such loss unless such information is promptly furnished to the
Architect.

N AlA Document A204™ - 2007, Copyright @ 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1087, 1997 and 2007 by The American
Init, Instifute of Architects. Al rights reserved WARNING This AlAY Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and international Treaties. Unautherized 18
reproductlon or distribution of this ALA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the
! maximum extent possible under the law. This document was produced by AlA software at 15:18:24 on 08/22/2013 under Order No.1384003459_1 which

expires on 11/30/2013, and is net for resale.
User Notes: (1231772244)



§ 3.18 INDEMNIFICATION
§ 3.18.1 To the fullest extent permitted by law the Contractor shalt indemnify and hold harmless the Owner,

- 'Ax_chltect Architect’s consultants, and agents and employees of any of them from and against claims, damages,
“losses and expenses, including but not limited to attorneys fees, arising out of or resulting from performance of the
‘Work; pl ovided that such claim, damage, loss or expense is atiributable to bodily injury, sickness, disease or death,
or.to injury to or destruction of tangible property (other than the Work itself), but only to the extent eaused by the

: Z-_neghgem acts or omissions of the Contractor, a Subcontractor, anyone directly or indirectly employed by them or
“anyone for whose acts they may be liable, regardless of whether or not such claim, damage, loss or expense is
_-.caused in part by a party indemnified hereunder. Such obligation shall not be construed to negate, abndgc or reduce
- other rights or _obhgailons_of indemnity that would otherwise exist as to a party or person described in this Section

| a.Slecontraetbr“ anyene d]rect!y or mdlrectly emp]oyed by them or anyone for whose acts they may be liable, the
catlon obhgatlon undet Sectlon 3. ]8 1 shal! not be lumted bya lnmtatlon on amount or type of damagcs

§4 1. 1'The Ownei shall retam an architect anﬁllly licensed to practice architecture or an entity lawfully practicing
3arch1tectur the 3Lulsd1ctlon whele the Project is Iocated That person or entlty is tdemlﬁed as the Architect in the

:"_§ 4 2 ADMINISTRAT!ON OF THE CONTRACT
'_§ 4.2, 1 Tile Archltect w111 pr OVIdc admmlsu atlon of the Cont; act as desm :bed in the Contract Documenis and WLIE be

X The ‘Architect'will visit the sité at intervals appropriate to the stage of construction, or as otherwise agreed
- with the Owner, to become generally familiar with the progress and quality of the portion of the Work completed,
cand 1o determine in, generdl if the Work observed is being performed in a manner indicating that the Work, when
fully, completed, will bein'accordance with the Contract Documents. However, the Architect will not be required to
make exhaustive or continuous on-site inspections to check the quality or quantity of the Work. The Architect will
onot have. control over, charge of, or responsibility for, the construction means, methods, techniques, sequences or
' _'._..procedures, or.for the safety precautions and programs in connection with the Work, since these are solely the
.*"Comlactm $ ght nd 1csp0ns1b1]111es under the Confract Documents, except as provided in Section 3.3.1.

£

§ 4 2.3 On the bﬂSlS of the site visits, the Architect will keep the Owner reasonably informed about the progress and
_quality.of the portion of the Work completed, and report to the Owner (1) known deviations from the Contract
: _Documeutsand from the most recent construction schedule submitted by the Contractor, and (2} defects and
_-deﬁcwn(:le observed in the Work, The Architect will not be responsible for the Contractor’s failure to perform the
: i dance with the requirements of the Contract Documents. The Architect will not have control over or
charge of and-w;ll not be responsible for acts or omissions of the Contractor, Subcontractors, or their agents or
employees, or any other persons or entities perforniing portions of the Work,

AlA Document A201™ ~ 2007, Copyright @ 1911, 1815, 1018, 1925 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1070, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American

Init. Institute of Architects. All rights reserved WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copynght Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized 19
reproduction or distribution of this AJA” Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the
f maximum extent possible under the law. This document was produced by AlA software at 15:18:24 on 08/22/2013 under Order No.1384003459,_ 1 which

expires on 11/30/2013, and is not for resaie.

User Notes: (1231772244)



§4.2.4 COMMUNICATIONS FACILITATING CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION
_ Except as otherwise provided in the Contract Documents or when direct communications have been specially
S d, the Owner and Contractor shall endeavor to communicate with each other through the Architect about
.r_nat:t_(_:rs_ i‘_lsmg out of or relating to the Contract. Conumunications by and with the Architect’s consultants shall be
.“through:the Architect. Communications by and with Subcontractors and material suppliets shall be through the
-.Contractor. Communications by and with separate contractors shall be through the Owner.

'§4.2.5 Based on the Architect’s evaluations of the Contractor’s Applications for Payment, the Architect will review
._-and certify the amounts due the Contractor and will issue Certificates for Payment in such amounts.

§4.2.6 The Alc!ntect has authority to reject Work that does not conform to the Contract Documents. Whenever the
: - Architect COl‘lSidBlS itn cessary or advisable, the Architect will have authority to require inspection or testing of the
:'_.Wo;k in accordance" th'Sections 13.5.2 and 13.5.3, whether or not such Work is fabricated, installed or completed.
- However, nelt_hel this authority of the Architect nor a decision made in good faith either to exercise or not to
“exercise such_ uthority shall give rise to a duty or responsibility of the Architect to the Contractor, Subcontractors,
_-matcna ’nd*equ;pl ent: suppllers their agents or employees, or other persons or entities performing portions of the

I of safet pi_'ecautions or .unless otherwise spec:ﬁcally stated by the Ar chitecl of any construction means, methods,
techmques, sequences or-procedures. The Architect’s approval of a specific item shall not indicate approval of an
_assembiy of wh]ch lhc_xtem is a component.

- .chang,es -m_the Work aé provaded 1;Se'ct1011 7.4, The Ar Chltect will mvestlgate dlld makc determinations and
' 1ecomm _1dat10ns regardmg, concealed and unknown conditions as provided in Section 3.7.4.

§4 2 1Th_e A1 chitect wr]] conduct inspections to determine the date or dates of Substantial Completlon and the date
cof fi nal-bompletmn issue Ce1 tlﬁcate of Substantial Completion pursuant to Section 9.8; receive and forward to the
“ " Owner, for the Owner’s review and records, written warranties and related documents required by the Contract and
"-"'-_:as ‘ mb]ed by the Contlact(n pursuant to Section 9.10; and issue a final Certificate for Payment pursuant to Section

- §4 2 10 1f the Owner and. _'rchrtect agree, the Architect will provide one or more project representatives to assist in
“carrying Oulgth_ Ar chitect’s reésponsibilities at the site. The duties, responsibilities and limitations of authority of
A such pr O]GCIZ e sentatwes shall be as set forth in an exhibit to be incorporated in the Contract Documents.

§ 4211 The Architect'will interpret and decide matters concerning performance under, and requirements of, the
Contract Documents on written request of either the Owner or Contractor. The Architect’s response to such requests
- will-be.made.n writing within any time limits agreed upon or otherwise with reasonable promptness.

7 §'4.2.12 Interpretations and decisions of the Architect will be consistent with the intent of, and reasonably inferable
-rom;the Contiact Documents and will be in writing or in the form of drawings. When making such interpretations
++ and decisions,:the Architect will endeavor to secure faithful performance by both Owner and Contractor, will not

show partiality to cither and will not be liable for results of interpretations or decisions rendered in good faith.

§ 4.2.13 The Architect’s decisions on matters relating to aesthetic effect will be final if consistent with the intent
expressed in the Contract Documents.

AlA Document A201™ ~ 2007. Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1818, 1925 1937, 1851, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American

Init. Institute of Architects. All rights reserved WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S, Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized 20
reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result Ih severe civil and criminai penalties, and will be prosecuted to the
{ maximusm extent possible under the [aw. This document was produced by AlA software at 15:18:24 on 08/22/2013 unger Order No.1384003459_1 which

expires on 11/30/2013, and is not for resale.
User Notes: (1231772244)



§ 4.2,14 The Architect will review and respond to requests for information about the Contract Documents. The
" Architect’s response to such requests will be made in writing within any time limits agreed upon or otherwise with
- reasonable promptness. If appropriate, the Architect will prepare and issue supplemental Drawings and
© . Specifications in response to the requests for information.

L ART_E__CLE 5 SUBCONTRACTORS
~§'5.1 DEFINITIONS
8511 A Subcontractoris a person or entity who has a direct contract with the Contractor to perform a portion of the
.~ Work at the site. The term "Subcontractor"” is referred to throughout the Contract Documents as if singular in
‘number and means a Subcontlactm or an authorized representative of the Subcontractor. The term "Subcontractor"
_".does not mclude a separate ‘contractor or subcontractors of a separate contractor.

.§ 5 1 2A Sub—subcontraetor is a person or entity who has a direct or indirect contract with a Subcontractor to

- perform a: portu)n of the_ka at the site, The term "Sub-subcontractor" is referred to throughout the Contract
'Z_Documents as if singular in' number and means a Sub-subcontractor or an authorized representative of the Sub-
: ::-_S_ubCOIItl actor

--Contreetor has made reasonabie objectron

§5.231f the Owner or Archlteel has reasonable objection to a person or entity proposed by the Contractor, the
_:Contractor shall: propose ‘another.to-whom the Owner or Architect has no reasonable objection. If the pr oposed but
“rejected Subcontractor was reasonably capable of performing the Work, the Contract Sum and Contract Time shall
“be mc:eased ‘or decreased by the'difference, if any, occasioned by such change, and an appr opnaie Change Order
'shall be issued efore commencement of the substitute Subcontractor’s Work, However, no increase in the Contract

i Sum or. Contract Time shall be; alIowed f01 such change unless the Contractor has acted promptly and responsively
n sublmttmg names as requ1red

: .f..§ 5 24 The Cont: actox shall not substltute a Subcontractor, person or entity previously selected if the Owner or
- Architect makes leasonable..objeclmn to such substitution,

§5.3 SUBCONTRACTUA : RELATiONS
By appr opnate agleement ‘written where legally required for validity, the Contractor shall require each
. Subcontractor; 1o the:extent of the Work to be performed by the Subcontractor, to be bound to the Contractor by
L Cterms of the Contract Documents, and to assume toward the Contractor all the obligations and responsibilities,
including the responsibility for safety of the Subcontractor’s Work, which the Contractor, by these Documents,
assumes toward the Owner and Architect. 2ach subcontract agreement shall preserve and protect the rights of the
- Owner.and Architect under the Contract Documents with respect to the Work to be performed by the Subcontractor
50 that subcontlactmg thereof will not prejudice such rights, and shall allow to the Subcontractor, unless specifically
: 'prowded otherwise in the subcontract agreement, the benefit of all rights, remedies and redress against the
' that the Contractor, by the Contract Documents, has against the Owner. Where appropriate, the
: --Contlactorshail require each Subcontractor to enter into similar agreements with Sub-subcontractors. The
Contractor shall make available to each proposed Subcontractor, prior to the execution of the subcontract agreement,
copies of the Contract Documents to which the Subcontractor will be bound, and, upon written request of the
Subcontractor, identify to the Subcontractor terms and conditions of the proposed subcontract agreement that may

AlA Document A201™ — 2007. Copyright © 1011, 1915, 1918, 1925 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1870, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American

Init. institute of Architects. All rights reserved WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected hy U.8, Copyright Law and !nternatlonai Treaties. Unauthorized 21
reproduction or distribution of this ALA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the
f maximum extent possible under the law. This document was produced by AlA software at 18:18:24 on 08/22/2013 under Order No.1384003459_1 which

axpires on 11/30/2013, and is not for resale.
User Notes: (1231772244}



be at variance with the Contract Documents. Subcontractors will similarly make copies of applicable portions of
such documents available to their respective proposed Sub-subcontractors.

. '§ 5.4 CONTINGENT ASSIGNMENT OF SUBCONTRACTS
.§ 5.4.1-Each subcontract agreement for a portion of the Work is assigned by the Contractor to the Owner, provided
that .
v 1 assignment is effective only after termination of the Contract by the Owner for cause pursuant to
Section 14.2 and only for those subcontract agreements that the Owner accepts by notifying the
Subcontractm and Contractor in wr iting, and

- “When the Owhéi accepts the assignment of a subcontract agreement, the Owner assumes the Contractor’s rights and
:obllgatlons undc: lhc subconttact

'_§ 5 4 2 Upon such aSSlgnment 1f the Work has been quspcnded for more than 30 days, the Subcentractor’s
' Lbe equ1tably adjusted for increases in cost resulting from the suspension.

.' ARTICLE 6 CONSTRUCTION BY OWNER OR BY SEPARATE CONTRACTORS
--'§ 6.1 _OWNER S RIGHT TO PERFORM CONSTRUCTION AND TO AWARD SEPARATE CONTRACTS

own forces, and to award separate contracts in connection with other portions of the Project or other construction or
.3.0pel ations on the site under Conditions of the Contract identical or substantially similar to these including those

portions: 1elated to insurance and waiver of subrogation. If the Contractor claims that delay or additional cost is

111v01ved because of such action by the Owner, the Contractor shall make such Claim as provided in Article 15.

'§ 6.1. 2 When s,eparate contracts are awarded for different portions of the Project or other construction or operations
on: the site, the. term; "Contractor”:in the Contract Documents in eacl case shall mean the Contractor who executes

_ each separate Owner- Contr actor Agx eerment.

-§6.1.3 The'O\wwr shali'pt ovide for coordination of the activities of the Owner’s own forces and of each separate
confractor. w:th the Work of the Contractor, who shall cooperate with them. The Contractor shall participate with
~ - other separate confractors, and the Owner in reviewing their construction schedules, The Contractor shall make any
“: revisions to the construction schedule deemed necessary after a joint review and mutual agreement. The construction
B _:schedufes shall then constltute the schedules to be used by the Contractor, separate contractors and the Owner until
. subsequentiy 1ev1sed

§61.4 Unless othe: wise: _ov:ded in the Contract Documents, when the Owner performs construction or operations
-related to the Pr oject with the Owner’s own forces, the Owner shall be deemed to be subject to the same obligations

" and to have. the same rights that apply to the Contractor under the Conditions of the Coniract, including, without
-'._c_x__cluding o't__he 's'e slatcd in Article 3, this Article 6 and Articles 10, 11 and 12,

§ 6.2 MUTUAL RESPONSIBILITY
- §6.21. The Contractor shall afford the Owner and separate contractors reasonable opportunity for mtroduction and
_.Storage Of their materials and equipment and performance of their activities, and shall connect and coordinate the
nSﬁ uction and operations with theirs as required by the Contract Documents.

§6.2.21F p'art;_o'f_t_he Contractor’s Work depends for proper execution or resuits upon construction or operations by
the Owner or a separate contractor, the Contractar shall, prior to proceeding with that portion of the Work, promptly
report to the Architect apparent discrepancies or defects in such other construction that would render it unsuitable
for such proper execution and results. Failure of the Contractor so to report shall constitute an acknowledgment that

AlA Document A201™ —~ 2007, Copyright © 1811, 19135, 1918, 1925 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1870, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American

Init. institute of Architects, All rights reserved, WARNING: This AA® Document is plotected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized 29
repraduction or distribution of this AlA® Document, or any portion of it, may result In severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the
! maximum extent possible under the law. This document was produced by AlA software at 15:18:24 on 08/22/2013 under Order No. 1384003458 _1 which

expires on 11/30/2013, and is not for resale.

User Notes: (1231772244)



the Owner’s or separate contractor’s completed or partially completed construction is fit and proper to receive the
_C___o;ltt_'a_c;toy’s Work, except as to defects not then reasonably discoverable.

§ 6:2.3 The Contractor shall reimburse the Owner for costs the Owner incurs that are payable to a separate contractor
“because of the Contractor’s delays, improperly timed activities or defective construction. The Owner shall be
. ._.responsible to the Contractor for costs the Contractor incurs because of a separate contractor’s delays, improperly
tlmed Activities, damage to the Work or defective construction.

8 6 2.4 The Contractor shall promptly remedy damage the Contractor wrongfully causes to completed or partially
s .-completed consu uctlon .or:_lo property of the Owner or separate contractors as provided in Section 10.2.5.

: '§ 6. 2 5 The. Ownel and ea h separate contractor shall have the same responsibilities for cutting and patching as are
=_'descnbed fo lhc Co traclm in Section 3.14.

. § 6 3 OWNER S RIGHT TO CLEAN up

‘Ifa dispute arises among the Contractor, separate contractors and the Owner as to the responsibility under their
- ‘tespective contracts for maintaining the premises and surrounding area free from waste materials and rubbish, the
-'Owner may ciea upand the A1 chitect will allocate the cost among those responsible.

" ARTICLE7 CHANGES THE WORK
§74 GENERAL

Change leécuve reques agreement by the Owner and Architect and may or may not be agreed to by the
- _Contract mmor change in the Work may be issued by the Architect alone,

§ 7 1.3 C}laﬁgcs' in thé Work shall be performed under applicable provisions of the Contract Docurnents, and the
Contragtor shal! proceed:promptly, unless otherwise provided in the Change Order, Construction Change Directive
.'50 Ordel fm ai' 110 change in the ka

-§ 7 2 CHANGE ORDERS '
§ 7.2.1°A Change Orderis a wuﬁ:en mst1 ument prepared by the Architect and signed by the Owner, Contractor and
: Alchlieét stating their-agreement upon all of the following:
£ ‘The change i in the Work;
20,20 The amount. of the ad_]ustment if' any, in the Contract Sum; and
432 The extent of the adjustment, if any, in the Contract Time,

- § 7:3 CONSTRUCTION CHANGE DIRECTIVES
§ 7.3.1 A Construction: Chango Directive is a written order prepared by the Architect and signed by the Owner and
Architect, directing a chan gé in ‘the Work prior to agreement on adjustment, if any, in the Contract Sum or Contract
-~Time, or __b_o_t ' he Owner may by Construction Change Dnectwe w1th0ut mvalidatm g the Conuact 01dc1 changes

-Ordel _

flhe following methods:
Mutual acceptance of a lump sum properly itemized and supported by sufficient substantiating data to
permit evaluation;

.2 Unit prices stated in the Contract Documents or subsequently agreed upon;

3 Cost to be determined in a manner agreed upon by the parties and a mutually acceptable fixed or
percentage fee; or

AlA Document A201™ - 2007. Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1518, 1925 1937, 1551, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1666, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1987 and 2007 by The American

nit. Institute of Architecis. All rights reserved WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copynght Law anid international Treaties, Unauthorized 23
reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civit and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the
Ii maximum extent possible under the law. This document was produced by AlA software at 15:18:24 on 08/22/2013 uncer Order No.1384003455_1 which

expires on 14/30/2013, and Is not for resale.

User Notes: {1231772244)



4 Asprovided in Section 7.3.7.

-_'.§ 7.3.4 lf Unit prices are stated in the Contract Documents or subsequently agreed upon, and if quantities originally
.'contemp]ated are materially changed in a proposed Change Order or Construction Change Directive so that
.~ ‘application of such unit prices to quantities of Work proposed will cause substantial inequity to the Owner or
.. Contractor, the applicable unit prices shall be equitably adjusted.

1'§'7.35 Upon receipt of a Construction Change Directive, the Contractor shall promptly proceed with the change in
. .the Work involved and:advise the Architect of the Contractor’s agreement or disagreement with the method, if any,
. “provided in the Constructton Change Directive for determining the proposed adjusiment in the Contract Sum or
. 'Contract Ttm

'§ 7 3 6 A Cons___ uotlon -hange Directive signed by the Contractor indicates the Coniractor’s agreement therewith,
g --mciudmg adjustment in-Contract Sum and Contract Time or the method for determining them. Such agreement shall
. be: effectwe lmmedlateiy and:shall be recorded as a Change Order.

‘§ 7. 3 7 If the. Contractor does not respond promptly or disagrees with the method for adjustment in the Contract Sum,
_.'the Axchltect sha etennme the method and the adJustmcm on the basis of 1easonab]e expend:tur es and savings of

.;requu ed by agreement or custom, and workers” compensation insurance;
ofn atex ials, supplies and equipment, including cost of transportation, whether incorporated or
consumed; i
Rental costs of maclnnely and equipment, exelusive of hand tools, whether rented from the
SE Contractor
© Costs of premiums ﬁ)r all bonds and insurance, permit fees, and sales, use or similar taxes related to

the Woxk and
~Addi costs ofsupex vision and field office personnel directly attributable to the change.

:-§ 7 3 8 ThB amount ofor edlt to be ailowed by the Centractor to the Owner for a deletion or change that results in a
'net de’cr_ea ( _n_u act, Sum shall bc actual net cost as conf'umed by the Ar clmcct When both addltlons and

w8139 lng ﬁnaiideterml of the total cost of a Construction Change Directive to the Owner, the Contractor
may, request payment for Work completed under the Construction Change Directive in Applications for Payment.
~The Architect. will make an interim determination for purposes of monthly certification for payment for those costs
and certify for. payment the : n_oum that the Architect determines, in the Architect’s professional judgment, to be
leasonab]y justified. The Archltect s interim determination of cost shall adjust the Contract Sum on the same basis
asa Chan;,e Order, subject to the right of either party to disagree and assert a Claim in accordanee with Article 15.

Owner and Contractor agree with a determination made by the Architect concerning the
ontract Sum and Contract Time, or otherwise reach agreement upon the adjustments, such
agreement shall be effective immediately and the Architect will prepare a Change Order. Change Orders may be
i rallor any part of a Construction Change Directive.

i --§ 1. 4 MINOR CHANGES IN THE WORK
“The Ardl has authority to order minor changes in the Work not involving adjustment in the Contract Sum or
. “extension-of the Contract Time and not inconsistent with the intent of the Contract Documents, Such changes will be
effected by written order signed by the Architect and shall be binding on the Owner and Contractor,

ALA Document A201™ ~ 2007, Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 10966, 1870, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American

Init. Institute of Architects. All rights reserved WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized 24
reproduction or distribution of this AA¥ Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the
f maximum extent possible under the law. This document was produced by AlA software at 15:18:24 on 08/22/2013 under Order No.1384003458_1 which

expires on 11/30/2013, and is not for resale.
User Notes: {1231772244)



ARTICLE8 TIME

. § 8.1 DEFINITIONS
-§8.1.1 Unless otherwise provided, Contract Time is the period of time, including authorized adjustments, allotted in
_the:C_on_t:l act Documents for Substantial Completion of the Work.

.§8.1.2 The date of commencement of the Work is the date established in the Agreement.

-§'8.1:3 The date of Substan‘ual Completion is the date certified by the Architect in accordance with Section 9.8.

o 'f-'_'§ 8 1.4 The telm "daY

SN :.used in the Contract Documents shall mean calendar day unless otherwise specifically
e '.dcﬁncd :

o §8.2 PROGRESS AND COMPLETION
" §'8.2.1 Time limits stated in the Contract Documents are of the essence of the Coniract. By executing the Apreement
: _-the Contractor conﬁrms that 1he Contract Time is a reasonable period for performing the Work.

‘.'.§ 8 2 2'The Connac_ I shall ofknowmgly, except by agreement or instruction of the Owner in writing, prematurely
- commence: operailons on: ‘the site or elsewhere prior to the effective date of insurance required by Article 11 to be
; '=.fu1nlshed by th "Corm actor and Owner. The date of commencement of the Work shall not be changed by the

' §'8:3 2 Clalmqrelatmg;io hme shaii 'be made in accordance with appiicable provisions of Article 15,

'§ 8 3. 3 Thls Sectlon 83 does not preclude recovery of damages for delay by either party under other provisions of
the Contract, Documents e

s .-’_’-._ARTICLEQ PAYMENTS AN:
= §e CONTRACT SUM. e
~The: Contract Sum is stated in the Aga eement and, including authorized adjustments, is the total amount payable by

- the Owner to the Conﬁ‘actor for. _perfm mance of the Work under the Contract Documents.

___oi\'hPtETlon

§9.2 SCHEDULE OF VALU_ES :
- “Where the:Contract is based’ on a strpuiated st or Guaranteed Maximum Price, the Contractor shall submit to the
i 'Architect, _b_cf - first Application for Payment, a schedule of values allocating the entire Contract Sum fo the
.various porlions fthe Work and prepared in such form and supported by such data to substantiate its accur acy as
“the Architect may réqun‘e This schedule, unless objected to by the Architect, shall be used as a basis for reviewing
the Contractor’s Applications for Payment.

3/ LiCATIONS FOR PAYMENT
.3 sl ten days before the date established for each progress payment, the Contractor shall submit to the
. m_ized Application for Payment prepared in accordance with the schedule of values, if required under
-.-Sect10n'9 2;for:completed portions of the Work. Such application shall be notarized, if required, and supp(nted by
such data substantiating the Contractor’s right to payment as the Owner or Architect may require, such as copies of
requisitions from Subcontractors and material suppliers, and shall reflect retainage if provided for in the Contract
Documents.

AlA Document A201™ - 2007, Copyright © 1911, 1615, 1918, 192.) 1837, 1951, 1058, 1961, 1963, 1866, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1897 and 2007 by The American

Init. Institute of Architects. Afl rights reserved WARNING: This AIA” Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized 25
reproduction or distribution of this AA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and ¢criminal penaities, and will be prosecuted to the
! maximum extent possible under the law. This document was produced by AlA software at 15:18:24 on 08/22/2013 under Order No.1384003459_1 which

expires on 11/30/2013, and is not for resale.
User Notes: (1231772244)



Init.

§9.3.1.1 As provided in Section 7.3.9, such applications may include requests for payment on account of changes in

. the Work that have been properly authorized by Construction Change Directives, or by interim determinations of the
o Archltect but not yet included in Change Orders.

'1.§ 9.3.'-1 '.25App1ications for Payment shall not include requests for payment for portions of the Work for which the
. Coniractor does not intend to pay a Subcontracior or material supplier, unless such Work has been performed by
: :_1_'0th'-1"_s_'whom the Contractor intends to pay,

--.§9.3.2 Unless otherwise:provided in the Contract Documents, payments shall be made on account of materials and

equipment delivered and suitably stored at the site for subscqucnt incorporation in the Work. If approved in advance

bythe Owner; paymentmay similarly be made for materials and equipment suitably stored off the site at a jocation
agreed upon m writing

: _yment for materials and equipment stored on or off the site shall be conditioned upon
the Coniractor with procedures satisfactory to the Owner to establish the Ownes’s title to such

; matel 1als:an equ1pment or otherwise protect the Owner’s interest, and shall include the costs of applicable

msw ance, st age and transportatmn to the site for such materials and equipment stored off the site.

§ 9 3.3 The Conlractor wa_rrants that title to alf Woxk cover ed by an Application for Payment will pass to the Owner

.:-'-_to the OWnel a Certlﬁcate for. Payment, with a copy to the Contractor, for such amount as the Ar chtiect determines
L s properly due; or. notlfy the Corm actor and Owner in writing of the A| chitect’s reasons for withholding
:-certlﬁcauon_ i whole or m-part as provided in Section 9.5.1.

§ 9 42 The issuance . of a Certificate for Payment will constitute a repr esentation by the Architect to the Owner,
~based o the. Architect’s-evaluation of the Work and the data comprising the Application for Payment, that, to the
‘best of the Architect’s.
the. quality of the Work is'in accordance with the Contract Documents. The foregoing representations are subject to
-“an;evaluation o the Work for conformance with the Contract Documents upon Substantial Completlon to results of
‘subsequenttests and 'mspectlons to'correction of minor deviations from the Contract Documents prior to completion
and to .‘a})ﬂClﬁC [iE]

j knowledge inforination and belief, the Work has progressed to the point indieated and that

ations‘expressed by the Architect. The issuance of a Certificate for Payment will further
constitute.a representation that the Contractor is entitled to payment in the amount certified. However, the issuance

omof & Ce: {ificate for Payment: w1]1 not be a representation that the Architect has (1) made exhaustive or continuous on-
o isite 1nspect10ns to check the: quahty ot quantity of the Work, (2) reviewed eonstruction means, methods, techniques,
: f;sequences or procedures, 3) reviewed copies of requisitions received from Subcontractors and material suppliers
~and:other data requested by the Owner to substantiate the Contractor’s right to payment, or (4) made examination o

ascer tam how:or fOl 1 pur: ose the Contractor has used money previously paid on account of the Contract Sum.

+-§ 9 S'DECIS!ONS'TO WITHHOLD CERTIF!CATION
+§9.5.1 The Arc itect imay withhold a Certificate for Payment in whole or in part, to the extent reasonably necessary

- to protect the
be made. If the.Archnect is unable to certify payment in the amount of the Application, the Architect will notify the

Ein the Architect’s opinion the repr esentations to the Owner required by Section 9.4.2 cannot

Contractor and Owner as provided in Section 9.4.1. If the Contractor and Architect cannot agree on a revised

. amount; the Architect will promptly issue a Certificate for Payment for the amount for which the Architect is able to
zmake such representations to the Owner. The Architect may also withhold a Certificate for Payment or, because of

discovered evidence, may nullify the whole or a part of a Certificate for Payment previously issued, to

_uc exte t'as'may be necessary in the Architect’s opmlon to protect the Owner from loss for which the Contractor

onsible, including foss resulting from acts and omissions described in Section 3.3.2, because of
A defective Work not remedied;
.2 third party claims filed or reasonable evidence indicating probable filing of such claims unless
security acceptable to the Owner is provided by the Contractor;

AlA Document A201™ - 2007, Copyright © 1911, 1815, 1918, 1925 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1968, 1970, 1876, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized
reproduction or distribution of this AIA¥ Document, or any portion of It, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the
maximum extent possible under the law. This document was produced by AlA software at 15:18.24 on 08/22/2013 under Order No.13840603459_1 which

expires on 11/30/2013, and is not for rasale.

User Notes: {1231772244)

26



3 failure of the Contractor to make pavimnents property to Subcontractors or for labor, materials or
equipment;

reasonable evidence that the Work cannot be completed for the unpaid balance of the Contract Sum;
damage to the Owner or a separate contractor;

reasonable evidence that the Work will not be completed within the Contract Time, and that the
unpaid balance would not be adequate to cover actual or liquidated damages for the anticipated delay;
or

g repeated failure to carry out the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents,

§ 9 5 2 When the above 1easons for withholding certification are removed, certification will be made for amounts

wrthm':the time prowded in ‘rhe Contract Documents, and shaEl $0 notlfy the Architect,

§ 9, 6. 2 The;Contractor shail pay each Subcontractor no later than seven days after receipt of payment from the

: ‘Qwner the' amount 1o whlch ‘the Subcontractor is entitled, reflecting percentages actually retained from payments to
~the Contractor:on accol '1_t-50f the Subcontractor’s portion of the Work. The Contractor shall, by appropriate

agr eementwrth aach Subcontl act01 require each Subcontractor to make payments to Sub-subcontractors in a similar

'completmﬁ 61 amounts apphed for by the Contractor and action t'rken thereon by the Architect and Owner on
-.account of por tlons of il 1e--Work done by such Subcontractor.

: § 9 6. 4 The Own er has the 11[,!11 or equest written evidence from the Contractor that the Contractor has properly paid
--_Subconﬁactors‘_and material and equlpmem supphliers amounts paid by the Owner to the Contractor for subcontracted
““Work::}fthe Contractor fails to furnish such evidence within seven days, the Owner shall have the right to contact
'Subcontlactors to ascertain‘whether they have been properly paid. Neither the Owner nor Architect shall have an

obiigauon to pay or to see to the payment of money to a Subcontractor, except as may otherwise be required by law,

: :§ 9, 6 5 Conuactor payments to. mater;al and equipment suppliers shall be treated in a manner similar to that provided
< Sectlons 9.6.2, 9.6. 3 and 9 6 4.,

§ 9 6 6 A Certlﬁeat f01 Payment a progress payment, or partial or entire use or occupancy of the Project by the
Owner shall not constliute acceptance of Work not in accordance with the Contract Documents.

‘ ‘§ 9.6.7 Unless the nfractor provides the Owner with a payment bond in the full penal sum of the Contract Sum,
 payments recelved iy the Contractor for Work properly performed by Subcontractors and suppliers shall be held by
' the Contractor for. those Subcontractors or suppliers who performed Work or furnished materials, or both, under
contract with the Contractor for which payment was made by the Owner. Nothing contained herein shall require
money:to.be placed in a separate account and not commingled with money of the Contractor, shall create any
ﬁdumary hab]hty or tort liability on the part of the Contractor for breach of trust or shall entitle any person or entity
of pu itive damages against the Contractor for breach of the requirements of this provision.

: :§ 9.7.FAILURE OF PAYMENT
If the Architect does not issue a Certificate for Payment, through no fault of the Contractor, within seven days after
receipt of the Contractor’s Application for Payment, or if the Qwner does not pay the Contractor within seven days
after the date established in the Contract Documents the amount certified by the Architect or awarded by binding
dispute resolution, then the Contractor may, upon seven additional days” written notice to the Owner and Architect,

AlA Document A201™ — 2007, Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925 1937, 1051, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1087, 1997 and 2007 by The American

nit. Institute of Architects. Alf rights reserved WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized 27
reproductlon or distribution of this AIA* Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe clvil and criminal penailties, and will be prosecuted to the
f maximum extent possible under the law. This document was produced by AlA software at 15:18:24 on 08/22/2013 under Order No.1384003459_1 which

expires on 11/30/2013, and is nof for resale.
User Notes: {1231772244)



stop the Work unti] payment of the amount owing has been received. The Contract Time shall be extended
appropriately and the Contract Sum shall be increased by the amount of the Contractor’s reasonable costs of shut-
down delay and start-up, plus interest as provided for in the Contract Documents.

'§ 9.8 'SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION
.- §9.8.1 Substantial Completion is the stage in the progress of the Work when the Work or designated portion thereof
s sufficiently complete in accordance with the Contract Documents so that the Qwner can occupy or utilize the

Work for its intended use.

[ :-§ 9'8 2 Whenthe Contréétm considers that the Work, or a portion thereof which the Owner agrees o accept

Init.

determme Si 'stant:aE”Comp]enon

separately, is’ substantaaily complete, the Contractor shall prepare and submit to the Architect a comprehensive list of
items to be: compieted or corrected prior to final payment. Failure to include an item on such list does not alter the

) "'responmbxllt ojf"the Contractor to complete all Work in accordance with the Contract Decuments.

: § 9, 8 3 Upon rece:pt of the Contlactor s list, the Architect will make an inspection to determine whether the Work or
2 desl{,nated portion: thereof i 18 substantially compiete, If the Architect’s inspection discloses any item, whether or not
“included o the Contractor s_hst which is not sufficiently complete in accordance with the Contract Docurnents so
that the Owner: ‘can oceupy. or-utilize the Work or designated portion thereof for its intended use, the Contractor

: shaH,_before issuance of th

ertificate of Substantial Completion, complete or correct such item upon notification
ase, the Contractor shall then submit a request for another inspection by the Architect to

. § 9.8. 4 When the Work or. desngnated portion thereof is substantially complete, the Architect will prepare a

* Certificate of Substantial’ ‘Completion that shall establish the date of Substantial Completion, shall establish
.'5_1espon51b111tles of the: Owner and Contractor for security, maintenance, heat, utilities, damage to the Work and

insurance;and shall fix the time :within which the Contractor shall finish all items on the list accompanying the

" “Certificate. -jWarrantIes reqmred by the Contract Documents shall commence en the date of Substantial Completion

5 'of the Work or demguated portlon thereof unless otherwise provided in the Certificate of Substantial Completion.

:_3§ 9 8 5 The: Ce1 t1f cate of Substanilal Completion shall be submitted to the Owner and Confractor for their written
G ceptance of responsibilities assigned to them in such Certificate. Upon such acceptance and consent of surety, if
“any, the Owner: shall make payment of refainage appiymg to such Work or designated portion thereof. Such payment
'sha]l b{, dd}usted for Work that i is: i 1comp}ete or not in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents.

’ § 9 9 PARTIAL OCCUPANCY OR USE
- §9.941 The Owner may occupy or use any completed or partially completed portion of the Work at any stage when
. Such portion is designated by.separate agreement with the Contractor, provided such occupancy or use is consented
. to by.the insurer as required: under Section 11.3.1.5 and authorized by public authorities having jurisdiction over the
. :Project: Such partial occupancy or-use may commence whether or not the portion is substantially complete, provided
-.the; Owrer and Contractor have accepted in writing the responsibilities assigned to each of them for payments,
'retamage if. any, secur ity, maintenance, heat, utilities, damage to the Work and insurance, and have agreed in

writing concerning 4 the’ period for. correction of the Work and commencement of warranties required by the Contract
Documents. When the Contractor considers a portion substantially complete, the Contractor shall prepare and
submit a listto:th Architect as provided under Section 9.8.2. Consent of the Contractor to partial occupancy or use

L shall not'be unreasonably withheld. The stage of the pr ogress of the Work shall be determined by written agreement

hd Conti actor or, if no agreement is reached, by decision of the Architect.

§9 9.2 lmmadrdtely pn(n to such partial occupancy or use, the Owner, Contractor and Architect shall jointly inspect

-_lhe area to be occupted or portion of the Work to be used in order to detet mine and record the condition of the

! ‘§ 9 9.3 Unless otherwise agreed upon, partial eccupancy or use of a portion or portions of the Work shall not

constitute acceptance of Work not complying with the requirements of the Contract Documents.

§ 9.10 FINAL COMPLETION AND FINAL PAYMENT
§9.10.1 Upon receipt of the Contractor’s written notice that the Work is ready for final inspection and acceptance
and upon receipt of a final Application for Payment, the Architect will promptly make such inspection and, when the

AlA Document A201™ - 2007, Copyright @ 1911, 1915, 1918, 1525, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1870, 1978, 1887, 1987 and 2007 by The American
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved, WARNING: This Jf-'ﬁ.ﬁl\(‘> Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized
reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the
maximum extent possible under the law. This document was produced by AlA software at 15:18:24 on 08/22/2013 under QOrder No,1384003439_1 which

expires on 11/30/2013, and is not for resale.
User Notes: (1231772244)

28



Architect finds the Work acceptable under the Contract Documents and the Contract fully performed, the Architect
will promptly issue a final Certificate for Payment stating that to the best of the Architect’s knowledge, information
“and belief, and on the basis of the Architect’s on-site visits and inspections, the Work has been completed in
s aucmdance with terms and conditions of the Contract Documents and that the entire balance found to be due the
" .Contractor and noted in the final Certificate is due and paydbie The Architect’s final Certificate for Payment will
_. .constitute a further representation that conditions listed in Section 9.10.2 as precedent to the Contractor’s being
: _-fentltled to final payment have been fulfilled.

-§ 9 10.2 Neither final payment nor any remaining retained percentage shall become due until the Contractor submits
“to'the Architect (1) an affidavit that payrolls, bills for materials and equipment, and other indebtedness connected
~with the Work for which the Owner or the Owner’s property might be responsible or encumbered (less amounts
. withheld by: Ownen) have been patd or otherwise satisfied, (2) a certificate evidencing that insurance required by the
: Conuact Documents; to remain in force after final payment is currently in effect and will not be canceled or allowed
10 expireuntilat least 30 days prior written notice has been given to the Owner, (3) a written statement that the
= Conltactor' ows of no. substantlal reason that the insurance will not be renewable to cover the period required by
_the Contrac Document.s, (4).consent of surety, if any, to final payment and (5), if required by the Owner, other data

”establishmg payment-or satlsfactlon of obligations, such as receipts, releases and waivers of liens, claims, security
+ interests o;__encumbrances arising out of the Contract, to the extent and in such form as inay be designated by the
. 'Ownel If a Subcontr actor refuscs to ﬂ.nmsh arelease or walvel ICqul ed by the Owner the Contlactm may ﬁnmsh a

f] S and 1fb0ndS have been furnished, the written consent of surety to payment of the balance due for that
fthe Work fully'completed and accepted shall be submitted by the Contractor to the Architect prior to
_ ceruf'cation ofsuch payment Such paymeni shall be made under terms and conditions governing final payment,

L § 9. 10 5 Acceptance of: ﬁnai payment by the Contractor, a Subcontractor or material supplier shall constitute a
~waiver of claims by that payee except those previously made in writing and identified by that payee as unsettled at
“the time of ﬁlml Appllcatlon for Payment

ARTICLE 10 PROTECTiON-OF PERSONS AND PROPERTY
- '§10.1 SAFETY.PRECAUTIONS AND PROGRAMS
: :_The Contractor shall be responsible for initiating, maintaining and supervising all safety precautions and programs
n with the per formanece of the Contract.

§ 10 2 SAFETY OF PERSONS AND PROPERTY
.-§10.2,1- The Contractor shall take reasonable precautions for safety of, and shall provide reasonable protection to
prevent damage, injury or loss to
employees on the Work and other persons who may be affected thereby,
the Work and materials and equipment to be incorporated therein, whether in storage on or off the
isite, under care, custody or control of the Contractor or the Contractor’s Subcontractors or Sub-
subconiractors; and
.3 other property at the site or adjacent thereto, such as trees, shrubs, lawns, walks, pavements,
roadways, structures and utilities not designated for removal, relocation or replacement in the course

of construction,
it AlA Document A201™ - 2007, Copyright € 1911, 1815, 1918, 1925 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American
nit. Institute of Architects, All rights reserved WARNING: This AlA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and interndllonal Treaties. Unauthorized 29
repreduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted ta the
I maximum extent possible under the law. This document was produced by AlA software at 15:18:24 on 08/22/2013 under Order No,1384003459_1 which

expires on 11/30/2013, and is not for resale,
User Notes: (1231772244)



§ 10 2 2 The Contractor shall comply with and give notices required by applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, codes,
. es andregulations, and lawful orders of public authorities bearing on safety of persons or property or their
__'-“protectlon from damage, injury or loss.

. _§ 10, 2 3 The Contractor shall erect and maintain, as required by existing conditions and performance of the Contract,
RS« as_onable safeguards for safety and protection, including posting danger signs and other warnings against hazards,
‘ 'promulgatmg safety 1egulatlons and notifying owners and users of adjacent sites and utilities.

Lo § 10 2.4 Whenuse or storage of explosives or other hazardous materials or equipment or unusual methoeds are
’ necessary for-execution of the Work, the Contractor shall exercise utmost care and carry on such activities under
'_.'supems;on of ploperly quahﬁed personnel.

: _§ 10 2.5 The_- 'ontl acto shal! _promptly remedy damage and loss (other than damage or loss insured under property
.::;msm ance required rb__ the' Cont; act Doeuments) to pI‘OpCl ty 1efe1red to in SGCU.O!IS 10. 2 1.2 and EO 2 1 .3 caused in

. § 10 2_8 iNJURY OR DAMAGE TO PERSCN OR PROPERTY
1f either party suffers injury-or damage to person or property because of an act or omission of the other party, or of
~others for whose cts such party is legally responsible, written notice of such injury or damage, whether or not
__'msured shall -be: given: to'the other party.within a reasonable time not exceeding 21 days after discovery. The notice
ff':shail provade sufficient detall to e b]e the other party to investigate the matter.

~§:10.3. HAZARDO ‘ ATERIALS
- §10.3.1 The Contractor is responsible for compliance with any requirements included in the Contract Documents
Ciregarg _Ing hazaldous materjals ! Conh actor encounters a hazardous material or substance not addressed in the
: ":._-Conttact Documents and ifreasonable precautions will be inadequate to prevent foreseeable bodily injury or death
3 -_'j"to persons tesultmg from a matenal or substance mciudmg but not limited to asbestos or polychlmmated b:phenyl

nd report the condltlon to the Owner and Ar chltect in writing,

stop WOtk in‘the affected ar

.8 10 3 2 Upon: recelpt of the Comraotor s written notice, the Owner shall obtain the services of a licensed laboratory

- to verify the pr' SENCE O ¢ absence of the material or substance reporfed by the Contractor and, in the event such
: . ce is.found to be present, to cause it to be rendered hariless. Unless otherwise required by the

“Contract Doeuments ‘thie Owner shall furnish in writing to the Contractor and Architect the names and qualifications

of persons or entities who are to perform tests verifying the presence or absence of such material or substance or
..o -whoareto. perﬁ)l m the task of removal or safe containment of such material or substance. The Contractor and the
: "Archlt ot will' prompily reply to the Owner in writing stating whether or not either has reasonable objection to the

i ities proposed by the Owner. 1f either the Contractor or Architect has an objection to a person or entity
the Owner, the Owner shall propose another to whom the Contractor and the Architect have no
reasonab e objection. When the material or substance has been rendered harmless, Work in the affected area shall
resume upon written agreement of the Owner and Contractor. By Change Order, the Contract Time shall be
extended appropriately and the Contract Sum shall be increased in the amount of the Contractor’s reasonable
additional costs of shut-down, delay and start-up.

AlA Document A201™ - 2007. Copyright © 1911, 1916, 1918, 1925 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American

Init. Institule of Architecis, Al rights reserved WARNING: This AIA* Document is protected by U.S. Copyrlght Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized 30
reproduction or distribution of this AIA¥ Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civit and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the
Ii maximum extent possible under the law. This document was produced by AlA software at 15:18:24 on 08/22/2013 under Order No.1384003459_1 which

expires on 11/30/2013, and is not for resale.
User Notes: (1231772244}



§ 10.3.3 To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Owner shall indemnify and hold harmless the Contractor,
Subcontractors, Architect, Architect’s consultants and agents and cmployees of any of them from and against
. .clalms ‘damages, losses and expenses, including but not limited to attorneys’ fees, arising out of or resulting from
. performance of the Work in the affected area if in fact the material or substance presents the risk of bodily injury or
‘death as described in Section 10.3.1 and has not been rendered harmless, provided that such claim, damage, loss or
.. expense is attributable to bodily injury, sickness, disease or death, or to injury to or destruction of tangible property
" (other'than the Work itself), except to the extent that such damage, loss or expense is due to the fault or negligence
of the party seeking indemnity.

§ 10 3.4 The Owner sha]] not be responsible under this Section 10.3 for materials or substances the Contractor brings
+"to the site unless such materials or substances are required by the Contract Documents. The Owner shall be

* responsible for materials or substances required by the Contract Documents, except to the extent of the Contractor’s
fault or ncgllgencc in: 1he-'use and handling of such materials or substances.

_-'§ 10 3.5 The Conttaoto ‘shall mdemmfy the Owner for the cost and expense the Ownet incurs (1) for lemedlatlon of

the cost of. remedlauon ofa’ hazaxdous material or substance solely by reason of performing Work as required by the
Contract Documents the Owner_ shall indemnify the Contractor for all cost and expense thereby incurred.

. '_§ 10 4 EMERGENCIES
:_-in an‘emergency- af_fec I afety of persons or property, the Contraetor shall act, at the Contractor’s discretion, to

' trprevent threatened damage injury or loss. Additional compensation or extension of time claimed by the Contractor

-:fon account of ' mergency" 'hall be determined as provided in Article 15 and Article 7.

ARTICLE 11 INSURANCE AND BONDS
& 112 CO__NTRACTOR’S LIABILITY INSURANCE

! The Contractor.shall purchase from and maintain in a company or companies lawfully authorized to do
'_:busmess in thejurlsdictlon in which the Project is located such insurance as will protect the Contractor from claims
. set forth below which may arise out of or result from the Contractor’s operations and completed operations under
“the Coritract.and for which the Comraclox may be legally liable, whether such operations be by the Contractor or by
a Subcontraoto or by-anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of theim, or by anyone for whose acts any of
'-them may be liable; "
“Claims undel workers -compensation, disability benefit and other similar employee benefit acts that
“.are applicable to th 'Work to be performed;
L Claims for damages because of bodily injury, occupational sickness or disease, or death of the
" Contractor’s employees;
g ::._Clauns for damages because of bodily injury, sickness or disease, or death of any person other than

4 Claims for damages insured by usual personal injury liability coverage;

“ “Claims for damages, other than to the Work itself, because of injury to or destruction of tangible

: property, including loss of use resulting therefrom;

Claims for damages because of bodily injury, death of a person or property damage arising out of
*““ownlership, maintenance or use of a motor vehicle;

.7 Claims for bodily injury or property damage arising out of completed operations; and

Claims involving contractual liability insurance applicable to the Contractor’s obligations under

Se'otion 3.18.

' § 11.1.2 Theinsurance required by Section 11.1.1 shall be written for not less than limits of liability specified in the
* Contract Documents or required by law, whichever coverage is preater. Coverages, whether written on an
occurrence or claims-made basis, shall be maintained without interruption from the date of commencement of the
Work until the date of final payment and termination of any coverage required to be maintained after final payment,
and, with respect to the Contractor’s completed operations coverage, until the expiration of the period for correction

AlA Document A201™ - 2007. Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American

Init. Institute of Architects. Al rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA@’ Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and international Treaties. Unauthorized 31
reproductlon or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penatties, and will be prosecuted to the
/ maximum extent possible under the law, This document was produced by AlA software af 15:18:24 on 08/22/2013 under Order No,1384003459_1 which

expires on 11/30/2013, and is not for resale.

User Notes: {1231772244)



of Work or for such other period for maintenance of completed operations coverage as specified in the Contract
_ Documents

'--§ 14,1.3; Ceruf cates of insurance acceptable to the Owner shall be filed with the Owner prior to commencement of
. 'thé Work and thereafter upon renewal or replacement of each requued policy of insurance. These certificates and the
. .insurance policies required by this Section 11.1 shall contain a prowsmn that coverages afforded under the policies
“willmot be canceled or allowed to expire until at least 30 days’ prior written notice has been given to the Owner, An
additional certificate evidencing continuation of liability cover age, including coverage for completed operations,
- -..shall be submitted with the final Application for Payment as required by Section 9.10.2 and thereafter upon renewal
S replacement of such cove: age until the expiration of the time required by Section [ 1.1.2. Information concerning
' reduction of ¢ covea age'on accoum of revised hmlts or claims paid under the General Aggregate, or both, shall be

ar :benef iciaries of such ‘insurance, until final payment has been made as provided in Section 9.10 or until no person
ior entlty other than the Owner has an insurable interest in the property required by this Section 11.3 to be covered,
.:whlchever is: late h"lS Jnsurancc shall mclude interests of the Owner, the Contractor, Subcontractors and Sub-

'§1 1.3, 1'1 'Prdpex t'y' surance shall be'on an "all-risk" or equivalent policy form and shall include, without limitation,
~insurance agaiist pet ils of fire (with extended coverage) and physical loss or damage including, without
i dupllcatlon of coverage, theft, vandalism, malicious mischief, collapse, earthquake, flood, windstorm, falsework,
~testing and startup, temporary by ildings‘and debris removal including demolition occasioned by enforcement of any
- applicable iegal 1equ1rements -and shall cover reasonable compensation for Architect’s and Contractor’s services
_and expenses requir ed as a result of such insured loss.

§ 11 3 1 2 Ifthe OWBel wlImtcnd to purchase such property insurance required by the Contract and with all of
the, coveragcs m the amount escrlbed above the Owner shail so inform the Coni:actm in wr mng prior to

[ sha!i be (:hai~ d to the ‘Owner. If the Contractor is damaged by the failure or ncgiect of the Owner to purchase or
“naintain insurance as described above, without so notifying the Contractor in writing, then the Owner shall bear all
reasonable costs p1 operly attributable thereto.

in ‘u ansit,

§ 11.3.1.5 Partial occupancy or use in accordance with Section 9.9 shall not commence until the insurance company
or companies providing property insurance have consented to such partial occupancy or use by endorsement or

AlA Document AZ01™ - 2007. Copyright € 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1987 and 2007 by The American

Init. Institute of Architects. All rights reserved WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and Intematlonal Treatles. Unauthorized a2
reproduction or distributlon of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminat penalties, and will be prosecuted fo the
I maximum extent possible under the law. This document was produced by AlA software at 15:18:24 on 08/22/2013 under Order N0.1384003459_1 which

expires on 11/30/2013, and is not for resale.
User Notes: (1231772244)



Init.

~_Subeonh actos

*validity,

otherwise. The Owner and the Contractor shall take reasonable steps to obtain consent of the insurance company or
companies and shall, without mutual written consent, take no action with respect to partial occupancy or use that

- _woul' _eause cancellation, lapse or reduction of insurance.

§ 11 3 2 BOILER AND MACHINERY INSURANCE

The Owner shall purchase and maintain boiler and machinery insurance required by the Contract Documents or by

~law, which shall specifically cover such insured objects during installation and until final acceptance by the Owner;
this'insurance shall inciude interests of the Owner, Contractor, Subcontractors and Sub-subcontractors in the Work,
.-..and the Owner and Contractor shall be named insureds.

§11.3.3 LOSS OF USE INSURANCE
" The Owner;:at'{

$ option, may purchase and maintain such insurance as will insure the Owner against loss
of use of the Ownet ‘s property due to fire or other hazards, however caused. The Owner waives all rights of action

'.agamst the Com] actor for: loss of use of the Owner’s property, including consequential losses due to fire or other
- hazat ds however caused

i the Cox_ltractm 1equests in writing that insurance for risks other than those described herein or other
wses of loss be included in the property insurance policy, the Owner shall, if possible, include such

msur'anee ind the cost thergof shall be charged to the Contractor by appropriate Change Order.

§ 11 e 5.If during the Pro;eot construeilon period the Owner insures propettles real or personal or both, at or adjacent

1o the site by property insurance under policies separate from those insuring the Project, or if after final payment

_property insirance is to be prov1ded on the completed Project through a pohcy or policies other than those insuring
g'the Pr OjeCt durm;, s the constriiction period, the Owner shall waive all rights in accordance with the terms of Section
2-11.3.7 for damages caused: by fire or other causes of loss covered by this separate property insurance. All separate
' :_pollmes -shall pr ov;' :

: hrs wa;_vel of subrogation by endorsement or otherwise.

o .'-§ 11 3.6 efore an exposure 10 --loss may occur, the Owner shall file with the Contractor a copy of each policy that
- mo]udes lhsurance coverages required by this Section 11.3. Each policy shall contain all generally applicable
condition deﬁmtlons ‘exclusions and endorsements related to this Project. Each policy shall contain a provision
-that the policy will not.be canceled or allowed to expire, and that its limits will not be reduced, until at least 30 days’
' prlor wutten 0L

_-has -been gwen to the Conu actor,

§113, 7 WAIVERS 0 SUBROGAT!ON

and. -ontractm waiveall nghts against (1) each other and any of their subcontractors, sub-
, agents and-employees, each of the other, and (2) the Architect, Architect’s consultants, separate
confractors, described in Article’ 6, if any, and any of their subcontractors, sub-subcontractors, agents and employees,

- ‘for'damages caysed by fire or other causes of loss to the extent covered by property insurance obtained pursuant to
. this Sectlon'
‘such:insur ance held by the Owner as fiduciary. The Owner or Contractor, as appropriate, shall require of the

3or other propel ty insurance applicable to the Work, except such rights as they have to proceeds of

Architect, Ar chitect’s: consultants, separate contractors described in Article 6, if any, and the subcontractors, sub-
subcontractors; agent and e_mployees of any of them, by appropriate agreements, written where legally requu ed for
validity, similar waivers: each'm_favm of other parties enumerated herein. The policies shall provide such waivers of
subrogation by endo1sement or otherwise. A waiver of subrogation shall be effective as to a person or entity even

_ g ‘though that person .orentity would otherwise have a duty of indemnification, contractual or otherwise, did not pay
: '_'the msurance premium dn ectly or indirectly, and whether or not the person or entity had an insurable interest in the
*property damaged, -

- -§11.3.8 A loss.insured under the Owner’s property insurance shall be adjusted by the Owner as f'ducm:y and made
S _-'payable to the Owner as fiduciary for the insureds, as their interests may appear, subject to requirements of any
o {apphcable mortgagee clause and of Section 11.3.10. The Contractor shall pay Subcontractors their just shares of

ceds received by the Contractor, and by appropriate agreements, written where legally required for
shall require Subcontractors to make payments to their Sub-subcontractors in similar manner.

§ 11.3.9 If required in writing by a party in interest, the Owner as fiduciary shall, upen occurrence of an insured loss,
give bond for proper performance of the Owner’s duties. The cost of required bonds shall be charged against
proceeds received as fiduciary. The Owner shall deposit in a separate account proceeds so received, which the

AlA Document A201™ - 2007. Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, '}925 1937, 1851, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American
institule of Architects, All rights reserved WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized
reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penaities, and will be prosecuted to the
maximum extent possible under the law. This document was produced by AlA software at 15:18:24 on 08/22/2013 under Order No.1384003459_1 which

expires on 11/30/2013, and is not for resale.
User Notes: (1231772244)

33



Owner shall distribute in accordance with such agreement as the parties in interest may reach, or as determined in
accordance with the method of binding dispute resolution selected in the Agreement between the Owner and
-'_Couti actcl If after such loss no other speciat agreement is made and unless the Owner terminates the Confract for
:‘convenjence, replacement of damaged property shall be performed by the Contractor after notification of a Change
-“in‘the:'Work in accordance with Article 7.

~+:§11:3.10 The Owner as fiduciary shall have power to adjust and settle a loss with insurers unless one of the parties in
~interest shall object in writing within five days after occurrence of Joss to the Owner’s exercise of this power; if such
. objection is made, the dispute shall be resclved in the manner selected by the Owner and Contractor as the method
* of binding dispute resolution in the Agreement. If the Owner and Contractor have sclected arbitration as the method
: of bindmg dtspute lcsolutlcn the OWI’IG] as ﬁduc1aiy sha]l make settlement with i insurets of, in the case of a dispute

"'.§ 11 4 P&RFORMANCE BGND AND PAYMENT BOND
: § _1’1_ 4.1 The Owner shall have the r 1ght to iequue the Conttactm to fumlsh bonds cover mg faithful pet formance of

--.-.-':ARTiCLE 12'::- UNCOVERING AND CORRECTION OF WORK
: _'§ 12.1 _U_NCOVERING OF: WORK

ork is cover ed contr ary to the Al chltect s request or to 1equ1rements spec1ﬁcally

. to its:t emg covered the A1 chitect may request to see such Work and it shall be uncover ed by the Contractor. If such
~Work is in accordance with:the Contract Documents, costs of uncovering and replacement shall, by appropriate
_-'._Change OidGI beatthe. Ownel s expense. 1f such Work is not in accordance with the Contract Documents, such
.costs and the cos ofcorr ection shall be at the Contractor’s expense unless the condition was caused by the Owner or
_*f.a sepeuate confractor in WhECh event __e Owner shall be responsible for payment of such costs.

§12.2. CORRECTION OF WORK
- §12 '2'1‘BEFORE ORAFTER SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION
- The 'actor shall pr omptly correct Work rejected by the Architect or failing to conform to the requirements of
. the.Contr: 18 Documents whether ‘discovered before or afler Substantial Completion and whether or not fabricated,
: ".:3'_1nstallcd or completed. Costs of correcting such rejected Work, including additional testing and inspections, the cost
~pfuncovering and 1ep1accment and compensation for the Architect’s services and expenses made necessary
thereby, shall'be at the_C i tractol § expense.

8 12 2 2 AFTER: SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETEON
©§12.2.2.1 In addition to the Contractor’s obligations under Section 3.5, if, within one year after the date of
: ‘Substantial _Compiction of the Work or designated portion thereof or after the date for commencement of warranties
“established under Section 9.9.1, or by terms of an applicable special warranty required by the Confract Documents,
any of the Work is found to be not in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents, the Contractor
- shall correct it promptly after receipt of written notice from the Owner to do so unless the Owner has previously
: the Contractor a written acceptance of such condition. The Owner shall give such notice promptly after
R y of the condition. During the one-year period for correction of Work, if the Owner fails to notify the
S ;Contractor and give the Contractor an opportunity to make the correction, the Owner waives the rights to require
.correction by the Contractor and to make a elaim for breach of warranty. 1f the Contractor fails to correct
nonconforming Work within a reasonable time during that period afler receipt of notice from the Owner or
Architect, the Owner may correct it in accordance with Section 2.4,

AFA Document A201™ — 2007. Copyright @ 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1870, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American

Init. Institute of Architects. All rights reserved WARNING: Thts AIA® Document Is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and Enternational Treaties. Unauthorized 34
reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the
I maximum extent possible under the law. This document was preduced by AlA software at 15:18:24 on 08/22/2013 under Order No.1384003459_1 which

expires on $1/30/2013, and is not for resale.
User Notes: (1231772244}



§ 12.2.2.2 The one-year period for correction of Work shall be extended with respect to portions of Work first
_performed after Substantial Completion by the period of time between Substantial Completion and the actual
i completi ion of that portion of the Work.

: :'..§.::12.2.2.~35The one-vear period for correction of Work shall not be extended by corrective Work performed by the
-.-Contractor pursuant to this Section 12.2.

§'12:2.3 The Confractor shall remove from the site portions of the Work that are not in accordance with the
_ _l‘equirements of the Contraet Documents and are neither corrected by the Contractor nor accepted by the Gwner.

_ § 12 2.4 The Conh actor 8 all bear the cost of corr ecting destroyed or damaged construction, whether completed or
“partially completed of the Owner or separate contractors caused by the Contractor’s correction or removal of Work
' ihai is noi m accor dance thh the requirements of the Contract Documents.

: '§ 12 25 Noth_m;, contamed rn thlS Section 12.2 shall be construed to establish a period of limitation with respect to
:_othcl obligations the “ontractor has under the Contract Documents. Establishment of the one-year period for
“.correction-of Work as descnbec_i in Sectlon 1222 lelates only to the spec1ﬁc obligation of the Contracto: to correct

: fif the Ownel ]51 efets té accept Wonk that is not in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents, the
: Ownm may do SO mstedd of 1 equn mg its removal and correction, in whlch case the Contract Sum will be reduced as

. The Contl act shall be governed by the law of the place where the Project is located except that, if the parties have
:selected arbltlatlon as themethod of binding dispute resolution, the Federal Arbitration Act shall govern Section

§413. 2 SUCCESSORS AN ASSEGNS 5
--§13.21 The Owner and Contractor respeeiwe]y bind themselves, their partners, successors, assigns and legal
' "repl esentatives 10 covenants, agreements and obi;g,atlons contained in the Contract Documents. Except as provided
i Seetlon 13.2.2, neither party to the Contract shall assign the Contract as a whole without written consent of the
- other:If elther party attem pts-to make such an assignment without such consent, that party shall nevertheless remain
: lega]iy respons:ble foa all. ob 'gatlons under the Contract.

: -.'5_§ 1 3.:2_,2 The Owner may, Without consent of the Contractor, assign the Contract to a lender providing construction
~financing for the Project, if the lender assumes the Owner’s rights and obligations under the Contract Documents.
The Contractor shall 'execute,ali‘_c_onsents reasonably required to facilitate such assignment.

§133 WRITTEN NOTICE
- “Written notice all be deemed to have been duly served if delivered in person to the individual, to a member of the
- firm or entity, or to an officer of the corporation for which it was intended; or if delivered at, or sent by registered or

“certified mail’ or-by'counel service providing proof of delivery to, the Jast business address known to the party
gwmg notice.

. § 134 RIGHTS AND REMEDIES
o §134, ¢s and obligations imposed by the Contract Documents and rights and remedies available thereunder
+“shall dmon to and not a limitation of duties, obligations, rights and remedies otherwise imposed or available

.'-bylaw

§ 13.4.2 No action or failure to act by the Owner, Architect or Contractor shall constitute a waiver of a right or duty
afforded them under the Contract, nor shall such action or failure to act constitute approval of or acquiescence in a
breach there under, except as may be specifically agreed in writing.

AlA Document A201™ - 2007, Copyright © 1941, 1915, 1918, 1925 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1876, 19687, 1887 and 2007 by The American

Init. Institute of Architects. All rights reserved WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized 35
reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminai penalties, and wilt be prosecuted to the
I maximuin extent possible under the law, This document was produced by AlA software at 15:18:24 on 08/22/2013 under Order No.1384003459_1 which

expires on 11/30/2043, and is not for resale.
User Notes: {1231772244}



_§13.5TESTS AND INSPECTIONS
//.§13.51 Tests, inspections and approvals of portions of the Work shall be made as required by the Contract
- _Doc'u meits and by appllcable laws, statutes, ordinances, codes, rules and regulations or Jawful orders of public
““authorities. Unless otherwise provided, the Contractor shall make arrangements for such tests, inspections and
.. approvals with an independent testing laboratory or entity acceptable to the Owner, or with the appropriate public
authorlty, and shall bear all related costs of tests, inspections and approvals. The Contractor shall give the Architect
’timely notice of when and where tests and inspections are to be made so that the Architect may be present for such
...+ procedures. The Ownerishall bear costs of (1) tests, inspections or approvals that do not become requirements until
. after bids are received.or negotiations concluded, and (2) tests, inspections or approvals where building codes or
' ::E__.japphcable laws or legulatlons prohibit the Owner from delegating their cost to the Contractor.

~ rasithe pa'rt'tes may. agreé upon in writing or, in the absence thereof, at the legal rate prevailing from time to time at
- the. p]ace where the' PrOJect is located; .

n _§ 13. 7 TIME'LIM!TS ON CLAIMS
The Owner and Contractor shall commence all claims and causes of action, whether in contract, tort, breach of
“warranty or otherwise; a gamst the other arising out of or related to the Contract in accordance with the requirements

of the final dispute réso ution: melhod selected in the Agreement within the time pericd specified by applicable law,
but in‘any case not more than:10years afler the date of Substantial Completion of the Work. The Owner and

e :-Conh actor. wa1 all cEaims and causes of action not commenced in accordance with this Section 13,7,

L {jART!CLE 14'33--_ ERMENATION OR SUSPENSION OF THE CONTRACT
§14.1 TERMINATION BY THE CONTRACTOR
§ 14.1.1 The Contractor may terminate the Contract if the Work is stopped for a period of 30 consecutive days
f th1 ough 10 act or, fauEt of the Conttactm ora Subconiractor, Sub 5ubconuacto1 or their agems or empioyees or fmy

,éuance of an order of a court or other public authority having jurisdiction that requires all Work to

“be stopped;

2 An act of government, such as a declaration of national emergency that requires all Work to be
stopped;

AlA Document A201™ = 2007. Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American

Init. institute of Architects. All rights reserved WARNING: This .L\uﬂ\eD Document is protected by U.8. Copyright Law and International Treatles. Unauthorized 36
reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and crlminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the
/ maximum extent possible under the law. This document was produced by AlA software at 15:18:24 on 08/22/2013 under Order No.1384003459_1 which

expires on 11/30/2013, and is not for resale.

User Notes: {1231772244)



3 Because the Architect has not issued a Certificate for Payment and has not notified the Contractor of
the reason for withholding certification as provided in Section 9.4.1, or because the Owner has not
made payment on a Certificate for Payment within the time stated in the Contract Documents; or

The Owner has failed to furnish to the Contractor promptly, upon the Contractor’s request, reasonable
evidence as required by Section 2.2.1.

-+.-§14.1,2 The Contractor may terminate the Contract if, through no act or fault of the Contractor or a Subcontractor,
‘Sub-subcontractor or their agents or employees or any other persons or entities performing portions of the Work

.. -under direct or indirect:contract with the Contractor, repcatcd suspensions, delays or interruptions of the entire Work

" bythe Owner as described in Section 14.3 constitute in the aggregate more than 100 percent of the total number of

.'days scheduled for completlon or 120 days in any 365-day period, whichever is less.

§ 141 3 If on: of the: re‘ scms described in Section 14.1.1 or 14.1.2 exists, the Contractor may, upon seven days’
“written notice to the Owner and Architect, terminate the Contract and recover from the Owner payment for Work
executed* 1ncludmg :reasonable overhead and profit, costs incurred by reason of such termination, and damages.

5 the Work is siopped for a period of 60 consecutive days through no act or fault of the Contractor or a

‘ ir agents or employees or any other persons performing portions of the Work under contract

: --thh the Com:ractor because thc Owner has repeatedly failed to fulfill the Owner’s obligations under the Contract

 Documents, wnh respect 1attet s important to the progress of the Work, the Contractor may, upon seven additional
days wrltten not:cc to'th Owner and the Architect, terminate the Contract and recover from the Owner as provided

'__§ 14 2 TERMINATION BY THE OWNER FOR CAUSE
L § 14,21 The Ownel may- tei'mmate the Centract if the Contractor
- : . repeated y:efuses or fails to supply enough properly skilled workers or proper materials;
' o'make payment to Subcontractors for materials or labor in accordance with the respective

: agreements between the Contractor and the Subcontractors;

o lepeatediy disregards applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, codes, rules and regulations, or lawful
ordersiofa‘public authority; or
_otherwise is guilty of substantial breach of a provision of the Contract Documents.

= -sufﬁment ‘cause. exrsls to Justlfy such aeuon may w1thout pr G_]UdlCL to any other ughts or remedies 01‘ the Owner and
'aﬁel g,avmg the C actor and’ the Contractor’s surety, if any, seven days’ written notice, terminate employment of
, subject to any prior rights of the surety:
" Exclude the Contractor. from the site and take possession of all materials, equipment, tools, and
“sconstruction-equ _'pment ‘and machinery thereon owned by the Contractor;
S :Accept.asmgnme_nt of'subcontracts pursuant to Section 5.4; and
~ Finish the Work by whatever reasonable method the Owner may deein expedient. Upon written
. request of the_Contractor the Owner shall furnish to the Contractor a detailed accounting of the costs
".mcurred by the Ownc1 in finishing the Work.

- '_:i § 14 2 3 When the: Ownel terminates the Contract for one of the reasons stated in Section 14.2.1, the Contractor shall
- not be entltle' 1o recewe further payment until the Work is finished.

b § 14.2.4 If the Unpalcj:balance of the Contract Sum exceeds costs of finishing the Work, including compensation for
the Architect’s services and expenses made necessary thereby, and other damages incurred by the Owner and not
_expressly waived, such excess shall be paid to the Contractor. If such costs and damages exceed the unpaid balance,
: the-Contractor shall pay the difference to the Owner. The amount to be paid to the Contractor or Owner, as the case
' be, shall b certified by the Initial Decision Maker, upon application, and this obligation for payment shall
< survivert nmatlon of the Contract,

'§ 14.3 SUSPENSION BY THE OWNER FOR CONVENIENCE
§ 14.3.1 The Owner may, without cause, order the Contractor in writing to suspend, delay or interrupt the Work in
whole or in part for such period of time as the Owner may determine.

AFA Document A201™ = 2007. Copyright @ 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1863, 1266, 1870, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American

Init, Institute of Architects, All rights reserved WARNING: This AIA‘D Document is protected hy U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized 37
reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the
! maximum extent possible under the law. This document was produced by AlA software at 15:18.24 on 08/22/2013 under Order No,1384003459_1 which

expires cn 11/30/2013, and is not for resale.
User Notes: (1231772244)



§ 14.3.2 The Contract Sum and Contract Time shall be adjusted for increases in the cost and time caused by
_suspension, delay or interruption as described in Section 14.3.1. Adjustment of the Contract Sum shall include
0 adjustment shall be made to the extent
: that performance is, was or would have been so suspended, delayed or interrupted by another cause
: for which the Contractor is responsible; or
.2  that an equitable adjustment is made or denied under another provision of the Contract.

' §14.4 TERMINATION BY THE OWNER FOR CONVENIENCE
' '.§.fl_4.4.1 The Owner may, at any time, terminate the Contract for the Owner’s convenience and without cause.

';ARTICLE 15 CLAIMS AND
-~ 84154 CLAIMS
o 15‘_| 1 DEFFN!T!ON .
.~ A Claim i$ a demand or assertion by one of the parties seeking, as a matter of right, payment of meney, or other
- relief w1th respect to the terms of the Contract. The term "Claim" also includes other disputes and matters in
© question between the’ Owner and Contractor arising out of or relating to the Contract. The responsibility to
_1 substantiate Claims shall rest with the party making the Claim.

h Clalms b éithex 1p ry must be initiated w1thin 2} days after occurrence of the event giving rise to such C]alm or
B thhm 2] da'_ s afte _the clalmant f' ir st 1ecogmz,es the condition giving rise to the Claim, whichever is later.

§ 15 1; 3 CONTINUING CONTRA _'T PERFORMANCE
L -Pendmg final resolution of a Claim, except as otherwise agreed in writing or as provided in Section 9.7 and Article
14, the Contractor shall ploceed ditigently with performance of the Contract and the Owner shall continue to make
g paymenls in accor danc_ withithe Contract Documents, The Architect will prepare Change Orders and issue
Certlﬁcales for dement ¢ fdance with the decisions of the Initial Decision Maker,

B 15 14 CLAIMSFOR ADDlTIONAL COosT
- Ifthe Contractor’ w1shes to make a Claim for an increase in the Contract Sum, written notice as provided herein shall
“*be given before prog ding to execute the Work, Prior notice is not required for Claims relating to an emergency
““endangering life or.property arising under Section 10.4.

. .§ 15,1,5.CLAIMS FOR ADDITIONAL TIME

o 1.5 If the . Contractor wishes to make a Claim for an increase in the Contract Time, written notice as provided
: given. The Contractor’s Claim shall include an estimate of cost and of probable effect of delay on
*"progl ess:0fthe W01 k. In the case of a continuing delay, only one Claim is necessary.

§ 15.1.5.2 If adverse weather conditions are the basis for a Claim for additional time, such Claim shall be
documented by data substantiating that weather conditions were abnormal for the period of time, could not have
been reasonably anticipated and had an adverse effect on the scheduled construction,

AlA Document A201™ — 2007. Copyright @ 1911, 1615, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1863, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1687, 1897 and 2007 by The American

nit. Institute of Architects. All rights reserved WARNING: This A1A® Document is protected by u.s. Copynght Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized 38
reproduction or distribution of this AJA® Document, or any portion of it, may result In severe civil and ¢riminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the
I maximum extent pessible under the law. This document was produced by AJA software at 15;18:24 on 08/22/2013 under Order No.1384003459_1 which

expires on 11/30/2013, and is not for resale.
User Notes: (1231772244)



§ 15,1.6 CLAIMS FOR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES

i thls Cbﬁ&act This mutval waiver 1nc!udes
T : damages incurred by the Owner for rental expenses, for losses of use, income, profit, f'nancm[,,
business and reputation, and for oss of management or employee productivity or of the services of
such persons; and
damages incurred by the Contractor for principal office expenses including the compensation of
personnel stationed there, for losses of financing, business and reputation, and for loss of profit
except anticipated profit arising directly from the Work,

' Fhls mutual waiver is: pphcab]e without limitation, to all consequential damages due to either party’s termination
~in accordance with Article:14. Nothing contained in this Section 15.1.6 shall be deemed to preclude an award of
hquld"lted damages when applleable in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents.

§162 mlTlALDEcrsaoN
§15.2.4-Claims, excluding those arising under Sections 10.3, 10.4, 11.3.9, and 11.3.10, shall be referred to the itial
._:_'Deelsmn Makex for mltlai 151on The Ar chxtect will serve as the Imtlal Dec151on Makel unle%s othe1w1se

2§ 15 2, 2 The Inlual Decision '_a'ke1 will review Claims and within ten days of the receipt of a Claim take one or
‘. more.of the followmg ons: (1) request additional supporting data from the claimant or a response with supportmg
. data ﬁom the other party, ) reject the Claim in whole or in part, (3) approve the Claim, (4) suggest a compromise,
or (5) adv1se the parties that e Initial Decision Maker is unable to resolve the Claim if the Initial Decision Maker
- lacks) su_fﬁc;ent information to'evaluate the merits of the Claim or if the Initial Decision Maker concludes that, in the
' In1t1a1 D 151011 Maker- ole discretion, it would be inappropriate for the Initial Decision Maker to resotve the
- Claim: S

818 2 3 In evaluatmg Cialms the Initial Decision Maker may, but shall not be obligated to, consult with or seek
~information from either:party or from: pe1sons with special knowledge or expertise who may assist the Initial

: .jDGC,ISIOIl Maker in ;endelmg a dGCISIOI] “The Initial Decision Maker may request the Owner to authorize retention of
' such perg;(_)_ns wher’ s expense '

§ 15 2 4 If the Initial DCCISEOll Maker requests a party to provide a response to a Claim or to furnish additional
§ ng ata, such party. shali" pond, within ten days after receipt of such request, and shall either (1) provide a
response on the tequested supporting data, (2) advise the Initial Deeision Maker when the response or supporting
~datawill be furnished 01_(3) advise the Initial Decision Maker that no supporting data will be furnished. Upon
~receiptiof the response’ uppm lmg data, if any, the Initial Decision Maker will either reject or approve the Claim
in who!e or iy part. - -

a § 15 2 5 The Initial. Decision Maker will render an initial decision approving or rejecting the Claim, or indicating that
:-the Imtlai:_DeelS}QI}_Make! is unable to resolve the Claim, This initial decision shall (1) be i writing; (2) state the
- reasons therefor; and (3) notify the parties and the Architect, if the Architect is not serving as the Initial Decision
“Maker, of any change in the Contract Sum or Contract Time or both. The initial decision shall be final and binding
on the parties but subject to mediation and, if the parties fail to resolve their dispute through mediation, to binding
dispute resoluti

ERT §1 ZGEIthe palty may file for mediation of an initial decision at any time, subject to the terms of Section 15.2.6.1.

§ 15.2.6, i 1thel-,pdrty may, within 30 days from the date of an iitial decision, demand in writing that the other party
file for mediation within 60 days of the initial decision. If such a demand is made and the party receiving the
demand fails to file for mediation within the time required, then both parties waive their rights to mediate or pursue
binding dispute resolution proecedings with respect to the initial decision.

AlA Document A201™ . 2007, Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1818, ?925 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 19686, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American

Init. Institute of Architects. AlE rights reserved WARNING: This AIA® Document is proteeted by U.8. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized 39
reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the
i maximum extent possible under the law. This document was produced by AtA software at 15:18:24 on 08/22/2013 under Order No.1384003459_1 which

expires on 11/30/2013, and Is not for resale.
User Notes: (1231772244)



§15.2.7 In the event of a Claim against the Contractor, the Owner may, but is not obligated to, notify the surety, il
. any, of the nature and amount of the Claim. If the Claim relates to a possibility of a Contractor’s default, the Owner
L may ' ut'ls not obligated to, notify the surety and request the surety’s assistance in resolving the controversy,

' .§ 15.2.8.1fa Claim relates to or is the subject of a mechanic’s lien, the party asserting such Claim may proceed in
_accordance with applicable law to comply with the lien notice or filing deadlines.

§15.3 MEDIATION
--§15.3.1 Claims, disputes, or other matters in controversy arising out of or related to the Contract except those
" waived as provided for i Sections 9.10.4, 9.10.5, and 15.1.6 shall be subject to mediation as a condition precedent
: _.'to bmdlng d1sputc r esoiutlon

: § 15 3.2 The partles shall endeavon to resolve their Claimns by mediation which, unless the parties mutually agree
-otherwise; shall be administered by the American Arbitration Association in accordance with its Construction

_' -_ZIndustry Mediation Procedures int effect on the date of the Agreement. A request for mediation shall be made in

Cwriting;; delivered tdthe oih party to the Contract, and filed with the person or entity administering the mediation.

. The :equest may be made concurrently with the filing of binding dispute resolution proceedings but, in such event,

! . ( in‘advance of binding dispute resolution proceedings, which shalf be stayed pending

'_--mediatlon fora period of 60 days from the date of filing, unless stayed for a longer period by agreement of the

-~ partigs or court order. 1 ‘arbitration is stayed pursuant to this Section 15.3.2, the parties may nonetheless proceed
to the selectwn of the arbltrator(s) and agree upon a schedule for later pr oceedmg,s

: -;§ 15-3 3 The pame hall sh__ _the mediator’s fee and any ﬁlmg fees equally, The mediation shall be held in the
-;place where the PlQ]BCl is located, unless another location is mutually agreed upon. Agreements reached in
: _?medlatlon shail be enforceable as settlement agreements in any court having jurisdiction thereof,

s 154ARB|TRAT" N_ o
§ 15.4.1 If the parties have selected arbitration as the method for binding dispute resolution in the Agreement, any
Clalm Sl _Ject to, but not 1esolved by, mediation shall be SUbJCCt to arbitr atlon whlch unless the pames mutually

_3"deii§? ed'.to the olher party to lhe Contract, and filed with the pcrson or entity admmlstermg the arbitration. The
par ty fi lmg a--notlce of dcmcmd for arbllratmn must assert in the demand all Claims then known to that party on

medlatlc_)n,.but in no event shall'it be:made after the date when the institution of legal or equ1table pr oceedmgs based
. on the Claim would be barred by the apphcable statute of limitations. For statute of limitations purposes, receipt of a
U written demand:f()t afbitration: by the person or entity administering the arbitration shall constitute the institution of
' -...'.;:legaf or equitable pr oceedmgs based on the Claim.

§ 15 4 2 The awatd tendered by the arbitrator or arbitrators shall be final, and judgment may be entered upon it in
accor dancc w:th apphcabl law in any court having jurisdiction thereof.

" §15.43 The foregomg agreement to arbitrate and other agreements to arbitrate with an additional person or entity
~duly consented i by parties to the Agreement shalf be specifically enforceable under applicable law in any court
‘having jurisdiction thereof,

.. -§15.4.4 CONSOLIDATION OR JOINDER

§ 15 4,41 Either party, at its sole discretion, may consolidate an arbitration conducted under this Agreement with any
to which i is a party provided that (1) the arbitration agreement governing the other arbitration
onsolidation, (2) the arbitrations to be consolidated substantially involve common questions of law or fact,
arbitrations employ materially similar procedural rules and methods for selecting arbitrator(s).

§ 15.4.4.2 Either party, at its sole discretion, may include by joinder persons or entities substantially involved in a
common question of law or fact whose presence is required if complete relief is to be accorded in arbitration,
provided that the party sought to be joined consents in writing to such joinder. Consent to arbitration involving an

AlA Document A2017 .. 2007. Copyright © 1911, 1918, 1918, 1925 1937, 1954, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1876, 1987, 1897 and 2007 by The American

Init. institute of Architects. All rights reserved WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and lnternatlona! Treaties. Unauthorized 40
reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the
! maximum axtent possible under the law. This document was produced by AlA software at 15:18:24 on 08/22/2013 under Order No. 1384003458_1 which

expires on 11/30/2013, and is not for resaie.
User Notes: (1231772244)



additional person or entity shall not constitute consent to arbitration of any claim, dispute or other matter in question
not described in the written consent,

' §15.4.¢ :3 The Owner and Coniractor grant to any person or entity made a party to an arbitration conducted under
= this‘Section 15.4, whether by joinder or consolidation, the same rights of joinder and consolidation as the Owner and
Contractor under this Agreement.

AlA Document A201™ — 2007. Copyright © 1811, 1815, 1918, 1625, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American

Int. Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized 41
reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the
f maximum extent possible under the law. This document was produced by AlA software at 15:18:24 on 08/22/2013 under Order No.1384003459_ 1 which

expires on 11/30/2013, and is nct for resale.

User Notes: (1231772244}



RIDER TO THE GENERAL CONDITIONS OF THE CONTRACT FOR
CONSTRUCTION BETWEEN THE BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES OF
THE DOWNERS GROVE PUBLIC LIBRARY (THE "OWNER") AND
SHALES McNUTT, L.L.C. (THE "CONTRACTOR") DATED

The following provisions, notwithstanding any provisions to the contrary in AIA
Document A201, 2007 Edition, amend and replace the terms of the General Conditions of the
Contract for Construction, between Owner and Contractor and any provisions in the sections as
numbered below which are in conflict with or inconsistent with any of the same provisions in
said General Conditions, the provisions in said General Conditions shall be void to the extent of
such conflict or inconsistency and the terms of this Rider shall control. Where any provision of
the General Conditions is modified or deleted by this Rider, the unaltered portions of those
provisions shall remain in effect. All references to "Construction Manager" contained herein
shall also mean "Contractor" as defined above to mean Shales McNutt, L.L.C.

ARTICLE 1. GENERAL PROVISIONS
1.1 Basic Definitions
1.1.1 At the end of the paragraph add the following sentence:

"Also included as part of the Contract Documents are the following documents:
Invitation to Bid, Instructions to Bidders, Contractor’s Bid Proposal as it
conforms to the Owner’s bid package, the Standard Form of Agreement Between
Owner and Construction Manager as Constructor, AIA Document A133/CMc,
2009 Edition (as modified); (2) Owner’s Rider to the Standard Form of
Agreement; the General Conditions of the Contract for Construction, AIA
Document A201, 2007 Edition (as modified); Owner’s Rider to the General
Conditions of the Contract for Construction; required Performance and Payment
Bonds; Certificate of Eligibility to Enter into Public Contract; and required
insurance certificates."

1.1.1.1 Add anew Section 1.1.1.1 which shall read in its entirety as follows:
“This Agreement form has been selected to reflect the Contractor’s role for pre-
construction services and overall responsibility for the Project and timeliness of
completion. It does not authorize the Contractor to self-perform any trade work,
and this Agreement has been modified accordingly.”

1.1.2 The Contract

1.1.2 Delete the last sentence of this section.

392373 _1



ARTICLE 2. OWNER
2.1 General
2.1.1 Delete the second sentence in Section 2.1.1 which reads as follows:

“The Owner shall designate in writing a representative who shall have express
authority to bind the Owner with respect to all matters requiring the Owner’s
approval or authorization.” And replace the following: “The Director of the
Downers Grove Public Library or her designee shall be designated as the
Library’s liaison between the Board of Library Trustees of the Village of
Downers Grove and the Contractor. This designation is being made for purposes
of facilitating the administrative and day-to-day management issues relating to the
Project. In dealing with the Owner’s liaison, the Contractor acknowledges that
the Owner is an Illinois public body that can only be bound by an affirmative vote
of the Board of Library Trustees of the Village of Downers Grove. The Owner
agrees to not unreasonably delay its vote to approve or disapprove necessary
items in relation to the completion of the Project.”

2.1.2 In the second line, at the end of the first sentence, insert the following new sentence:

“Owner is a public body and, as such, mechanics’ liens may be filed only against public
funds and not against public property.” and delete the remainder of the paragraph.

2.2 Information and Services Required of the Owner
2.2.1 Delete this Section 2.2.1 in its entirety.

2.2.3 In the second line of Section 2.2.3, after the word “entitled to,” insert the word
“reasonably.”

2.3 Owner's Right to Stop the Work

2.3 In the fifth line, insert a period after the word, "entity." Delete the remainder of the
sentence and substitute the following:

"The exercise of this right shall not be construed as placing the Owner in charge
of the Work or making the Owner responsible for site safety."

ARTICLE 3. CONTRACTOR
34 Labor and Materials

3.4.0 Insert the following new Subsection:

392373 1 2



“3.4.0 The Contractor and all Subcontractors and their Subcontractors of any tier shall
pay to all laborers, workman and mechanics performing work under the Contract, where
applicable, not less than the prevailing rate of wages determined by the Illinois
Department of Labor in accordance with the Prevailing Wage Act (820 ILCS 130/1 et
seq.). It is the Contractor's sole responsibility and duty to insure that any revision in the
prevailing wage rates during the course of the Project will be reflected in payment from
the Contractor and each Prime Contractor or any Subcontractor of any tier to each worker
where the change is applicable. Contractor and Subcontractors shall comply with all
applicable provisions of this Act, including providing certified payrolls to the Owner.

The Library has adopted the prevailing wages as determined by the Illinois
Department of Labor (“IDOL”) for DuPage County, effective June 1, 2017, as
revised. The prevailing rate of wages are revised by the IDOL and are available
on the IDOL website, www.state.il.us/agency/idol. The Construction Manager,
Prime Trade Contractors and all subcontractors are responsible for checking the
Department’s website for revisions to prevailing wage rates. In the event that the
IDOL should revise the prevailing rate of wages, then the revised rates shall apply
to this Contract. In no case shall any revision in the rates of prevailing wages
result in an increase in the total Contract price.

The Contractor is also required to submit certified payroll no later than the tenth
day of each calendar month in a manner that is compliant with the Prevailing
Wage Act.

The Construction Manager shall additionally include the above paragraphs in all
solicitations for bids for this project, along with a current schedule of prevailing
wages.”

3.5 Warranty

In the fourth line, delete the phrase, "except those inherent in the quality of the Work the
Contract Documents require or permit" and insert in its place the following:

"in material and workmanship for one (1) year from the date of issuance of final
payment by the Owner and deficiencies shall be corrected in accordance with
Section 12.2.2.1."

In the fourth line, after the word “permit.” insert the following new sentence:

“Such warranty does not preclude the Owner’s right to bring an action for breach
of this Contract.”

Insert the following at the end of the paragraph:

313893


http://www.state.il.us/agency/idol

"The Contractor shall have an obligation to inform the Owner of known
deficiencies or inconsistencies in the materials planned to be used during the
course of construction."

3.6 Taxes

Delete Section 3.6 in its entirety and insert the following: "The Owner is exempt from federal,
state and local sales and excise taxes because it is a public body. Contractor shall not charge
Owner for such taxes."

3.7 Permits, Fees, Notices, and Compliance with Laws

3.7.2 Add the following at the end of this section, “including, but not limited to, those pertaining
to hazardous materials, and the following:

1 Provide a drug free workplace pursuant to the Illinois Drug Free
Workplace Act (30 ILCS 580/1, et seq.);

2 Comply with the Illinois Public Works Employment Discrimination Act
(775 ILCS 10/1 et seq.);

3 Comply with Article 2 of the Illinois Human Rights Act (775 ILCS 5/2
101, et seq.), and the Rules and Regulations of the Illinois Department of Human
Rights, including establishment and maintenance of a sexual harassment policy as
required by Section 2 105 of that Article and Act, as further described in Section
13.9 of this Agreement;

4 Comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act (except that Contractor
shall no obligation for noncompliant design);

5 Comply with the Illinois Prevailing Wage Act (820 ILCS 130/1 et seq.);
and

.6 Comply with the requirements of the Illinois Human Rights Act.”

3.7.3 Delete Section 3.7.3 in its entirety and replace with the following language:

“It is not the Contractor’s responsibility to ascertain that the Contract Documents
prepared by the Architect are in accordance with applicable laws, statutes,
ordinances, building codes, and rules and regulations. However, if the Contractor
performs Work knowing it to be contrary to applicable law, statutes, ordinances,
rules and regulations, or lawful orders of public authorities, or if the Contractor
should have reasonably recognized, within construction industry standards, that
such Work was performed contrary to applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, rules
and regulations or lawful orders of public authorities, the Contractor shall assume
appropriate responsibility for such Work and shall bear the costs attributable to
correction.”

313893



3.12  Shop Drawings, Product Data and Samples

3.12.11 Add a new Section 3.12.11 which shall read, “The Owner shall be entitled to deduct
from the Contract Sum amounts paid for Architect’s additional services and expenses when more
than three submissions of any item is required due to the fault of the Contractor.”

3.18 Indemnification

3.18 In the second line after the word, "agents" add the words "and officers." In the seventh
line, insert a period after the word “liable” and insert the following new sentence:
"Notwithstanding any other provision to the contrary contained herein, the Contractor shall
indemnify and hold harmless the Owner, its officers, agents and employees from lawsuits,
actions, costs (including attorneys' fees), claims or liabilities of any character including, as
allowed by law, liabilities incurred due to charges of joint negligence of the Owner and
Contractor brought because of any injuries or damages sustained by any person, persons or
property but only to the extent caused by any act or omission, neglect or misconduct of said
Contractor, its officers, agents or employees arising out of, or in performance of, any provisions
of the Contract." and delete the remainder of the paragraph.

Add a new Section 3.19 as follows:
"3.19 Compliance with Governmental Regulations

3.19.1 Contractor shall comply with all applicable governmental ordinances,
statutes, rules and regulations including but not limited to the Illinois Human
Rights Act and hereby agrees that the Contractor will establish procedures to
require that the Contractor and its Subcontractors shall have written sexual
harassment policies in place and shall not engage in any prohibited form of
discrimination in employment as defined in that Act including maintaining
policies of equal employment opportunity which shall prohibit discrimination
against any employee or applicant for employment on the basis of race, religion,
color, sex, national origin, ancestry, citizenship status, age, marital status,
physical or mental disability unrelated to the individual’s ability to perform the
essential functions of the job, association with a person with a disability, or
unfavorable discharge from military service. They also shall comply with all the
Rules of the Illinois Department of Human Rights with regard to posting
information on employees’ rights under the Act and shall place statements
identifying their companies as equal opportunity employers in all advertisements
for workers to be employed in work to be performed under this Agreement.”

313893



ARTICLE 4. ARCHITECT
4.1 General

4.1.3 In the first and second lines, delete the following phrase: "as to whom the Contractor
makes no reasonable objection and."

4.2 Administration of the Contract
4.2.2 In the second line, delete the phrase, "become generally familiar with” and replace it with
the word, "observe." In the third line, delete the words “in general” and in the third and fourth

lines, delete the phrase “in a manner indicating that the Work, when fully completed will be.”

4.2.5 Insert the words “as reviewed with and approved by the Owner” after the words, “and
certify.”

4.2.13 Replace the word “Architect” with the word “Owner.”
ARTICLE 5. SUBCONTRACTOR
5.1 Definitions

5.1.2 At the end of 5.1.2, insert the following: "All references to the term "Subcontractors
of any tier" shall be understood to incorporate the term Sub-subcontractors."

5.2 Award of Subcontracts and Other Contracts for Portions of the Work

5.2.1 Delete 5.2.1 and replace it with the following:
"5.2.1 All contracts with Prime Contractors shall be obtained through public,
competitive bidding as required under Illinois law, including Section 5/5-5 of the
Ilinois Local Library Act, for public construction projects (75 ILCS 5/5-5). The
Construction Manager shall enter into all such contracts with Prime Contractors
as an authorized representative of the Board of Library Trustees of the Downers
Grove Public Library."

5.2.2,5.2.3 and 5.2.4 Delete Sections 5.2.2, 5.2.3 and 5.2.4 in their entirety.

ARTICLE 6. CONSTRUCTION BY OWNER OR BY SEPARATE CONTRACTORS

6.1.1 Delete the words “identical or substantially.”

6.2 Mutual Responsibility

6.2.2 Insert the following at the end of the section:

313893



“Failure of the Contractor to so report shall constitute an acknowledgement that
the Owner’s or separate contractors completed or partially completed construction
is fit and proper to receive the Contractor’s Work, except as to defects not then
reasonably discoverable.”

6.2.3 Delete Section 6.2.3 and substitute the following:

“Notwithstanding any other provision in the Contract Documents, Contractor
shall coordinate the Work with all other contractors or subcontractors who are
working under other contracts and whose work impacts the scheduling of the
Work of this Contract and no claim shall be made or allowed to the Contractor by
the Owner for any damages which may arise out of any delay caused by other
contractors or subcontractors working under such other contracts, or by Owner
under this Contract except that an extension of Contract Time shall be awarded
for changes in the Contract made by Owner which create delay. Further, if any
act or omission of the Contractor or its Subcontractors delays the work of other
contractors or subcontractors working under such other contracts, Contractor, and
not the Owner, shall be liable for all claims for damages or cost of delay made by
those contractors or subcontractors. Contractor shall perform the work of the
Contract expeditiously in cooperation with the Owner's agents, employees,
contractors and subcontractors.”

6.2.4 In the first line, delete the word "wrongfully" and in the second line, after the word
"Owner," add the phrase ", its officers, agents, employees, or subcontractors."

6.2.6 Add Section 6.2.6 to provide as follows:

“The Contractor shall require its Subcontractors to name the Owner and
Contractor as additional insureds on the Subcontractors general liability insurance
policies and to require them to file certificates of insurance with Owner and
Contractor showing such compliance prior to commencing Work on the Project.”

ARTICLE 7. CHANGES IN THE WORK
7.1 General
7.1.0 Add new Section 7.1.0 as follows:

“7.1.0 After execution of the Contract, changes in the Work may be accomplished
by Change Order or by order of a minor Change in the Work. No change orders
shall be issued for the work under this Contract which authorize or necessitate an
increase or decrease in the cost of the Contract by a total of $10,000 or more or in
the time of completion by a total of thirty (30) days or more unless a written
determination that the circumstances necessitating the change in performance
were not reasonably foreseeable at the time the contract was signed, the change is
germane to the original contract as signed or the change order is in the best

313893



interest of the Owner, is made by the Owner or a duly authorized designee of the
Owner. Change Orders increasing the original Contract Sum by 50% or more of
Contracts originally publicly bid must be re-submitted to public, competitive
bidding.”

7.3 Construction Change Directives

7.3.3 Add the following as 7.3.3.5, “In no case shall the total amount of the mark-up exceed ten
percent (10%) regardless of the number of Subcontractors.”

ARTICLE 8. TIME
8.2 Progress and Completion

8.2.3 At the end of 8.2.3 insert the following: “by all proper and appropriate means, and unless
excused by 8.3.1 of the Contract, including working overtime without additional compensation.
Time is of the essence of this Agreement"

8.3 Delays and Extensions of Time

8.3.1 Insert the word “wrongful” before the word “act” in the first line and delete the words “or
neglect.” Insert the words “that are industry-wide” after the words “labor disputes.” In the
fourth line, delete the words “mediation and arbitration” and replace them with “formal
negotiation and/or litigation.” Insert a period after the words “for such reasonable time” in the
last line and delete the remainder of the section.

8.3.3 Delete 8.3.3 in its entirety and substitute the following: “There shall be no recovery for
delay unless permitted under 6.2.3 of this Agreement.”

ARTICLE 9. PAYMENTS AND COMPLETION
9.2 Schedule of Values
9.2 Insert the words “Owner and” before the word “Architect” in the fourth line so that the line
reads, “the Owner and Architect may require. This schedule, unless objected to by the Owner
and Architect shall be used as a basis for reviewing...”
9.3  Applications for Payment
9.3.1 Delete the second sentence in its entirety and insert the following:
“The Owner requires for each Application for Payment, a properly completed
Contractor's Affidavit setting out, under oath, the name, address and amount due
or to become due, of each Prime Contractor, Subcontractor of any tier, vendor,

supplier or other appropriate party included in that payment. For every party
listed, the Contractor shall also provide a full or partial waiver of lien, as

313893



appropriate, before a payment will be made to the Contractor. The Contractor's
partial or final waiver of lien must be included. Payment certificates shall not be
issued by Architect without such mechanics' lien waivers and contractors' sworn
statements unless they are conditioned upon receipt of such waivers and
statements.”

9.3.2 Delete the second sentence and substitute the following, “No certificate shall be issued in
favor of the Contractor and no payment will be made by Owner for material not actually installed
and built into the building without prior written authorization from the Owner.”

9.5 Decisions to Withold Certification

9.5.1 Insert the words “or if Owner and Architect cannot agree on the amount properly due” in
the third line after the word “made.” In the fourth line, insert the word “Owner” before the
words “Contractor and Architect.”

9.7 Failure of Payment

9.7 Delete the words, “awarded by binding dispute resolution” and replace them with “agreed to
in negotiations between Contractor and Owner.”

9.8  Substantial Completion

9.8.3 Add the following sentence at the end of this section, “The Owner shall be entitled to
deduct from the Contract Sum amounts paid for Architect’s additional services and expenses for
the Architect to conduct such additional inspections, as long as Contractor is notified that there
will be additional expenses prior to inspection.”

9.8.4 Insert the words “Contract Documents or” after the words, “provided in the.”

9.8.5 In the third line, at the end of the second sentence, insert the following: “or the amount in
reduction of retainage as is otherwise called for in the Contract Documents.”

9.10 Final Completion and Final Payment

9.10.1 Insert the following at the end of this section, “If the inspection reveals the Work is not
sufficient to be certified for final payment, the Contractor shall promptly complete or correct
noted deficiencies and request another inspection by the Owner and Architect. The Owner shall
be entitled to deduct from the Contract Sum amounts paid for Architect’s additional services and

expenses for the Architect for such additional inspections.”

9.10.4 Delete Section 9.10.4 in its entirety, including Subsections .1, .2 and .3.

313893



ARTICLE 10. PROTECTION OF PERSONS AND PROPERTY

10.2.4 Insert the words “shall give the Owner reasonable advance notice” before the words “and
shall exercise.”

10.3 Hazardous Materials
10.3.2 Delete Section 10.3.2 in its entirety and replace it with the following:

“Upon receipt of the Contractor’s written notice, the Owner shall investigate and
proceed pursuant to the law and applicable regulations. Upon providing a copy of
the Contractor’s written notice, the Contractor will be permitted to continue to
suspend performance of the Contractor’s services in the affected area provided,
however, that Contractor shall return to work at Owner’s discretion and
declaration either that the material encountered does not require remediation or
that it has been addressed in accordance with the law. If the Contractor suspends
services for longer than 21 days, the Owner may terminate this Agreement, and
the Contractor shall be compensated for services performed prior to the
suspension of Contractor’s services. Under no circumstances, unless required by
law, shall the Contractor report the existence of any hazardous materials or
substances to any other governmental entity or agency without the Owner’s prior
written consent. Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents to be part
of the Work, Contractor is not responsible for any unforeseen hazardous materials
or substances encountered at the site, provided, however, Owner is not
responsible for any hazardous material or substance releases or spills introduced
to the site by Contractor, subcontractor or anyone for whose acts they may be
liable.”

10.3.3 Delete Section 10.3.3 in its entirety.

10.3.6 Delete Section 10.3.6 in its entirety.

ARTICLE 11. INSURANCE AND BONDS

11.1  Contractor's Liability Insurance

11.1.1 At the end of Section 11.1.1 insert the following:
“The Contractor shall carry worker's compensation and public liability insurance
in the amounts set forth below and furnish the Owner with Certificates of
Insurance prior to commencing with Work. All such insurance shall be carried
with companies satisfactory to the Owner. The Contractor shall have the

following obligations with regard to insurance coverage for the Work under the
Contract:

10



All policies required to be obtained by the Contractor shall provide that
coverages under the policies named shall not be canceled, modified,
reduced or allowed to expire without at least Thirty (30) Days prior
written notice given to the Owner. All certificates evidencing coverage
extended beyond the date of final payment shall be provided at the time of
the final Pay Request. All Certificates of Insurance shall name the Board
of Library Trustees of the Downers Grove Public Library and its officers,
agents and employees as additional insureds on a primary non-
contributory basis with respect to General Liability only.

All general liability insurance required of the Contractor shall state that it
is Primary Insurance as to all additional insureds with respect to all claims
arising out of operations by or on their behalf. If additional insureds have
other applicable insurance coverages, those coverages shall be regarded as
on an excess or contingent basis.

The Contractor shall require that every Prime Contractor and each of their
subcontractors of any tier obtain insurance of the same character as that
required of Contractor, unless the Owner authorizes such lesser amount of
coverage, naming the same additional insureds and subject to the same
restrictions and obligations as set forth for the Contractor’s insurance in
the Contract Documents.

Under no circumstances shall the Owner be deemed to have waived any of
the insurance requirements of this Contract by any act or omission,
including, but not limited to:

(1) allowing work by Contractor or any subcontractor of any tier to
start before receipt of Certificates of Insurance;

2) failure to examine, or to demand correction of any deficiency, of
any certificate of insurance received.

The Contractor agrees that the obligation to provide insurance is solely the
Contractor’s responsibility and cannot be waived by any act or omission
of the Owner.

The purchase of insurance by the Contractor under this Contract shall not
be deemed to limit the liability of the Contractor in any way, for damages
suffered by Owner in excess of policy limits or not covered by the policies
purchased.

The Contractor shall notify the Owner, in writing, of any possible or
potential claim for personal injury or property damage arising out of the
work of this Contract promptly whenever the occurrence giving rise to
such a potential claim becomes known to the Contractor.

11



The Contractor shall provide insurance acceptable to the Owner. Such
insurance shall include the following coverages in the following amounts:

(1) Workers’ Compensation (including occupational disease and
employer's liability insurance) covering liability of its employees
and employees of its subcontractors in accordance with the law of
the State of Illinois, including the Illinois Worker’s Compensation
Act, as amended.

(2) Commercial General Liability (including Premises-Operations;
Independent Contractors's Protective; Products and Completed
Operations: Broad Form Property Damage):

a. Bodily Injury and Property Damage
$1,000,000 each occurrence
$1,000,000 aggregate

b. Covering the following hazards:
X(Explosion)
C(Collapse)
U(Underground)
C. Products and Completed Operations Insurance shall be

maintained for a minimum of two years after final payment
and the Contractor shall continue to provide evidence of
such coverage to the City on an annual basis during the
two-year period.

(3)  Umbrella Excess Liability: ~ $4,000,000 over primary insurance
4) Automobile Liability (owned, non-owned, hired):

a. Bodily Injury and Property Damage
$1,000,000 each occurrence

The Contractor further agrees to cause contractual liability to include
under the coverage therein extended an obligation on the part of the
insurers to insure against Contractor's contractual liability hereunder and
further agrees that said coverage shall be afforded therein against all
claims arising out of the use of scaffolds, hoists, cranes, stays, ladders,
supports or other mechanical contrivances. Endorsements to the
Certificates of Insurance shall include as additional named insured the
following:

(1) Board of Library Trustees of the Downers Grove Public Library
and its officers, agents and employees.”

12



11.1.3 In the first line after the phrase "acceptable to the Owner" insert the following: “naming
the Owner, its officers, agents and employees as additional insureds.”

Also insert the following new provisions 11.1.5 - 11.1.7:

“11.1.5 Under no circumstances shall the Owner be deemed to have waived any
of the insurance requirements of this Contract by any act or omission, including,
but not limited to:

1) allowing work by Prime Contractor or any Subcontractor of any tier to
start before receipt of Certificates of Insurance.

2) failure to examine, or to demand correction of any deficiency, of any
certificate of insurance received.

11.1.6 The Construction Manager agrees that the obligation to provide its
insurance is solely the Construction Manager’s responsibility and cannot be
waived by any act or omission of the Owner. The purchase of insurance by the
Construction Manager under this Contract shall not be deemed to limit the
liability of the Construction Manager in any way, for damages suffered by Owner
in excess of policy limits or not covered by the policies purchased.

11.1.7 The Construction Manager shall notify the Owner, in writing, of any
possible or potential claim for personal injury or property damage arising out of
the work of this Contract promptly whenever the occurrence giving rise to such a
potential claim becomes known to the Construction Manager.”

11.3  Property Insurance
11.3.1 At the end of 11.3.1 insert the following: "The Owner and Contractor
shall mutually agree upon the property insurance policy to be purchased by the
Owner.”
11.3.1.3 At the end of 11.3.1.3 add the following: "unless the loss is due in whole or part to the
negligent acts or omissions of the Construction Manager or responsible Prime Trade Contractor,

and the responsible party shall pay the portion of the deductible amount that corresponds to its
comparative degree of negligence."

11.3.1.4 Delete this Subsection in it entirety and insert the following: "Contractor shall provide
insurance for portions of the Work stored off site (if Owner allows off site storage) and Work in
transit to the site."

11.3.3 Loss of Use Insurance

11.3.3 Delete the second sentence in Section 11.3.3, which reads as follows:

13



“The Owner waives all rights of action against the Contractor for loss of use of
the Owner’s property, including consequential losses due to fire or other hazards
however caused.”

11.3.5 Delete Section 11.3.5 in its entirety.
11.3.7 Waivers of Subrogation
11.3.7 Delete Section 11.3.7 in its entirety and replace with the following:

“Notwithstanding any other provision in the Contract Documents, the Owner shall
not, in any manner, be deemed or intended to have waived any right of
subrogation which either it, or its insurance carrier may have against the
Architect, Contractor, Subcontractor or any tier, or any of their employees, agents,
consultants, officers and directors.”

11.3.10 In the second line, insert a period after the word "power" and delete the remainder of the
paragraph.

11.4 Performance Bond and Payment Bond
11.4.1 Delete 11.4.1 in its entirety and insert the following:

“The Contractor shall furnish to the Owner at the time of execution of this
Contract, bonds in the full amount of the Contract securing the full and faithful
performance of this Contract and the payment for all labor and material furnished
by the Contractor or anyone furnishing such under the Contractor's contracts or a
subcontract of any tier. Said bonds shall be in conformance as set forth below and
any additional specifications imposed by other Contract Documents, including,
but not limited to, the prevailing wage requirements set forth in the Contract
Documents. Said bonds shall be written by a surety authorized to do business in
Illinois that is acceptable to the Owner, in the Owner's discretion. Such bonds
shall be obtained from a company with a minimum A.M. Best Rating of A- and to
which the Owner has no reasonable objection. The cost thereof shall be paid by
the Contractor.

The Contractor shall provide Performance and Labor and Material Payment
Bonds as follows:

I. Provide a 100 percent Performance Bond in conformance with AIA
Document 312 as modified to show that the time during which the Bond
may be called is limited only to the extent required by Illinois law.

2. Provide a 100 percent Payment Bond in conformance with AIA Document

312 as modified to show that the time during which the Bond may be
called is limited only to the extent required by Illinois law.

313893 14



3. The bonds must be from a reputable company acceptable to the Owner as
set forth above.

Execution of the Agreement with the Contractor by the Owner is contingent upon
receipt of the required Bonds.”

ARTICLE 12. UNCOVERING AND CORRECTION OF WORK

12.2.2 After Substantial Completion

12.2.2.1 Delete the last sentence in its entirety and substitute the following. "The Owner shall
give Contractor a reasonable opportunity to correct any Work not in accordance with the

requirements of the Contract Documents prior to making any claim for breach of warranty."

12.2.2.2 Add the following sentence at the end of 12.2.2.2: "This obligation shall survive
acceptance of the Work under the Contract and termination of the Contract."

ARTICLE 13. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

13.1 Governing Law

13.1 Delete Section 13.1 in its entirety and insert the following: “The Contract shall be governed
by the law of the State of Illinois and venue shall be fixed in the Circuit Court of DuPage
County.”

13.6 Interest

13.6 Delete Section 13.6 in its entirety and replace it with the following, “Payments are due and
payable in accordance with the Local Government Prompt Payment Act.”

13.7 Time Limits on Claims

Delete Section 13.7 in its entirety and substitute the following:

“13.7 Certification Required
Contractor and Prime Contractors must certify that they are not barred from
contracting with any unit of state or local government as a result of a violation of
either Section 33E-3 or 33E-4 of the Illinois Criminal Code or any similar offense
of any State or of the United States which contains the same elements as the
Ilinois offenses of bid-rigging or bid rotating. A Certificate of Eligibility to Enter

into Public Contracts shall be executed by the Contractor and Prime Contractors."

Add the following new provisions:

313893 15



“13.8 Tax Certificates and Exemption Numbers

13.9

13.9.2

13.10

13.8.1 Owner shall, as part of its undertakings under this Contract, provide to the
Contractor all certificates of exemptions and tax exempt numbers needed to
entitle Contractor and Subcontractors to purchase material and other items to be
used on the work or incorporated into the work on a tax exempt basis, said
exemptions specifically to include but not be limited to the “Illinois Retailer’s
Occupation Tax” (sales tax). Contractor shall warrant that all material costs and
scheduled values have been calculated so as to give Owner its full benefit of its
tax-exempt status, and Contractor shall require that all Prime Contracts, and
Subcontracts include a requirement that materials be purchased so as to give
Owner the full benefit of its tax exempt status. Owner shall not be liable for, and
shall be entitled to a credit against the Contract sum for, any sales tax paid by
Contractor, Prime Contractors or any Subcontractor of any tier which is shown to
have been charged to owner as part of the Contract sum, as a component of the
schedule of values, as a unit price, or otherwise.”

No Waiver of Payment

13.9.1 Notwithstanding any language in the General Conditions or any other
Contract Document to the contrary or inconsistent with this provision, Owner
shall not be deemed to waive any claim or right to assert a claim by making any
progress payment or final payment.

Waiver of Lien

13.9.2 Upon satisfaction of the terms and conditions of the Contract and final
payment, the Construction Manager agrees to provide the Owner with a final
release and waiver of all liens covering all work performed under the Contract
relative to the project. Said final waiver of lien shall identify and state that all
Prime Contractors and any applicable Subcontractors of any tier have been paid in
full and there are no contract balances outstanding and owed to any such Prime
Contractors or other Subcontractors."

Human Rights Act

The Contractor hereby agrees that this contract shall be performed in compliance
with all requirements of the Illinois Human Rights Act, 775 ILCS 5/1-101 et seq.,
and that all contractors and subcontractors performing Work on the Project shall
not engage in any prohibited form of discrimination in employment as defined in
that Act. The Contractor shall maintain, and require that its subcontractors
maintain, policies of equal employment opportunity which shall prohibit
discrimination against any employee or applicant for employment on the basis of
race, religion, color, sex, national origin, ancestry, citizenship status, age, marital
status, physical or mental disability unrelated to the individual’s ability to perform
the essential functions of the job, association with a person with a disability, or

16



13.11

13.12

313893

unfavorable discharge from military service. The Contractor and all
subcontractors shall comply with all requirements of the Act and of the Rules of
the Illinois Department of Human Rights with regard to posting information on
employees’ rights under the Act. The Contractor and all subcontractors shall
place appropriate statements identifying their companies as equal opportunity
employers in all advertisements for workers to be employed in work to be
performed under this contract."

Sexual Harassment Policy
Pursuant to Section 2-105 (A)(4) of the Illinois Human Rights Act, the Contractor

and each subcontractor shall adopt and maintain written sexual harassment
policies that shall include, at a minimum, the following information:

A the illegality of sexual harassment;

2 the definition of sexual harassment under state law;

3 a description of sexual harassment, utilizing examples;

4 the contractor/subcontractor’s internal complaint process, including
penalties;

5 the legal recourse, investigative and complaint process available through
the Department and Commission (of Human Rights);

6 directions on how to contact the Department and the Commission; and

i protection against retaliation as provided by Section 6-101 of the Illinois
Human Rights Act.

A copy of these policies shall be provided to the Owner or the Architect on request.
Right to Audit

The Owner shall have the right to access and audit all the Contractor’s and
Subcontractor’s Project records and documents.

.1 Such data collection shall be at the Owner’s expense and shall not unduly
disrupt the normal operations of the Contractor’s or Subcontractor’s business.
The Owner shall be entitled to make copies of the Contractor’s and
Subcontractor’s records and documents including copies in electronic format.

.2 Change Order costs in excess of normal industry practice or otherwise in
excess of reasonable cost for the scope, nature and circumstances of the changes
are subject to renegotiation.

.3 Records and documents include, but are not limited to all books,
correspondence, memorandum, communications logs, drawings, receipts,
vouchers, labor records, payment records, insurance certificates, evidence of bond
coverage and other jobsite, home office and related information and data.

4  Contractor and Subcontractors shall be required to preserve all documents
relating to this Agreement for a period of three years after final payment.

.5 The Owner shall, both during and after the term of this Agreement, treat the

17



records and documents provided under this provision confidentially. Following
an audit of the records, the Owner shall return to Contractor and/or
Subcontractors all records and documents of the Contractor and/or
Subcontractors, including all electronic information.  Notwithstanding the
foregoing, the Owner’s confidentiality obligations shall not extend to information
which is in the public domain or subsequently comes in the public domain
without breach of this Agreement, or is required to be disclosed pursuant to a
judicial or court order or pursuant to law, provided the Contractor and/or
Subcontractor shall be given notice and an opportunity to object to such
disclosure. The non-disclosure restrictions described above shall remain in effect
after the termination date of this Agreement.”

ARTICLE 14. TERMINATION OR SUSPENSION OF THE CONTRACT
14.1 Termination by the Contractor
14.1.3 In the last line after the word “termination” delete the phrase “and damages.”
14.2 Termination by the Owner for Cause
14.2.1 Add new Subsection .5 to Section 14.2.1 as follows:

“.5 Declares bankruptcy or if a receiver is appointed."

14.2.2 Delete the words “upon certification by the Initial Decision Maker that sufficient cause
exists to justify such action.”

14.2.4 Delete Section 14.2.4 in its entirety.

14.3 Suspension by the Owner for Convenience

14.3.1 Add the following at the end of 14.3.1, “If the suspension, delay or interruption is solely
for Owner's convenience and not due to any act or omission of the Contractor, Owner shall
extend the Contract Time.”

14.3.2 Delete Section 14.3.2 in its entirety.

14.4 Termination by the Owner for Convenience

14.4.3 In the second line, at the end of 14.4.3, insert a period after the word "profit" and delete
remainder of the sentence.

14.5.1 Add a new Section 14.5.1 which shall read in its entirety as follows:

313893
18



“14.5.1 Project Records

14.5.1 Upon termination for cause, the Contractor shall permit the Owner to copy
all documents and samples at the site as enumerated in Subparagraph 3.11 and
shall provide record copies of all other documents, shop drawings, product data,
samples, etc., prepared for the Project to the Owner in paper or electronic (as
practical) form.”

ARTICLE 15. CLAIMS AND DISPUTES

15.1.6 Claims for Consequential Damages

15.1.6 Delete Section 15.1.6 in its entirety.

15.2  Initial Decision

15.2.5 Delete the last sentence of Section 15.2.5, which reads as follows: “The initial decision

shall be final and binding on the parties but subject to mediation and, if the parties fail to resolve

their dispute through mediation, to binding dispute resolution.”

15.2.6 Delete Section 15.2.6 in its entirety and replace with the following: “A decision by the

Initial Decision Maker shall not constitute a waiver by either party to have a claim resolved

through judicial decision.”

15.2.6.1 Delete Section 15.2.6.1 in its entirety.

15.3 Mediation

15.3.1 Delete Section 15.3.1 in its entirety.

15.3.2 Delete this Subsection in its entirety.

15.3.3 Delete this Subsection in its entirety and add in its place:
“Notwithstanding any inconsistent or contrary provision in the Contract Documents, no
claim or dispute arising under the Contract Documents shall be subject to arbitration or
mediation unless the parties mutually agree on a submission to arbitration or mediation,
which submission shall be in writing and signed by the parties and shall set forth a
specific statement of the nature of the dispute and shall contain an express statement on
the limitations of the powers of the arbitrator or mediator. The parties mutually agree
that in the absence of such a submission, arbitration or mediation cannot be demanded or
compelled by either party.”

15.4 Arbitration

15.4 Delete 15.4 in its entirety, including 15.4.1, 15.4.1.1, 15.4.2 and 15.4.3.

313893
19



This Rider shall be effective on the day and date above when executed by duly authorized

agents of the parties.
FOR THE OWNER:

DOWNERS GROVE PUBLIC LIGRARY

President, Board of Library Trustees of
the Downers Grove Public Library

ATTEST:

Secretary, Downers Grove Public Library

313893

20

FOR THE CONSTRUCTION MANAGER:

SHALES McNUTT, L.L.C.

Authorized Representative
Shales McNutt, L.L.C.

ATTEST:

By:

Its:




DOWNERS GROVE PUBLIC LIBRARY
BOARD OF TRUSTEES

MARCH 21, 2018

AGENDA ITEM 8B

Strateqic Plan — Action Plan Update

The largest change to the Action Plan as proposed is the change of Point Person
column from name to job title. The remaining changes include assigning some tasks to
our newly formed Programming Team, a cross departmental group of staff responsible
for programs, and to the new Adult Program Coordinator. Tasks assigned to the former
Assistant Director for Support Services are now assigned to the Facilities Manager.
There are 12 Target Date changes, primarily to distribute tasks more evenly throughout
the 2017-2020 period and to more accurately reflect some that are ongoing/annual.
There is one wording change to an Action Item: “Work with Village to create additional
handicap parking spaces on Curtiss Street” to “Request that the Village designate
additional handicap parking spaces on Curtiss Street.”

The first annual report of Action Plan progress will be made to the Board of Library
Trustees this summer.

| recommend approval of the updated Action Plan.



ACTION PLAN

The Action Plan lists the goals, objectives, and actions, with measurable outcomes and
target dates for completion, which address Strategic Focus areas. It clarifies what
resources are required to reach the goals of the Strategic Plan. The Action Plan is

primarily an internal document to guide the library’s planning, budgeting, and delivery of
services and resources.



Strateqic Focus: Excel in delivering service and managing

resources

Goal: We deliver stellar service guided by our Customer Service Promise.

Objective: To provide library-wide customer service excellence

Action

Point Person
(Department)

Target Date

Each staff member attends one
customer service training session
(other than In-Service Day)

Management Team

Annual

Create a Service Excellence Team to
support and improve upon our stellar
service

Circulation Manager

December 2017

Provide In-Service Day customer
service training on working with diverse
populations

Assistant Library
Director

January 2018

Goal: We cultivate dynamic and diverse collections.

Objective: To utilize best practices in collection development and

management

Action

Point Person
(Department)

Target Date

making

Director

Investigate tools available to ensure Adult and Teen Annual
most up-to-date are being used Services Manager
Utilize SWAN reports to inform decision | Assistant Library Annual

Objective: To provide arobust array of resources and services available

24]7

Action

Point Person
(Department)

Target Date

how to use resources and services

Technology Manager
and Adult and Teen
Service Manager

Evaluate current digital resources Adult and Teen Annual
Services Manager

Evaluate website content and Public Relations Annual

effectiveness Manager

Explore use of online tutorials about Information December 2018




Objective: To provide special collections that reflect the diverse needs and

interests of the Downers Grove community

Action

Point Person
(Department)

Target Date

equipment for check out

Technology Manager

Continue developing, digitizing, and Adult and Teen Annual
preserving Local History collection Services Manager
Explore and offer technology Information Annual

Create a circulating collection of STEM
materials

Children’s Services
Manager

December 2018

including different topics and
community members

Explore creating a “Rack at the Tracks” | Circulation Manager | December 2018
for commuters
Explore Human Library concept Circulation Manager | December 2019

Goal: We provide value to the community for the funds entrusted to us.

Objective: To be financially responsible and resourceful in purchasing

decisions

Action

Point Person
(Department)

Target Date

and request for proposals, as practical

Actively seek opportunities for group Management Team | Annual
purchasing, new tools, lower-cost

vendors, etc.

Solicit local vendors to respond to bids Facilities Manager Annual

Objective: To seek out alternate funding sources

Action

Point Person
(Department)

Target Date

Foundation in their fundraising activities

Regularly investigate grant Management Team | Annual
opportunities available
Support the Friends of the Library and Library Director Annual




Goal: We remove barriers to service.

Objective: To improve physical access to services

Action

Point Person
(Department)

Target Date

Explore alternatives to make entrances
accessible from handicap parking
spaces in snow

Facilities Manager

December 2018

Review ADA accessibility of Forest
Avenue parking lot

Facilities Manager

June 2018

Request that the Village designate
additional handicap parking spaces on
Curtiss Street

Library Director

December 2018

identify potential solutions to parking
issues and advocate for implementation

Consider moving or removing security Circulation Manager | December 2018
gates
Work with stakeholder organizations to Library Director December 2019

Objective: To adjust policies and procedures to improve access to services

library card without a parent present

Action Point Person Target Date
(Department)

Review effects of online booking of Public Relations Annual

meeting spaces Manager

Investigate the effects of eliminating Circulation Manager | December 2019

fines

Create policy and procedures for shelter | Circulation Manager | September 2017

resident cards

Work with SWAN to implement an online | Circulation Manager | December 2019

library card application process

Update Policy Manual Library Director December 2018

Create a process for teens to get a Circulation Manager | June 2018




Strateqic Focus: Engage with our community and the world

Goal: We partner with local organizations and government entities.

Objective: To coordinate efforts that support each organization’s programs

and services

opportunities and assistance needs

Action Point Person Target Date
(Department)

Begin Downers Grove organizations Public Relations December 2018

roundtable to make connections and Manager

share information

Investigate allocation of outreach tasks | Assistant Library December 2018

and duties Director

Support community organizations in Public Relations Annual

finding volunteers Manager

Investigate a Village-wide information Public Relations December 2019

clearinghouse for volunteer Manager

Goal: We encourage civic engagement.

Objective: To support communit

connections through programming

Action

Point Person
(Department)

Target Date

residents to discuss local issues,
including a mechanism to identify

topics

Manager

Partner with local organizations to offer | Adult Program October 2018
four additional civic engagement Coordinator

programs per year

Create a series of programs for Public Relations June 2019

Goal: We communicate the library’s value to the community.

Objective: To raise awareness of

the library

on strategic focus areas

Action Point Person Target Date
(Department)

Create and implement a Public Relations December 2018

Communications Plan, concentrated Manager




Goal: Staff actively seek opportunities to share knowledge and expertise.

Objective: To support staff in becoming leaders in the library profession

Action

Point Person
(Department)

Target Date

Submit at least one conference program
proposal or have at least one staff
member included in a conference
proposal per year

Management Team

Annual

Actively participate in RAILS, SWAN,
and other local professional
organizations’ committees and advisory
groups

Management Team

Annual

Support participation in professional
committees on the state and national
level

Management Team
and Administration

Annual




Strateqic Focus: Empower individuals at all ages and stages

of life

Goal: The library is the center of lifelong learning in Downers Grove.

Objective: To provide high-impact learning resources, technologies, and

services for all ages

centers to address their unmet needs

Services Manager

Action Point Person Target Date
(Department)

Support small business-focused Adult and Teen Annual

learning opportunities Services Manager

Connect people to resources that Adult and Teen Annual

develop job skills Services Manager

Provide support for book clubs through | Adult and Teen June 2018

book club kits Services Manager

Expand services to seniors and senior | Adult and Teen June 2019

Create opportunities to connect
homeschool families to resources

Children’s Services
Manager

December 2019

Partner with other organizations on their
lifelong learning initiatives

Public Relations
Manager

December 2020

Goal: We support the literacies needed to navigate today’s world.

Objective: To offer digital literacy learning opportunities

classes and curricula

Technology Manager

Action Point Person Target Date
(Department)

Explore dedicated staffing for the Information June 2018

Media Lab Technology Manager

Create a Media Lab service plan Information December 2018
Technology Manager

Develop an array of digital literacy Information December 2019

Objective: To support adult literacy

support literacy in areas such as health,
finance, and life skills

Team

Action Point Person Target Date
(Department)

Coordinate ESL and adult literacy Adult and Teen Annual

services with local agencies Services Manager

Explore programs and resources to Programming Annual




Objective: To prepare the children
for school readiness

of Downers Grove with the skills needed

Action

Point Person
(Department)

Target Date

Train all Children’s Services staff on
Every Child Ready to Read and early
literacy research

Children’s Services
Manager

June 2019

Partner with local hospitals to provide
early literacy information to parents of
new babies

Children’s Services
Manager

December 2019

Implement a 1,000 Books Before Children’s Services | January 2018
Kindergarten initiative Manager

Update established early childhood Children’s Services | December 2019
programming to more visibly Manager

incorporate early literacy skills

development

Offer early literacy education for Children’s Services | June 2020

parents

Manager

Goal: We connect people to the arts and cultural experiences.

Objective: To enrich the library experience through art displays and

collections
Action Point Person Target Date
(Department)
Offer tours of the library art collection, Public Relations March 2019
virtually and in-person Manager
Provide gallery space and performance Public Relations Annual
opportunities to showcase artistic and Manager
cultural creations
Preserve and protect the art collection Library Director December 2020

Objective: To support cultural programs that embrace equity, diversity, and

inclusion

Action

Point Person
(Department)

Target Date

Explore programs to connect residents | Programming Team | Annual
to diverse cultures and languages
Develop relationships with key partners | Public Relations June 2019

to support arts and culture

Manager and
Programming Team




Objective: To respond to pop culture trends

Action

Point Person
(Department)

Target Date

Offer timely programs, resources, and
services

Management Team
and Programming
Team

Annual

Goal: We provide staff with opportunities to learn and grow.

Objective: To invest in staff training and professional development

Action Point Person Target Date
(Department)

Offer continuing education opportunities | Management Annual

for all staff Team

Expand use of staff expertise for in- Management Annual

house training Team

Expand professional skills using cross- Management Annual

departmental teams Team

Create library-wide training program for | Assistant Library December 2018

supervisors Director

Cross-train staff to maximize staffing Management December 2018

resources Team




Strateqic Focus: Evolve with our changing community

Goal: We maintain an accessible and welcoming building.

Objective: To provide equipment and furnishings that support the library’s

goals and activities

Action

Point Person
(Department)

Target Date

Provide comfortable, durable, and Facilities Manager | Annual
functional furniture that supports use of

technology

Complete updating restrooms Facilities Manager | December 2018

Upgrade lighting in public areas

Facilities Manager

December 2020

Provide additional outdoor seating

Facilities Manager

December 2019

Investigate noise abatement solutions for | Facilities Manager | June 2018
Circulation Services workroom and Teen

Central

Evaluate ADA accessibility throughout Facilities Manager | Annual

the building

Objective: To proactively plan for the library’s future

Action Point Person Target Date
(Department)

Develop and maintain a Long-Range Library Director Annual

Budget Plan

Implement the recommendations of the | Library Director Annual

Facilities Assessment

Assess and address staffing needs Library Director June 2018

Goal: We seek and respond to community feedback.

Objective: To provide opportunities for residents and library users to give

feedback
Action Point Person Target Date
(Department)
Continue to use and report on How Did | Assistant Library Annual
We Do? forms Director
Use surveys to gather feedback Management Team | Annual
Record issues to identify focus areas for | Management Team | Annual
Service Excellence Team
Seek feedback from target populations | Management Team | Annual




Goal: Staff actively seek innovative ideas for library services and resources.

Objective: To allow staff time and resources to generate and investigate

ideas
Action Point Person Target Date
(Department)
Conduct management team Library Director Annual
brainstorming sessions
Create cross-departmental Innovation Assistant Library June 2018

Team

Director

Goal: We reflect the diversity of our community.

Objective: To be inclusive in providing service to the community

Action

Point Person
(Department)

Target Date

library services

Provide regular patron service training Management Team | Annual
for all staff in equity, diversity, and

inclusion

Incorporate inclusive practices into Management Team | Annual

Create a diversity strategy for recruiting
that reflects the community

Library Director

December 2019




ACTION PLAN

The Action Plan lists the goals, objectives, and actions, with measurable outcomes and
target dates for completion, which address Strategic Focus areas. It clarifies what
resources are required to reach the goals of the Strategic Plan. The Action Plan is

primarily an internal document to guide the library’s planning, budgeting, and delivery of
services and resources.

APPROVED AUGUST 23, 2017
UPDATED SEPTEMBER 27, 2017



Strateqic Focus: Excel in delivering service and managing

resources

Goal: We deliver stellar service guided by our Customer Service Promise.

Objective: To provide library-wide customer service excellence

customer service training session
(other than In-Service Day)

Action Point Person Target Date
(Department)
Each staff member attends one Managers Annual

Create a Service Excellence Team to
support and improve upon our stellar
service

Christine Lees

December 2017

Provide In-Service Day customer
service training on working with diverse
populations

Bonnie Reid

January 2018

Goal: We cultivate dynamic and diverse collections.

Objective: To utilize best practices in collection development and

management

Action

Point Person
(Department)

Target Date

making

Investigate tools available to ensure Nicole Wilhelms Annual
most up-to-date are being used
Utilize SWAN reports to inform decision | Jen Fredericks Annual

Objective: To provide arobust array of resources and services available

24]7

Action

Point Person
(Department)

Target Date

how to use resources and services

Evaluate current digital resources Nicole Wilhelms Annual
Evaluate website content and Melissa Fischer Annual
effectiveness

Explore use of online tutorials about Paul Regis December 2018

APPROVED AUGUST 23, 2017
UPDATED SEPTEMBER 27, 2017




Objective: To provide special collections that reflect the diverse needs and
interests of the Downers Grove community

Action

Point Person
(Department)

Target Date

equipment for check out

Continue developing, digitizing, and Nicole Wilhelms Annual
preserving Local History collection
Explore and offer technology Paul Regis Annual

Create a circulating collection of STEM
materials

Allyson Renell

December 2018

including different topics and
community members

Explore creating a “Rack at the Tracks” | Christine Lees December 2018
for commuters
Explore Human Library concept Christine Lees December 2019

Goal: We provide value to the community for the funds entrusted to us.

Objective: To be financially responsible and resourceful in purchasing

decisions
Action Point Person Target Date
(Department)
Actively seek opportunities for group Managers Annual
purchasing, new tools, lower-cost
vendors, etc.
Solicit local vendors to respond to bids Sue O’'Brien Annual

and request for proposals, as practical

Objective: To seek out alternate funding sources

Foundation in their fundraising activities

Action Point Person Target Date
(Department)

Regularly investigate grant Managers Annual

opportunities available

Support the Friends of the Library and Julie Milavec Annual

APPROVED AUGUST 23, 2017
UPDATED SEPTEMBER 27, 2017




Goal: We remove barriers to service.

Objective: To improve physical access to services

Action Point Person Target Date
(Department)
Explore alternatives to make entrances | Sue O’Brien December 2017

accessible from handicap parking
spaces in snow

Review ADA accessibility of Forest Julie Milavec June 2018
Avenue parking lot

Work with Village to create additional Julie Milavec December 2018
handicap parking spaces on Curtiss

Street

Consider moving or removing security Christine Lees December 2018
gates

Work with stakeholder organizations to | Julie Milavec December 2019

identify potential solutions to parking
issues and advocate for implementation

Objective: To adjust policies and procedures to improve access to services

Action Point Person Target Date
(Department)

Review effects of online booking of Melissa Fischer December 2017

meeting spaces

Investigate the effects of eliminating Christine Lees December 2019

fines

Create policy and procedures for shelter | Christine Lees September 2017

resident cards

Work with SWAN to implement an online | Christine Lees December 2019

library card application process

Update Policy Manual Julie Milavec December 2018

Create a process for teens to get a Christine Lees June 2018

library card without a parent present

APPROVED AUGUST 23, 2017
UPDATED SEPTEMBER 27, 2017



Strateqic Focus: Engage with our community and the world

Goal: We partner with local organizations and government entities.

Objective: To coordinate efforts that support each organization’s programs

and services

Action

Point Person
(Department)

Target Date

finding volunteers

Begin Downers Grove organizations Melissa Fischer June 2018
roundtable to make connections and

share information

Investigate allocation of outreach tasks | Bonnie Reid December 2018
and duties

Support community organizations in Melissa Fischer March 2019

Investigate a Village-wide information
clearinghouse for volunteer
opportunities and assistance needs

Melissa Fischer

December 2019

Goal: We encourage civic engagement.

Objective: To support communit

connections through programming

Action

Point Person
(Department)

Target Date

residents to discuss local issues,
including a mechanism to identify

topics

Partner with local organizations to offer | Melissa Fischer October 2018
four additional civic engagement

programs per year

Create a series of programs for Melissa Fischer June 2019

Goal: We communicate the library’s value to the community.

Objective: To raise awareness of

the library

Action

Point Person
(Department)

Target Date

Create and implement a
Communications Plan, concentrated
on strategic focus areas

Melissa Fischer

June 2018

APPROVED AUGUST 23, 2017
UPDATED SEPTEMBER 27, 2017




Goal: Staff actively seek opportunities to share knowledge and expertise.

Objective: To support staff in becoming leaders in the library profession

committees on the state and national
level

Administration

Action Point Person Target Date
(Department)

Submit at least one conference program | Managers Annual

proposal or have at least one staff

member included in a conference

proposal per year

Actively participate in RAILS, SWAN, Managers Annual

and other local professional

organizations’ committees and advisory

groups

Support participation in professional Managers and Annual

APPROVED AUGUST 23, 2017
UPDATED SEPTEMBER 27, 2017




Strateqic Focus: Empower individuals at all ages and stages

of life

Goal: The library is the center of lifelong learning in Downers Grove.

Objective: To provide high-impact learning resources, technologies, and

services for all ages

Action

Point Person
(Department)

Target Date

centers to address their unmet needs

Support small business-focused Nicole Wilhelms Annual
learning opportunities

Connect people to resources that Nicole Wilhelms Annual
develop job skills

Provide support for book clubs through | Nicole Wilhelms June 2018
book club kits

Expand services to seniors and senior Nicole Wilhelms June 2019

Create opportunities to connect
homeschool families to resources

Allyson Renell

December 2019

Partner with other organizations on their
lifelong learning initiatives

Melissa Fischer

December 2020

Goal: We support the literacies needed to navigate today’s world.

Objective: To offer digital literacy learning opportunities

classes and curricula

Action Point Person Target Date
(Department)

Explore dedicated staffing for the Paul Regis June 2018

Media Lab

Create a Media Lab service plan Paul Regis December 2018

Develop an array of digital literacy Paul Regis December 2019

Objective: To support adult literacy

support literacy in areas such as health,
finance, and life skills

Action Point Person Target Date
(Department)

Coordinate ESL and adult literacy Nicole Wilhelms Annual

services with local agencies

Explore programs and resources to Melissa Fischer March 2018

APPROVED AUGUST 23, 2017
UPDATED SEPTEMBER 27, 2017




Objective: To prepare the children of Downers Grove with the skills needed

for school readiness

Action

Point Person
(Department)

Target Date

Train all Children’s Services staff on
Every Child Ready to Read and early
literacy research

Allyson Renell

December 2018

Partner with local hospitals to provide
early literacy information to parents of
new babies

Allyson Renell

December 2018

Implement a 1,000 Books Before
Kindergarten initiative

Allyson Renell

January 2018

Update established early childhood
programming to more visibly
incorporate early literacy skills
development

Allyson Renell

June 2019

Offer early literacy education for
parents

Allyson Renell

September 2019

Goal: We connect people to the arts and cultural experiences.

Objective: To enrich the library experience through art displays and

collections
Action Point Person Target Date
(Department)
Offer tours of the library art collection, Melissa Fischer December 2018
virtually and in-person
Provide gallery space and performance | Melissa Fischer May 2019
opportunities to showcase artistic and
cultural creations
Preserve and protect the art collection Julie Milavec December 2020

Objective: To support cultural programs that embrace equity, diversity, and

inclusion
Action Point Person Target Date
(Department)
Explore programs to connect residents | Managers Annual
to diverse cultures and languages
Develop relationships with key partners | Melissa Fischer June 2019

to support arts and culture

APPROVED AUGUST 23, 2017
UPDATED SEPTEMBER 27, 2017




Objective: To respond to pop culture trends

services

Action Point Person Target Date
(Department)
Offer timely programs, resources, and Managers Annual

Goal: We provide staff with opportunities to learn and grow.

Objective: To invest in staff training and professional development

departmental teams

Action Point Person Target Date
(Department)

Offer continuing education opportunities | Managers Annual

for all staff

Expand use of staff expertise for in- Managers Annual

house training

Expand professional skills using cross- Managers Annual

Create library-wide training program for
supervisors

Sue O’'Brien and
Bonnie Reid

December 2018

Cross-train staff to maximize staffing
resources

Managers

December 2018

APPROVED AUGUST 23, 2017
UPDATED SEPTEMBER 27, 2017




Strateqic Focus: Evolve with our changing community

Goal: We maintain an accessible and welcoming building.

Objective: To provide equipment and furnishings that support the library’s

goals and activities

the building

Action Point Person Target Date
(Department)

Provide comfortable, durable, and Sue O’Brien Annual

functional furniture that supports use of

technology

Complete updating restrooms Sue O’Brien December 2018

Upgrade lighting in public areas Sue O’Brien December 2020

Provide additional outdoor seating Sue O’Brien December 2019

Investigate noise abatement solutions for | Sue O’Brien June 2018

Circulation Services workroom and Teen

Central

Evaluate ADA accessibility throughout Sue O’Brien Annual

Objective: To proactively plan for the library’s future

Action Point Person Target Date
(Department)

Develop and maintain a Long-Range Julie Milavec Annual

Budget Plan

Implement the recommendations of the | Julie Milavec Annual

Facilities Assessment

Assess and address staffing needs Julie Milavec June 2018

Goal: We seek and respond to community feedback.

Objective: To provide opportunities for residents and library users to give

feedback
Action Point Person Target Date
(Department)
Continue to use and report on How Did | Bonnie Reid Annual
We Do? forms
Use surveys to gather feedback Managers Annual
Record issues to identify focus areas for | Managers Annual
Service Excellence Team
Seek feedback from target populations | Managers Annual

APPROVED AUGUST 23, 2017
UPDATED SEPTEMBER 27, 2017




Goal: Staff actively seek innovative ideas for library services and resources.

Objective: To allow staff time and resources to generate and investigate

ideas
Action Point Person Target Date
(Department)
Conduct management team Julie Milavec Annual
brainstorming sessions
Create cross-departmental Innovation Jen Fredericks June 2018

Team

Goal: We reflect the diversity of our community.

Objective: To be inclusive in providing service to the community

that reflects the community

Action Point Person Target Date
(Department)

Provide regular patron service training Managers Annual

for all staff in equity, diversity, and

inclusion

Incorporate inclusive practices into Managers Annual

library services

Create a diversity strategy for recruiting | Julie Milavec December 2019

APPROVED AUGUST 23, 2017
UPDATED SEPTEMBER 27, 2017




DOWNERS GROVE PUBLIC LIBRARY
BOARD OF TRUSTEES
MARCH 21, 2018

AGENDA ITEM 9A
Bylaws — Third Reading

The third revision of the Bylaws is included in your packet. This update reflects the
discussion and changes requested at the January and February meetings. “Trustees
must” or “Trustees should” were added to the 4 new bullet points in 1.4.3, to match the
other bullet points in the section. “Refrain from” and “Do not” phrases were removed
from the first, third, and fourth new bullet points. The final sentence in 1.5.7 was
deleted.

As provided in the current bylaws, the first draft was presented to the Board at the
January regular meeting. This second reading and suggested revisions were presented
at the February meeting. The final revision was distributed prior to the March meeting
and also in the March packet. A vote may take place at this meeting.

| recommend approval of the revised Bylaws.



1 Bylaws of the Board of Library Trustees of the Village of Downers Grove

1.1 Article I. Compliance with the Law

The following Bylaws are directed specifically toward governing the operation of the
Board of Library Trustees of the Village of Downers Grove. These rules are
supplementary to the provisions of the statutes of the State of Illinois as they relate to
the governance of Boards of Library Trustees. For questions not addressed within
these Bylaws, the current lllinois statutes including the lllinois Local Library Act (75
ILCS 5/1 — 5/5-9) shall apply. The Board of Library Trustees of the Village of Downers
Grove shall comply with all provisions of the lllinois statutes pertaining to libraries and
trustees.

1.2 Article 2. Name

This organization shall be called the Board of Library Trustees of the Village of
Downers Grove existing by virtue of the provisions of Chapter 75 of the lllinois
Compiled Statutes of the State of lllinois (lllinois Local Library Act, 75 ILCS 5/1 — 5/5-9)
and exercising the powers and authority and assuming the responsibilities delegated to
it under said statute.

1.3 Article 3. Membership and Terms of Office

1.3.1 Section 1. Appointment of Trustees

Pursuant to the requirements for villages under the commission form of government in
the lllinois Compiled Statutes (75 ILCS 5/4-2), the Board of Library Trustees of the
Village of Downers Grove (hereafter called the Board) shall consist of six members
appointed by the Village Council of the Village of Downers Grove. Newly appointed
trustees take the oath of office at the first regular board meeting after September 1, or
following appointment, whichever comes first.

1.3.2 Section 2. Terms of Office

A full term on the Board of Library Trustees is six years. The terms are staggered so
that one term expires each year on August 31. A Trustee whose term has expired is
encouraged to continue to serve until a successor is appointed, as long as the Trustee
continues to be otherwise eligible to serve.

1.3.3 Section 3. Vacancies

A vacancy occurs when “the appointed trustee declines to serve, or is unable to
serve, or is absent without cause from all regular meetings for a period of one year,
or is convicted of a misdemeanor for failing, neglecting, or refusing to discharge any
duty imposed upon a trustee by this Act, or becomes non-resident of the city,
village,... or who fails to pay the library taxes levied by the corporate authorities.” (75
ILCS 5/4-4) Vacancies are filled by appoint by the Village Council of the Village of
Downers Grove.

1.3.4 Section 4. Resignations



If a Trustee wishes to resign from service on the Board, it is requested that a
minimum of three months’ notice be given to the Library Board to allow the Village
Council time to make a new appointment.

1.3.5 Section 5. Orientation of New Trustees

The President of the Library Board and the Library Director shall meet with any new
Trustee(s) of the Board within one month of appointment in order to review with the
Trustee(s) key operational and policy information.

1.3.6 Section 7. Compensation

Trustees serve without compensation. Reimbursement for actual and necessary
expenditures incurred in the performance of their duties shall be made, subject to
Board approval.

1.4 Article 4. Purpose and Responsibilities

1.4.1 Section 1. The Role of the Board

The Board of Library Trustees serves the residents of the Village of Downers Grove
with the responsibility to determine the purpose of the library in the community and to
develop appropriate goals for service; to seek adequate funding to achieve the goals of
the library; to adopt written policies to govern the operation of the library; to authorize
plans of expenditure to allow implementation of the library's service program; to be
aware of issues in library service and legislation affecting libraries; to communicate
actively with local government and the general public; and to employ a competent and
qualified library administrator.

1.4.2 Section 2. The Role of the Library Director

The Library Director is the library administrator and employed to act as the
professional advisor to the Board and as the manager of library operations. In this
capacity, the Library Director is responsible for planning, budgeting, recommending
and implementing policies, employing and managing the library staff, and enacting the
adopted plan of service. The Library Director reports directly to the Board of Library
Trustees and participates actively at all board meetings but is not a member of the
Board and has no vote.

1.4.3 Section 3 Ethics and Conflict of Interest
Library Trustees hold positions of public trust. Trustees are expected to conduct
themselves according to the highest ethical standards and to avoid conflicts of interest.

» Trustees are expected to observe ethical standards with absolute truth,
integrity, and honor.

» Trustees must avoid situations in which personal interests might be served
or financial benefit gained at the expense of library users, colleagues, or the
institution. It is incumbent upon any Trustee to disqualify himself or herself
immediately, whenever the appearance of a conflict of interest exists.



Trustees must be aware of and comply with the lllinois Governmental Ethics
Act and State Gift Ban Act.

No Trustee shall engage in any business or transaction, or have a financial
or personal interest, whether directly or indirectly, that is incompatible with
the proper discharge of his or her official duties in the public interest or that
may tend to impair his or her independence of judgment or action in the
performance of such official duties. Library Trustees may not be employed
by the library.

Trustees must distinguish clearly in their actions and statements between
their personal philosophies and attitudes, and those of the institution,
acknowledging the formal position of the Board even if they personally
disagree.

Trustees must respect the confidential nature of library business while being
aware of and in compliance with applicable laws governing freedom of
information.

Trustees must be prepared to support to the fullest, the efforts of librarians
in resisting censorship of library materials by groups or individuals.
Trustees who accept library Board responsibilities are expected to perform
all of the functions of library Trustees as described in the Illinois Compiled
Statutes (75 ILCS 5/4-7.5)

Trustees should respect the opinions and contributions of other Trustees
and work toward acceptable compromise on contentious issues.

Trustees should refer complaints and/or requests for information from the
public to the Library Director.

Trustees should refer staff grievances or problems to the Library Director,
who has full responsibility for managing staff.

Trustees must conform to the Open Meetings Act in posting and conducting
meetings with advance notice to the press and public.

New Trustees will be given a copy of the Ethics and Conflicts of Interest
section of the Bylaws when they take office and will be required to sign a
receipt affirming that they understand the policy and will abide by it.
Whenever the policy is revised, current Trustees will be required to sign a
receipt affirming that they understand the new policy and will abide by it.

1.4.4 Section 4. Duties of the Board
The Board of Library Trustees of the Village of Downers Grove is charged with the
responsibility of the governance of the library.

The Board will hire a skilled Library Director who will be responsible for the
day-to-day operations of the library.

The Board will generally meet once per month. These meetings will be open
to the public and noticed in advance.

Each Trustee shall file a Statement of Economic Interest in their primary
county of residence by April 30 of each year.



* The agenda and/or information packet for the meetings will be distributed to
the Board by the Library Director prior to meetings. Any Trustee wishing to
have an item placed on the agenda will contact the President and Library
Director in sufficient time preceding the meeting to have the item placed.

* Any Trustee who is unable to attend a meeting will contact the library to
indicate that he or she will be absent. Due to the fact that a quorum is
required for each meeting, this contact should be made as far in advance as
possible.

* To be effective, Trustees must attend most meetings, read materials
presented for review, and attend an occasional Library System (or other
library related) workshop, seminar, or meeting. Attendance at meetings via
telephone conferencing or electronic means shall not constitute an absence.

* Individual Trustees do not speak for the Board. If questions or comments
about the library are submitted to an individual Trustee, those questions will
be referred to the Board as whole for consideration, or to the Library
Director for a response, as appropriate.

» Trustees are expected to promote the purpose, values, and services of the
library; however, they should be very careful to refrain from comments on
matters of policy, controversy, or dispute. All communications on specific
issues will be made by the Library Director or the President of the Board of
Library Trustees, unless another Trustee has been designated as the
spokesperson for a particular project or issue. Most questions about day to
day library operations will be referred to the Library Director.

1.4.5 Section 5. Professional Meetings, Workshops, Training, and Memberships
Library Trustees are encouraged to participate in professional organizations and to
attend workshops, conferences, and other activities related to their responsibilities.
Reimbursement will be made for reasonable expenses related to these activities.
Reimbursement for automobile mileage will be based on the current rate allowed by
the Internal Revenue Service. Membership dues for the American Library Association
and the lllinois Library Association will be paid for all Trustees.

1.5 Article 5. Officers

1.5.1 Section 1. Board Officers

The elected officers of the Board shall be a president and a secretary. Officers shall
serve a term of two years.

1.5.2 Section 2. Election of Officers

Officers shall be elected by the Board from its members at a regular or special meeting
in even numbered years after that year's appointment to the Board has been made.
Election of an officer requires an affirmative vote by a majority of the appointed
Trustees. Any Trustee may nominate members of the Board for office. In the case that
more than one nomination is made for an office, a blind ballot shall be used. If the vote



results in an irresolvable tie, the decision will be made by drawing lots. Newly elected
officers will assume their responsibilities after the close of the meeting at which the
election was held.

1.5.3 Section 3. Board Officers — Vacancy

A special election will be held to fill any vacancy created by officers who leave the
board before completing their term of office. The length of the term will be limited to the
remaining months of service in the term vacated by the officer.

1.5.4 Section 4. President

The President shall preside at all meetings of the Board, appoint all committees, and
perform other duties normally associated with the office or assigned to the office by the
Board. In the absence of the President, the Secretary shall preside over the meeting.

1.5.5 Section 5. Secretary

The Secretary has the responsibility to see that adequate minutes of meetings of the
Board are taken and maintained as a public record. The Secretary certifies documents
on behalf of the Board, including levy requests, grant applications and annual reports.
In the absence of the President, the Secretary will preside over the Board meeting. In
the absence of the Secretary, a secretary pro tem will be appointed.

1.5.6 Section 6. Treasurer

The Board does not elect a treasurer from among its members. The Treasurer of the
Village of Downers Grove serves as the official bonded treasurer for the Board of
Library Trustees and coordinates the financial services on behalf of the Board. The
Treasurer of the Village of Downers Grove has no voting privileges on the Board of
Library Trustees.

1.5.7 Section 7. Additional Duties of Officers
In addition to the duties previously specified, each officer shall perform such other
duties as may be required by law or by the ordinances or resolutions of the Board.

1.6 Article 6. Meetings

1.6.1 Section 1. Open Meetings Act and Public Notice

All regular meetings, special meetings, and committee meetings of the Board of Library
Trustees are open to the public as provided in the Illinois Open Meetings Act (5 ILCS
120/1 — 120/7.5). The Library Director is responsible for issuing notice of all meetings
to Trustees, the press, and the public in accordance with the lllinois Open Meetings
Act and other current legal requirements. Notice shall include the agenda of business
items to be discussed at the meeting.

1.6.2 Section 2. Regular Meetings



Regular meetings of the Board of Library Trustees are held on the fourth Wednesdays
of each month at 7:30 PM at the Library. Meetings in November and December are
generally held on the second Wednesday of the month at 7:30 PM at the Library to
accommodate holidays. Regular meetings may be canceled if there is no business that
requires the attention of the Board or rescheduled to accommodate holidays or other
events.

1.6.3 Section 3. Special Meetings

Special meetings may be held at any time at the call of the President, the Secretary, or
any two Trustees. Except in the case of a bona fide emergency, notice and the agenda
of the special meeting must be delivered to all Trustees at least 48 hours prior to the
meeting time.

1.6.4 Section 4. Attendance

A maximum of two Trustees may attend regular or special meetings electronically
when they are not able to physically attend a meeting for reasons allowed by the Open
Meetings Act (5 ILCS 120/1 — 120/7.5). A Trustee attending electronically shall be a full
participant in the meeting; however, such attendance shall not be used to establish a
quorum.

1.6.5 Section 5. Quorum

A quorum consists of the majority of those Trustees appointed to the Board that are
physically present at a meeting. Quorum is four Trustees when a full Board of six are
appointed.

1.6.6 Section 6. Rules Governing Procedure
The latest edition of Roberts Rules of Order shall govern the parliamentary procedures
of the Board to the extent practicable.

1.6.7 Section 7. Voting

Each Trustee, including the President of the Board of Library Trustees, shall be entitled
to one vote upon each matter submitted to vote at a meeting of the Board of Library
Trustees. All votes in any question shall be ayes, nays and abstains and the spread of
record recorded in the minutes of the meeting. Roll call votes shall be required for all
ordinances, resolutions, and expenditures from all funds. A majority of those physically
present shall determine the vote taken on any question, unless a larger majority is
specified by law.

1.6.8 Section 8. Order of Business

The order of business for regular meetings shall include, but not be limited to, the
following items, which shall be covered in the sequence shown so far as
circumstances will permit:



1 Call to Order
2. Roll Call
3.  Welcome to Visitors
4 Approval of Minutes
5 Financial Matters
a. Approval of Invoices
6 Public Comment on Agenda ltems
7. Public Comment on Other Library Business
8. New Business
9.  Unfinished Business
10. Library Director's Report
11. Executive Session (if applicable)
12. Action for Items Discussed in Executive Session (if applicable)
13. Trustee Comments and Requests for Information
14. Adjournment

1.6.9 Section 9. Public Comment

In order to give the public an opportunity to present their comments to the Board of
Library Trustees, the agenda of all open meetings of the Board or Board committees
will include an opportunity for public comment.

The public will be given an opportunity to make comments relating to specific items of
business on the current meeting agenda. The public will also be given an opportunity
to make comments on other areas relating to the business of the Board of Library
Trustees. The Board of Library Trustees are not obligated to respond to public
comments.

Any person present at the meeting may comment. Each individual making a comment
will be required to identify himself or herself by name. Each member of the public shall
have a maximum of five minutes to address the Board. A maximum of thirty minutes
per regular Board meeting will be allotted to Public Comment.

1.6.10 Section 10. Executive Session

Executive session may be used when deemed necessary by the Board and in
accordance with the Open Meetings Act (5 ILCS 120/1 — 120/7.5). A roll call vote shall
be required to convene an executive session.

1.6.11 Section 11. Meeting Minutes

Minutes of Board meetings shall be retained in accordance with current legal
requirements. Recordings of Executive Session meetings shall be retained in
accordance with current legal requirements. Recordings of open Board meetings shall
be retained for 18 months.



1.7 Article 7. Committees

The Board of Library Trustees shall function as a committee of the whole, with special
assignments being undertaken by individuals or ad-hoc committees as deemed
appropriate. No committee shall have other than advisory powers unless, by formal
action of the board, it is granted specific power to act. The President shall be an ex-
officio member of all committees with full rights.

1.8 Article 8. Amendments to the Bylaws

These Bylaws may be altered, amended or repealed and new Bylaws adopted by an
affirmative vote of two-thirds of the appointed Board at a regular meeting, provided the
following conditions have been met.

1. Aninitial draft of proposed changes are presented to the Board at a
regular meeting;

2. Discussion and suggested revisions are sought at a second regular
meeting; and

3. The final text of amendments is sent to each Trustee with the agenda for a
third regular meeting.

A vote on the amended Bylaws may occur at the third regular meeting.

1.9 Article 9. Indemnification of Trustees, Employees, and Volunteers

If any claim or action not covered by insurance is instituted against a Trustee of the
Downers Grove Public Library, out of an act or omission by a Trustee acting in good
faith for a purpose believed to be in the best interest of the Downers Grove Public
Library; or if any claim or action not covered by insurance is instituted against an
employee or volunteer of the Downers Grove Public Library allegedly arising out of an
act or omission occurring within the scope of his or her duties as employee or
volunteer; the Downers Grove Public Library shall, at the request of the Trustee,
employee or volunteer:

1. Appear and defend against the claim of action; and

2. Pay or indemnify the Trustee for a judgment and court costs, based on
such claim or action; and

3.  Pay or indemnify the Trustee for a compromise or settlement of such claim
or action, providing the settlement is approved by the Board of Library
Trustees.

For the purpose of this Section, the term Trustee, employee and volunteer shall
include any former Trustee, employee and volunteer of the Library. This
indemnification resolution shall not apply if the Board of Library Trustees finds that the
claim or action is based on malicious, willful, or criminal misconduct. In such case the



action to be taken by the Board of Library Trustees will be determined after an
investigation of the facts.



DOWNERS GROVE PUBLIC LIBRARY
BOARD OF TRUSTEES
MARCH 21, 2018

AGENDA ITEM 10
Librarian’s Report

This report will be brief. With the meeting moved up a week and my vacation absence,
nearly all of my time was focused on tonight’s agenda action items.

ComEd Incentives and Lighting Projects

Facilities Manager lan Knorr persisted until he talked to all the right people, including
multiple Village of Downers Grove Public Works staff, to figure out how to receive and
maximize ComEd’s incentives to change over to energy-efficient lighting fixtures and
lamps. He is working with Product Architecture + Design to use these incentives for the
lighting portion of the 2018 construction project.

Performance Evaluations

Annual performance evaluations and meetings for all staff should be completed by
March 31. This is the first use of the new evaluation form initially created by Assistant
Director Jen Fredericks and revised by the management team as a group. | have
completed evaluations and meetings with each of the management team members. In
April, the management team will review use of the new form and make any necessary
changes based on the feedback from the group.

Statements of Economic Interest

All Trustees should have received a notification of the filing requirement and login
information for DuPage County’s online portal for Statements of Economic Interest. The
filing must be made prior to May 1.




DOWNERS GROVE PUBLIC LIBRARY
BOARD OF TRUSTEES
MARCH 21, 2018

DEPARTMENT REPORTS — FEBRUARY 2018

Administration — Jen Fredericks

Completed and submitted annual reports: IPLAR, PLDS Survey, and Collection Counts
for Village of Downers Grove.

Created two, brand-new, cross-departmental teams: Programming Team and Outreach
Team, based on the charges outlined by Library Director. Assembled and met with each
team for an initial discussion and brainstorming session, which included the mission and
goals of each.

Worked with Service Excellence Committee to implement new goals for FY2018, which
include an employee recognition program called, "Employee of the Moment," and a
library-wide team building activity.

Continued to add content to the Person In Charge Manual.

Adult & Teen Services — Lizzie Matkowski

Lizzie and Nancy attended Ryan Dowd's training, "Problematic Behavior from Homeless
Clients: An Empathy-Driven Approach to Compassionately and Effectively Addressing
Problem Behavior."

As part of our ongoing series of Genre studies, Joy and Lizzie lead a study of Cozy and
Historical Mysteries.

Lizzie attended a ReCharge committee program on staff engagement and toured the
Indian Trails Library.

Lizzie met with Constantine Bitsas from School and Tutors on Wheels to discuss how we
can help each other with serving ELL students.

Lizzie and Karen Bonarek met to discuss Karen's new position and training. Karen has
also met with Melissa to discuss taking over programming tasks.

Lizzie spoke with representatives from Gale, EBSCO, and Midwest Tape to discuss
services and products they offer.

Karen B attended the Service Excellence Team and the first Programming Team meeting.
Adult & Teen Services staff started planning this year's Summer Reading Program.

Staff hosted the district's Multi-needs and Transitions classes.

Children’s Services — Allyson Renell

Three new part-time library assistants started this month - Vanessa Viayra-Gutierrez, Lisa
Hung, and Rachel Erskine (who moved up from our Children's Clerk position.) We are
very excited to have them!

To help celebrate the Annual Downtown Downers Grove Ice Fest, on February 10 the
Kids Room had a variety of winter themed activities including a visit from Princess Elsa!



Elsa posed for photos and led the group in a sing-along of "Let it Go." She was very
popular and saw around 150 people.

On February 17, Dave DiNaso brought his traveling reptile show back to the library and
presented to an audience of 250 attendees.

On February 22, three department staff members visited Downers Grove Christian School
to judge their reading fair. A reading fair, similar to a science fair, is where students
create a board and present on a book. Our staff members then help decide the winners.

Circulation Services — Christine Lees

We continue to host three young adults from the Giant Steps organization, we aim to
teach them a new task during every weekly visit our department. We are so thankful to
witness their ever-expanding knowledge!

This month we had four new staff join our department in shelver or clerk roles.
Circulation Supervisors, Kitty and Sandy, have been kept jumping training our new
employees to deliver on our customer service promises.

Ian Knorr, our Facilities Department Manager, replaced all of the light bulbs by the
Circulation Desk and self-checks. All we can say is, WOW! Be sure to stop by and take
a look at the amazing difference the LED bulbs make to our workplace.

Information Technology — Paul Regis

Early in the month, IT Manager Paul Regis met with Director Julie Milavec and Assistant
Director Jen Fredericks to discuss reorganization options for the IT department. Two new
positions were established to best utilize staff: Computer Help Desk Supervisor
(overseeing desk staff, scheduling, general Computer Help Desk upkeep) and Assistant
IT Manager (taking on more responsibilities and acting as department head in the
Manager’s absence). These positions break up some of the duties previously held by the
Technology Assistant I and II positions.

IT Manager Paul Regis has been researching data backup/disaster recovery solutions, and
narrowed down offerings from a few vendors. He ultimately met with Prairie
Technologies in mid-February to work out the finer details: a hybrid solution from
Unitrends will be implemented, with an on-site storage component handling the brunt of
the backups and a cloud-based service taking care of incremental daily backups. This will
be more reliable and much quicker than the current system.

Comcast had frequent outages towards the end of the month (and early into March) due
to alleged upgrades/maintenance of local hubs. IT appreciates the patience of both
patrons and staff during these downtimes, which should (allegedly) be much more
infrequent.

Public Relations — Melissa Fischer

I spent time this month training Adult and Teen Services Librarian Karen Bonarek on
adult programming responsibilities. I also met with the newly formed Programming
Team and the Outreach Team where we did lots of brainstorming and sharing of



resources and ideas. A good start to two teams that have a lot to accomplish with the
strategic plan.

Communications Coordinator Christine Niels is getting more familiar with a variety of
website updates as well as the library's current communication style. Having her as our
dedicated communicator means she has time to meet with all departments to determine
which of their services and events they would like featured, resulting in more effective
promotion.

Staff Artist Melody Danley is beginning her annual summer reading club responsibilities:
editing graphics, creating submission forms for kids, teens, and adults, and assisting with
overall program promotion and logistics. This process has become much more
streamlined in the past couple of years!

Technical Services — Jen Fredericks

Inventory and Cataloging

For ATS collection: added 1180 print items and 536 AV items; discarded 1435 print
items and 1221 AV items.

For Kids Room collection: added 597 print items and 156 AV items; discarded 526 print
items and 103 AV items.

Claimed 5 magazines that did not arrive when expected.

Originally cataloged 15 items.

Reclassification and Repairs

Repaired 1442 ATS and Kids Room books and audiovisual items.
Reclassified 109 general adult and ATS and Kids Room items.
We are continuing to clean and repackage the audiobook collection.

Facilities Services — Ian Knorr

Hayes Mechanical was awarded the HVAC service contract with a start date of April 1.
This contract is good for one year with the option to renew. This will result in a savings
of $4,596 for the year.

New LED lighting was installed in the café, holds section, Circulation Desk, and self-
checkouts.

A new bottle filler station was installed by the public bathrooms on the second floor.
Ian met with the Village and confirmed that the library is able to take advantage of the
ComkEd rebates and incentives for putting in energy saving fixtures. Sample fixtures were
installed in the Kids Room.

Ian has reached out to MidCo to assess the current noise levels in the Circulation
Workroom and Teen Central. A walkthrough and survey occurred on March 6.



Cir¢ulation Statistica B | C D E F G
1 [Circulation FEB 18 % FEB. 17 % FEB 16 %
2 |Checkouts
3 |Selfchecks 44,069 72% 42,598 73% 47,731 77%
4 |Staff desk 17,264 28% 15,876 27% 14,662 23%
5 |Total checkouts 61,333 58,474 62,393
6
7 |Renewals
8 |Auto Renewals 32,746
9 |Selfchecks 27 1,577 1,541
10 |Staff desk (incl. phone) 233 2,369 2,536
11 [Patron online renewals 609 10,882 9,906
12 |Patron self-renewals on BookMyne 6
13 |Total renewals 33,621 14,828 13,983
14
15 |[Total item checkout & renewals 94,954 73,302 76,376
16
17 |Digital Circulation 7,920 7,522 7,472
18
19 |Total Circulation 102,874 80,824 83,848
20
21 |Reserves Processed
22 |Received from ILL 7,057 6,328 7,896
23 |ILL sent 4,787 4,784 4,799
24 |OCLC requests processed 672 725 927
25
26 |Gate Count
27 |North 24,130 26,371 28,114
28 |South 12,568 15,017 14,647
29 |Total 36,698 41,388 42,761
30
31 |Registrations
32 |New resident library cards 102 143 147
33 [New fee cards 6 4 14
34
35 [Current borrowers 28,665 33,163 31,205

3/6/2018




Circulation

Adult
Teen
Children
Download
Total

Circulation - By Item

Adult
Teen
Children
Total

Collection - All Items

Adult
Children
Total

Book Collection

Adult

Children

Total

Audio Collection

Adult
Children
Total

Video Collection
Adult

Children
Total

Miscellaneous Collection

Adult
Children
Total

Feb 2017 Feb 2018

44,162 54,382
1,226 1,882
27,914 38,532
7,522 7,920
80,824 102,716
Books
29,053  53.42%
1,727  91.76%
30,290  78.61%
61,070  64.42%
Books
124,286  75.58%
74,460  84.83%
198,746  78.80%
Feb 2017 Feb 2018
133,934 124,286
80,621 74,460
214,555 198,746
Feb 2017 Feb 2018
16,906 15,590
3,032 2,904
19,938 18,494
Feb 2017 Feb 2018
17,722 15,398
7,675 7,641
25,397 23,039
Feb 2017 Feb 2018
8,561 9,170
2,846 2,769
11,407 11,939

YTD Totals
90,930 108,123
2,566 3,836
58,977 77,030
16,211 14,860
168,684 203,849 35,165
Audio Video
7,370 13.55% 15,223 27.99%
90 4.78% 40 2.13%
1,315 3.41% 5,790 15.03%
8,775 9.26% 21,053 22.21%
Audio Video
15,590 9.48% 15,398 9.36%
2,904 3.31% 7,641 8.71%
18,494 7.33% 23,039 9.13%
YTD Totals YTD Difference
214,555 198,746  -15,809 -7.4%
YTD Totals YTD Difference
19,938 18,494 -1,444 -7.2%
YTD Totals YTD Difference
25,397 23,039 -2,358 -9.3%
YTD Totals YTD Difference
11,407 11,939 532 4.7%

20.8%

Misc..
2,736

25
1,137
3,898

Misc..
9,170
2,769

11,939

5.03%
1.33%
2.95%
4.11%

5.58%
3.15%
4.73%

Statistics for February 2018 (FY Jan-Dec)

Total
54,382
1,882
38,532
94,796

Total

164,444
87,774

252,218



Rooms & Spaces

Community Use of Rooms
Meeting, Conference, Study Rooms
Community Use of Spaces
Media Lab, STEM Room, Teen Gaming
Rooms and Spaces Total
Programs Offered

Library Programs Offered

Outreach Programs Offered

Passive Programs Offered

Programs Offered Total
Program Attendance Total
Library Program Attendance

Outreach Program Attendance

Passive Program Attendance

Program Attendance Total

Adult
Teen
Children

Adult
Teen
Children

Adult
Teen
Children

Adult
Teen
Children

Adult
Teen
Children

Adult
Teen
Children

Feb 2017
1,104

135

1,239

Feb 2017
19
6
50

0

0
11
104

Feb 2017
264
86
1,375

82
223
379

948
3,357

Statistics for February 2018 (FY Jan-Dec)

Feb 2018
953

142

1,095

Feb 2018
17
9
51

11
2
13

0

0
14
117

Feb 2018
117
252
1,399

220
14
203

1,035
3,240

YTD Totals
2,555

YTD Totals
215

YTD Totals
7,210

2,242

236

5,870

YTD Difference
-313 -12.3%

YTD Difference
21 9.8%

YTD Difference
-1,340 -18.6%



Statistics for February 2018 (FY Jan-Dec)

Gate Count
Feb 2017 Feb 2018
41,388 36,698
Reference Questions
Feb 2017  Feb 2018
One on One Tutorials 24 28
Computer User Sessions
Feb 2017 Feb 2018
Adult 3,945 3,508
Children 1,166 983
Total 5,111 4,491

Wireless Sessions 2,231 2,472

YTD Totals
85,854 76,585

YTD Totals
45 56

YTD Totals
10,359 9,442
4,731 5,130

YTD Difference
-9,269 -10.8%

YTD Difference
11 24.4%

YTD Difference
-917 -8.9%



	2018 03 21 agenda
	Board Minutes February 28, 2018
	COW Board Minutes February 28, 2018
	February financials
	Invoice Edit List
	Invoices of Note - Mar 2018
	Credit Card Report March 2018
	Payroll - February 2018
	8A1 construction management contract
	8A2 Construction manager contract
	8A3 Construction Manager contract addendum Certificate of Insurance
	8A4 Construction Management Contract Addendum A201-2007
	8A5 Rider to General Conditions (AIA Doc A201, 2007) Downers Grove Library
	RIDER TO THE GENERAL CONDITIONS OF THE CONTRACT FOR CONSTRUCTION BETWEEN THE BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES OF
	THE DOWNERS GROVE PUBLIC LIBRARY  (THE "OWNER") AND
	SHALES McNUTT, L.L.C.  (THE "CONTRACTOR") DATED ____________
	ARTICLE 1.  GENERAL PROVISIONS
	2.1 General
	2.2 Information and Services Required of the Owner
	ARTICLE 3.  CONTRACTOR
	3.4   Labor and Materials
	3.4.0   Insert the following new Subsection:
	3.5  Warranty
	In the fourth line, delete the phrase, "except those inherent in the quality of the Work the Contract Documents require or permit" and insert in its place the following:
	3.6  Taxes
	Delete Section 3.6 in its entirety and insert the following: "The Owner is exempt from federal, state and local sales and excise taxes because it is a public body. Contractor shall not charge Owner for such taxes."
	ARTICLE 4.  ARCHITECT
	4.1 General
	4.1.3   In the first and second lines, delete the following phrase: "as to whom the Contractor makes no reasonable objection and."
	4.2 Administration of the Contract
	4.2.2 In the second line, delete the phrase, "become generally familiar with” and replace it with the word, "observe."  In the third line, delete the words “in general” and in the third and fourth lines, delete the phrase “in a manner indicating that ...
	4.2.5  Insert the words “as reviewed with and approved by the Owner” after the words, “and certify.”
	4.2.13  Replace the word “Architect” with the word “Owner.”
	ARTICLE 5. SUBCONTRACTOR
	5.1 Definitions
	5.2 Award of Subcontracts and Other Contracts for Portions of the Work
	5.2.1  Delete 5.2.1 and replace it with the following:
	ARTICLE 7. CHANGES IN THE WORK
	7.1 General
	7.1.0   Add new Section 7.1.0 as follows:
	ARTICLE 8.  TIME
	8.2 Progress and Completion
	8.2.3 At the end of 8.2.3 insert the following: “by all proper and appropriate means, and unless excused by 8.3.1 of the Contract, including working overtime without additional compensation. Time is of the essence of this Agreement"
	ARTICLE 9. PAYMENTS AND COMPLETION
	9.2   Schedule of Values
	9.2  Insert the words “Owner and” before the word “Architect” in the fourth line so that the line reads, “the Owner and Architect may require.  This schedule, unless objected to by the Owner and Architect shall be used as a basis for reviewing…”
	9.3 Applications for Payment
	9.3.1 Delete the second sentence in its entirety and insert the following:
	9.8 Substantial Completion
	9.10.1  Insert the following at the end of this section, “If the inspection reveals the Work is not sufficient to be certified for final payment, the Contractor shall promptly complete or correct noted deficiencies and request another inspection by th...
	ARTICLE 11.  INSURANCE AND BONDS
	Also insert the following new provisions 11.1.5 - 11.1.7:
	11.3  Property Insurance
	ARTICLE 12.  UNCOVERING AND CORRECTION OF WORK
	ARTICLE 13.  MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS
	13.1  Governing Law
	13.1 Delete Section 13.1 in its entirety and insert the following:  “The Contract shall be governed by the law of the State of Illinois and venue shall be fixed in the Circuit Court of DuPage County.”
	13.7 Time Limits on Claims
	Delete Section 13.7 in its entirety and substitute the following:
	“13.7 Certification Required
	13.9.2  Waiver of Lien
	ARTICLE 14.  TERMINATION OR SUSPENSION OF THE CONTRACT
	14.1 Termination by the Contractor
	14.1.3  In the last line after the word “termination” delete the phrase “and damages.”
	14.2 Termination by the Owner for Cause
	14.2.1  Add new Subsection .5 to Section 14.2.1 as follows:
	“.5 Declares bankruptcy or if a receiver is appointed."
	14.2.2  Delete the words “upon certification by the Initial Decision Maker that sufficient cause exists to justify such action.”
	14.3 Suspension by the Owner for Convenience
	ARTICLE 15.  CLAIMS AND DISPUTES
	15.1.6  Claims for Consequential Damages
	15.1.6  Delete Section 15.1.6 in its entirety.
	15.2  Initial Decision
	15.2.5  Delete the last sentence of Section 15.2.5, which reads as follows:  “The initial decision shall be final and binding on the parties but subject to mediation and, if the parties fail to resolve their dispute through mediation, to binding dispu...
	15.2.6 Delete Section 15.2.6 in its entirety and replace with the following:  “A decision by the Initial Decision Maker shall not constitute a waiver by either party to have a claim resolved through judicial decision.”
	15.2.6.1  Delete Section 15.2.6.1 in its entirety.
	15.3   Mediation
	15.3.1  Delete Section 15.3.1 in its entirety.
	15.3.2  Delete this Subsection in its entirety.
	15.3.3  Delete this Subsection in its entirety and add in its place:
	“Notwithstanding any inconsistent or contrary provision in the Contract Documents, no claim or dispute arising under the Contract Documents shall be subject to arbitration or mediation unless the parties mutually agree on a submission to arbitration o...
	15.4    Arbitration
	15.4   Delete 15.4 in its entirety, including 15.4.1, 15.4.1.1, 15.4.2 and 15.4.3.

	8B1 Strategic Plan Action Plan Update
	8B2 Action Plan 2018 update
	8B3 Action Plan
	9A1 Bylaws cover
	Bylaws 3rd revsion
	10 Librarians Report
	Department Reports - February
	February 2018 Circ Stats
	2018 Monthly Statistics - February



